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Presenting the First annual report of
HMA Agro, for the financial year 2022-
23. This report provides information
about the financial and operational
performance of our business across
each of our business segments and
operations including those of our
wholly owned subsidiaries in India, as
mandated by the authorities under the
CompaniesAct, 2013, viz. Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, SEBI, Stock
Exchanges and other regulatory
bodies. The report provides
consolidated and standalone
statements of our financial
performance for the year under
reporting. For any queries or
clarifications regarding the information
issued in this report, you may write to
us at: cs@hmaagro.com.
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Forward-looking statements This Report
has been prepared by the Company and
the information on which it has been
based was derived from sources believed
to be reliable.Certain statements in this
Report may constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and
regulations. The same may be based on
the management assessment and
expectations with respect to future
circumstances, which involve a number of
risks and uncertainties, beyond the
control of the Company, that could cause
actual results to differ materially from
those in such forward-looking statements
.Forward-looking statements can be
identified by words, such as
'believes','estimates','anticipates','expects
','intends','may','will','plans','outlook' and
other words of similar meaning in
connection with a discussion on future
operational or financial performance

The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include,but are not limited to, risks and uncertainties regarding fluctuations in earnings, the Company's ability to manage growth, intense competition, including those factors which may affect
its cost advantage, wage increases, ability to attract and retain highly skilled professionals, natural calamities, epidemics and pandemics, political instability, regulatory changes, currency risks, legal restrictions on raising capital or acquiring
companies outside India, and unauthorised use of its intellectual property and general economic conditions affecting the industry. The Company may, from time to time, make additional written and oral forward looking statements, including reports
to its shareholders and does not undertake to update any forward-looking statement that may be made from time to time by or on behalf of the Company  
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PROFIT AFTER TAX

CAPEX

NET WORTH as of 31.03.2023

A- (reaffirmed)
₹123.47 crore

₹318.05 crore

₹466.08 crore

₹104.07 per share

~10%*

Market Share (Overall)

₹3209.2 crore
Financials – FY 23

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

EBITDA

Long Term (ICRA)

Credit Rating

₹152.16 crore

NET ASSET VALUE

TOTAL SALES IN QUANTITY

139928.85
Metric ton
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Guided by our commitment to
quality and product, we
continue to shape a flavourful
world of culinary delight for
all

all our endeavours. We have made significant strides in
reducing our environmental footprint, enhancing the well-
being of our communities, and upholding the highest ethical
standards. Our commitment to corporate social
responsibility is not just a duty, but a core belief that guides
our actions and contributes to a brighter, more sustainable
future.

Looking ahead, we are excited about the opportunities that
lie before us. The evolving business landscape presents
new avenues for growth, and we are well-positioned to
capitalize on them. Our focus on innovation will continue to
drive our product development, customer engagement, and
market expansion strategies.

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, whose
unwavering support and trust have been pivotal in our
company. I also express my appreciation to our dedicated
employees, whose passion and hard work have been
instrumental in achieving our milestones.

In closing, I am confident that our company's unwavering
spirit, combined with the dedication of our team, will
continue to propel us forward. Together, we shall overcome
challenges, seize opportunities, and create enduring value
for all our stakeholders.

Thank you for being part of our journey.
Sincerely,
Gulzar Ahmad
Chairman of the Board

WORDS FROM CHAIRMAN

It is with great pleasure and pride that I address you in this
year's annual report. The past year has been a testament to
our company's resilience, adaptability, and unwavering
commitment to excellence. Despite the challenges that
came our way, we have continued to steer our course
towards progress, innovation, and sustainable growth.

Our company's journey has always been driven by a shared
vision - a vision that embraces innovation, values integrity,
and focuses on creating value for all our stakeholders. As
we reflect on the accomplishments of the past year, we are
reminded of the collective efforts and dedication of our
talented team, whose unwavering commitment has been
the cornerstone of our success.

In the face of global uncertainties, we remained steadfast in
our pursuit of operational excellence. Our ability to navigate
through turbulent times and emerge stronger is a testament
to our prudent financial management and strategic decision-
making. We have continued to invest in cutting-edge
technologies, empowering our workforce, and fostering a
culture of collaboration and creativity.
As a responsible corporate citizen, we recognize the
importance of sustainability in 

Gulzar Ahmad
Chairman & Whole Time Director

Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders,
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We, at HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD., we’re not just
shaping products; we’re “BELIVEING IN QUALITY ONLY”
that redefined industries and elevate lives.” Embracing
the future with unwavering determination,HMA AGRO
INDUSTRIES LTD. dedicated to delivering unparalleled
quality and pushing the boundaries of what’s possible.
Now we have exports more the 40 countries in the world
and stand a position in 3rd largest exporter in India of our
Industry. Together, let’s embark on quest to reshape
industries.

I stand before you today with a profound sense of gratitude and pride as
we gather to reflect upon the journey we've undertaken over the past year.
Our annual general meeting is not just a formality; it's a platform where we
come together to celebrate our achievements, acknowledge our
challenges, and chart the course for the future.

The year gone by has been a testament to our resilience, determination,
and collective efforts. Despite the uncertainties that prevailed, we
navigated through with unwavering focus and commitment to our goals.
Our success is a tribute to the relentless dedication of our exceptional
team, whose hard work and passion drive us forward.

In the face of evolving market dynamics, we embraced change and
innovation. Our strategic decisions, fuelled by insights and foresight, have
positioned us ahead of the curve. We diversified our offerings, expanded
our reach, and deepened our customer relationships, all while upholding
the core values that define us.

As we move forward, we recognize that our responsibility extends beyond
financial performance. let me share with all of you, highlights of our
Company’s performance during FY 2022-23.
Over the years, we have been investing in modern plants & machinery and
have built a large equipment bank of our own. This augments our
execution capabilities progressively. Our present Gross Block of over ₹ 500
Millions.

The Company has a strong support team with proven expertise. Over the
past fourteen years, we have doubled our employee strength to 
more than 900 employees as on March 31, 2023.

Coming to the key financials of FY 2022-23, on standalone basis, our
Company’s revenue leaped by 6.97% to ₹ 31,255 Million compared to ₹
29,219 Million in FY 2021-22. Our EBITDA in FY 2022-23, stood at ₹ 1982
Million, higher by 23.68% as compared to ₹ 1602 Million in FY 2022-23 and
PAT stood at ₹1373 Million as compared to ₹ 1104 Millon in FY 2021-22
with a growth of 24.38% on y-o-y basis.

Wajid Ahmed
Managing Director

On consolidated basis, revenue grew by 4% y-o-y basis as in FY 2022-23 it
is ₹ 32,560 Million as compared to ₹31,389 in FY 2021-22. Consolidated
EBITDA in FY 2022-23 was ₹ 2,023 Million which was higher by 6.21% as
compared to ₹ 1,758 Million in FY 2021-22 and consolidated PAT for FY
2022-23 stood at ₹ 1,234 Million as compared to ₹ 1,176 Million in FY
2021-22, with a growth of 4.7% on y-o-y basis.

We are proud to be one of the key players in food sectors, which is a major
driver for its socio-economic growth. I am sure our Company has a
promising future and will continue to scale new heights with consistent
performance and sustainable growth, going forward.

 We are committed to being responsible corporate citizens, contributing
positively to the communities we serve and minimizing our ecological
footprint. Sustainability is not just a buzzword for us; it's a guiding principle
that shapes our actions and decisions.

Our journey ahead is paved with opportunities waiting to be seized. We are
poised to leverage emerging trends, embrace technological advancements,
and capitalize on market gaps. Our customer-centric approach will
continue to be our compass, ensuring that we deliver products and
services that add tangible value to their lives

.I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, whose trust and
support have been the bedrock of our success. I am immensely proud of
our employees, whose dedication, skills, and passion are the driving force
behind our achievements. Together, we have built a culture that fosters
excellence, collaboration, and innovation.

In conclusion, I am confident that the path ahead is bright and promising.
The challenges we encounter will only fortify our resolve, and the
successes we achieve will be a testament to our collective capabilities. As
we continue this journey of growth and transformation, I assure you that we
remain committed to achieving new milestones and creating lasting value.

Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders,

Thank you for being part of our journey.
Sincerely,
Wajid Ahmed
Managing Director
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Paid-Up Capital:

Authorized Capital:

Statutory Auditors

₹475.13 million

₹700 million

M/s MAPSS And Company, Ghaziabad Chartered Accountants

Share Listing:

Tuesday, July 4, opening at ₹615 apiece on BSE — a
premium of more than five per cent over the upper end
of the IPO price band

Business:

HMA Agro Industries Limited operates as a food trade
organization. The Company offers handled food and agro
products including frozen fresh buffalo meat, prepared
and frozen natural products, fruits, vegetables, and
cereals. HMA Agro Industries serves customers
worldwide.

HMA Agro Industries Ltd.

Company Name:

Date of Incorporation:

09-04-2008. It is classified as a Non-
govt company and is registered at RoC-
Kanpur. Their state of registration is
Uttar Pradesh.

HMA GROUP is one of the biggest food trade organisation
for handled food and agro products including frozen fresh
deglanded buffalo meat, prepared/frozen natural products,
vegetables and cereals in India and has an experience of
63 years altogether.

 Today HMA can be found in various nations and we have
our sights on expanding substantially more, we are serving
in around 60 nations worldwide and has transformed into
the world’s driving food chain organisation.

 HMA GROUP has a total strength of around 25000
employees and works in excess of 10 workplaces and 5
working environments in India.

ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23
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Products that live up to our customers’
desires created with model food handling
norms

Consistently 

We are on our path to become
Indian largest exporter of
bufallo meat and the recent
listing would provide us with
necessary capital to work
towards that direction 

What Defines Us

To be a largest exporter of frozen meat
products and become a globally 
recognized Indian brand

We are on the path to be one of the top
organisations that food market has not experienced
yet by providing with advancement, imagination and
inventiveness to have a ceaseless impact on our
customers

Quality Non Stop Improvement

Safety Moral Bussiness Practices

Products that live up to our customers’
desires created with model food handling
norms

Products that live up to our customers’
desires created with model food handling
norms

Innovation Sustainable Growth

Going the extra mile Products that live up to our customers’
desires created with model food handling
normsVI
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Gulzar Ahmad, aged 55 years is one of the founding Promoter and is
designated as Chairman and Whole Time Director on the Board of our
Company. He was appointed on the Board of our Company upon
incorporation i.e. w.e.f April 09, 2008. He is undergraduate. He has vast
and diversified experience in field of trading of livestock. Before
incorporation of the Company, he setup the meat processing house and
started job work. Under his stewardship, the production capacity of the
company has increase, resulted in increase in sale and export and added a
large number of new clients. He is currently responsible for overall
management and affairs of the Company including setup new plant and
machinery, developing industry networks for further business development
and overall development of the business of the Company.

WAJID AHMED
MANAGING DIRECTOR

 He was appointed on the Board of our Company w.e.f April 01, 2013. He
has completed his Bachelor of Commerce from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar
University, Agra in the year 2004. He has more than ten years of
experience in purchasing department. Because of his proficiency, the
company has setup automated machinery factory in various locations in
India. He is currently responsible for overall purchase other than raw
material such as machinery, other machinery part, packing etc resulting in
smooth functioning of the factory.He is spearheading the setting up of
Asia’s largest slaughtering plant in Haryana.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GULZAR AHMAD
CHAIRMAN AND WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
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AMIT GOYAL

GAURAV R. LUTHRA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

He was appointed on the Board of our Company w.e.f. June 03, 2021. He has
completed his Bachelor of Legislative Law from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar
University, Agra in the year 2002. He is a practicing advocate by profession
and is registered with the Bar Council of Uttar Pradesh since 2003. He has
over 18 years of experience in handling Tax Litigations, civil litigations,
arbitrations, appearances at tribunals, courts, commissions etc.

He was appointed on the Board of our Company w.e.f. June 03, 2021. He is a
Qualified Chartered Accountants and is also He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. He has more than a decade of experience in
the field of Internal Auditing, Internal Financial Controls, Taxation, Finance &
Accounting, Tax Audit and Statutory Auditing. At present working as
Independent Practicing Chartered Accountants.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

He was appointed on the Board of our Company w.e.f June 03, 2021. He is
associated with our company since 2014 and subsequently became the Director
of our Company. Further, he was given an additional position of CFO in our
Company w.e.f. July 07, 2021. He has completed his Certificate in Planning and
Entrepreneurship Course in Personnel Management and Marketing
Management from The Indian Institute of Planning and Management and
Bachelor of Business Administration from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar University,
Agra. He is currently responsible for overseeing deployment of strategic
business plans and handles Finance and accounts department of the company.

GULZEB AHMED
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER & WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BHUMIKA PARWANI
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

She was appointed on the Board of our Company w.e.f. September 26, 2022.
She has completed her bachelor’s in Commerce degree from Dr. Bhimrao
Ambedkar University, Agra in the year 2013 and is also a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. She was previously associated
with PSA & Company, Anurag Sinha & Associates and V Thukral & Associates
and is currently associated with TCI Foundation. She has an experience of
around three years in the field of Financial Reporting and Accounting, Risk
Advisory, Statutory Audits and Taxation.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Gulzar Ahmad
Chairman and Whole Time

Director

Wajid Ahmed

Managing Director

Gulzeb Ahmed
Chief Financial Officer &

Whole Time Director

COMMITTEE

Amit Goyal
Independent Director

Bhumika Parwani
Independent Director

Gaurav R.Luthra
Independent DirectorM

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

M: MEMBER

C:  CHAIRMAN

CC

MMC

MM

MCMC

MMM
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Exp : 30+ Yrs

GULZAR
AHMAD

Exp : 16+ Yrs

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

ORAGNIZATION
CHART

Chairman and
 Whole Time 

Director)

WAJID
AHMED

(Managing 
Director)

Exp : 8+ Yrs

Gulzeb Ahmed

 (Chief Financial Officer &
Whole Time Director)

Exp : 5+ Yrs

NikhilSundrani
(Company Secretary

 & Compliance Officer)

Exp : 15+ Yrs

Parvez Alam

Operation In charge)

Exp : 40+ Yrs

Vishwambharan,
Parmeshwaran

 (Admin and Legal Head)

Exp : 15+ Yrs

Mohammad
Mehmood Qureshi

(Purchase Head

Exp : 8+ Yrs

Mohd Kamil
Qureshi

(Export Head)

Exp : 15+ Yrs

Akhter Sayeed

Human Resources Head)
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Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi

Zulfiqar Ahmad Qurashi

PROMOTERS

ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

Wajid AhmedGulzar Ahmad

Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi

The   promoters   have   a   
strong   background   &
diversified experience in cattle
trade for over four decades and
sourcingof livestock is their core
strength

 Company is an 100% Promoter
Owned

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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2008

2010

2012

2013

2018

2018

2020

2021

2022

2023

Our Company was incorporated as
HMA Agro Industries Limited

Commencement of Production at
our Aligarh Plant

Commencement of Export

Crossed revenue of ₹10,000 million

Commencement of Manesar Plant
(secondary level meat processing
unit)

Crossed revenue of ₹20,000 million

 Subsidiaries Laal Agro Food Private
Limited and JFF Exports Private
Limited incorporated

Acquired majority stake in Federal
Agro Industries Private Limited and
Reliable Agro Foods

Introduced Frozen Fish and Basmati
Rice in the product basket

Listed on Recognised Stock
exchanges in India

SIGNIFICANT
MILESTONES
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OUR CAPACITIES

•COMMISSION
AGENTS

(FACILITATOR IN
BUYING & SELLING,

MONEY LENDER)

Consumers-
Selling buffalo

meat to
consumers

Slaughterhouse
(Slaughter, sale
of buffalo meat)

Livestock
market/ traders

(Aggregator,
transportation of

buffaloes to
slaughter house)

•FARMERS
(REARING

BUFFALOES &
TRANSPORT TO

MARKET)

WHOLESALER/
RETAILER- SALE &

PURCHASE OF
BUFFALO MEAT

QUALITY CERTIFICATES

Facilities are certified for quality and product safety
systems

ANNUAL PRODUCTION
CAPACITY:

ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

1472.50 MT/Day

HMA is proudly upholding
its position in the market by
having zero customer
complaints despite facing
numerous challenges in
times of pandemic

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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 HMA Agro
Industries   Ltd

Processing and Export
of Packaged Frozen
Buffalo Meat Products
(Current Core Activity)

Exports of Frozen Fish
Products
(Recently started in November 2021)

          Basmati Rice
(Recently started in August 2022)01

02

03

BUFFALLO MEAT

HMA HAMIL BLACK GOLD

FRESH GOLD GREEN GOLD

BASMATI RICEFROZEN FISH
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ALIGARH

 Mohali Plant Capacity :
380 MT/ Day

Agra Plant
 Capacity : 95 MT/ Day

 Aligarh Plant
 Capacity : 95 MT/ Day

Haryana Plant
Capacity : 570 MT/ Day

Parbhani Plant
Capacity : 190 MT/ Day

Unnao Plant (Being acquired)
Capacity : 142.50 MT/ Day

MOHALI

AGRA

HARYANA

Location: Village Behra, Hadbast No. 198, Tehsil Dera
Bassi, District Ajitgarh, Punjab - 140507, India 
Owned By: Federal Agro Industries Private Limited
(subsidiary - 60% ownership w.e.f April 2021). 
Current Status: Active and Operational since FY 2014-15

Location: Plot No. 293,295 & 297 Village Kuberpur, Tehsil
- Etmadpur, Agra– 282006, Uttar Pradesh, India
Owned By: M/s. HMA Food Export Private Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary of HMA Agro Industries Ltd).
Current Status: Active and Operational since FY 2014-15.

PARBHANI

UNNAO

Location: Plot No. 129,23,24, 379, 125, 378, 17, 18, 19,21, 22,
123, 124, 126, 127, 25 at village at GhattaShamshabad, Teh
Firozpur Jhirka, District Nuh, Haryana – 122104
Owned By: United Farm Products Pvt. Ltd. (wholly owned
subsidiary of HMA Agro Industries Ltd.)
Current Status: Company has received Consent To Operate
(CTO) and the Company has began its commercial production
from January, 2023. 
Note: The Company has applied for the factory license, the
grant is awaited.

Location: Gunt No 160-161, Purna, Parbhani, Maharashtra -
431511, India
Owned By: M/s. Reliable Agro Foods (partnership firm in which
HMA Agro Industries Ltd. is 95% partner (w.e.f November
2021).
Current Status: Active and Operational since FY 2016-17. 

Location:6/1, 15-16, Talaspur Khurd, Tehsil Koil, Mathura
Bye Pass Road, Aligarh - 202001, Uttar Pradesh, India
Owned By: HMA Agro Industries Limited
Current Status: The Company has received the
permission from High Court, Allahabad, and the authority
has granted the permission to run the plant for eight
weeks, in the ninth week the inspection shall be
conducted by U.P Pollution Control Board..

Location: D-1 & D-2, Site-1, UPSIDC Industrial Area, Unnao–
209801, Uttar Pradesh, India
Owned By: AOV Exports Pvt. Ltd.* (which currently conducts
processing on a contractual basis exclusively for HMA Agro
Industries Ltd.)
Current Status: The plant is active and operational since FY
2011-12. Our wholly owned subsidiary JFF Exports Pvt. Ltd. has
recently entered into an agreement to acquire said plant from
its current owner AOV Exports with all relevant assets. The
government related approved transfer of plant assets is on
going. 
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Angola
BAHRAIN
BANGLADESH
CAMBODIA
CAMEROON
CHINA
CONGO
EGYPT
GABON

LIBERIA
LIBYA
MALAYSIA
MAURITIUS
OMAN
PAKISTAN
QATAR
SAUDI ARABIA
SENEGAL

INTERNATIONAL BUSSINESS
GABON
GHANA
HONG KONG
INDONESIA
IRAQ
IVORY COAST
JORDAN
KUWAIT
LEBANON

SIERRA LEONE
SINGAPORE
THAILAND
U.S.A.
UAE
UZBEKISTAN
VIETNAM
YEMEN

TOP 5 EXPORT MARKETS
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Revenue (₹ Crores) Revenue (₹ Crores) ₹

Egypt

Hong K
ong

Vietn
am

M
ala

ysia

In
donesia

RoW

10,000 

7,500 

5,000 

2,500 

0 

Malaysia
32.2%

RoW
25%

Vietnam
22.2%

Egypt
9%

Indonesia
7.1%

Hong Kong
4.5%

Strategically reducing sales to low margin countries and
gradually shifting towards higher margin markets

Reducing sales from low margin markets to higher margin
markets like Egypt, Hong Kong and Malaysia

EGYPT                     20.60%

HONG KONG            1.34%

MALAYSIA               6.36%

3.57%

19.80%

13.55%

29.73%

4.77%

13.18%
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STAKEHOLDERS’ GROUP
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MEANS OF
COMMUNICATION

LEVEL OF 
ENGAGEMENT

Annual or Quarterly/ on need
basis

Discussion on financial
performance of the Company
and future outlook

Employees

Shareholders/Investors

customers

Distributors

Suppliers

01

0503

04

0605

Shareholders, Investors

Constant endeavour to display
sustained growth and profitability
to ensure long-term wealth
creation for our Investors

Customers

Delivering high-quality products
with focus to increase customer
satisfaction and building brand
image

Society at large

Working towards engagement of
local communities/ societies to
ensure inclusive development

Value Chain Partners

Constant engagement with our
suppliers and other partners with a
view to help them grow with the
organisation.

Employees

Giving inclusive and diverse work
environment with opportunities to
learn and grow with responsibilities

Government and
Regulators

Abiding with applicable
Government policies and
ensuring we fairly contribute to
the exchequer

ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

FREQUENCY OF
INTERACTION

Annual General Meeting
Investors’ summit
Financial Statements and
Annual Report

Training and development
programmes
Feedback mechanism
Employee engagement sessions 

Continuous basis throughout
the year

Monthly engagement sessions
Monthly and quarterly training
sessions
Annual feedback sessions 

Customer outreach programs
Company website
Satisfaction surveys

Continuous basis throughout
the year

Feedback surveys and
addressing them with product
enhancements

Dealer surveys
Company website

Continuous basis throughout
the year

Continuous feedback sessions
to address challenges

Dealer surveys
Company website

Continuous basis throughout
the year

Working towards sustainable
supply chain management
solutions

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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HMA AGRO

FNS AGRO FOODS
LIMITED

FEDERAL AGRO INDUSTRIES 
PRIVATE LIMITED

INDUS FARMERS
 FOOD CO. LLP

RELIABLE
 AGRO FOODS

OU
R 

SU
BS

ID
AR

IE
S

JFF EXPORTS  
PRIVATE LIMITED

UNITED FARM
 PRODUCT PRIVATE

LIMITED

HMA NATURAL
 FOODS PRIVATE

 LIMITED

100%

100%

100%

90.36%

Except Federal Agro Industries Private
Limited, none of our subsidiaries are
considered “Material Subsidiaries” as per
the definition of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015. However, our subsidiaries own the
processing facilities which process our
products for export markets on a
contractual basis and hence they are
important for us strategically

60%

HMA Food
Export Private
Limited100%

SWASTIK BONE AND 
GELATINES PRIVATE

 LIMITED

LAAL AGRO FOOD 
PRIVATE LIMITED

95%

50%

99.99%

100%
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The company, irrespective of
several headwinds, has
delivered year-on-year
revenue growth of ~4%,
clocking ₹3,210 crores in
revenue for FY23. 

This commendable
achievement adds to our
confidence that we are on the
right trajectory to achieve
robust growth in coming
years.

As a leading exporter of animal
based food products, our company
is committed to delivering
shareholder wealth by achieving
exponential growth. With a clear
vision and an impactful growth
strategy, we are determined to make
a sustainable business over medium
and long-term.

For us, growth does not only mean
delivering financial numbers, rather
it inculcates working towards larger
shareholder and stakeholder
betterment.

We are focusing on exponential growth in coming
fiscals to reach higher revenue growth. In our
endeavor to achieve this, our core strategy is working
on 3 ‘Bs’, being ‘Better quality Products, ‘Brand
Recognition’ amongst customers, ‘Bringing
Operational Efficiencies’. It will be our utmost
endeavor to maintain highest standards of
quality across production and every touch point of
customer service.

In addition, we also are constantly working towards
bringing operational efficiencies with a view to
achieve better margins in all our product range. This
includes investments in newer technologies, optimum
utilization of existing infrastructure, providing training
and development programs to existing workforce, and
continuous product innovation.

By leveraging our existing Distributors network, we
would continue to explore newer markets for our
products and pivot our business towards geographies
with better margins and higher potential for growth.
Through these measures we are looking to build a
strong and sustainable business with clear vision to
achieve stakeholder wealth creation.

We have been and continue to be strongly committed
to our investors, customers and community at large.

CONTINUE EXPANDING REACH IN NEWER
 GEOGRAPHIES

MAINTAIN HEALTHY REVENUE GROWTH
RATE FOR NEXT FEW YEARS

ESTABLISHING BRAND

BUILDINGSUSTANIABLE BUSINESS EXPANDING PORTFOLIO OF PPRODUCTSAC
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Sustainability and US - Our
Approach towards building a
equitable society 

pledges from core of is bussiness
that sustainability is not only a word
for us but an ethical and moral dutyC
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AWARDS AND 
ACCOLADES

HMA Group’s efforts
have been recognised in
an event organisaed by
Ministry of Environment  
Government
of Maharashtraj

Recognition by
BHAMLA Foundation 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 15th (Fifteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Company HMA Agro Industries Limited will be 

held on Friday, 22nd day of September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. at “Jaypee Palace Hotel & Convention Centre” Fatehabad Road, 

Tajganj, Agra, Uttar Pradesh 282001 to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including the consolidated financial statements) of the Company 

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To declare dividend of ₹3/- per Equity share for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

3. To appoint a director in place of Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 06546660), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment. 

 

 

 

        By Order of the Board 

    For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

 

Sd/- 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman cum Whole Time Director 

DIN: 01312305 

Place: Agra 

Date:  29.08.2023 
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NOTES: 

 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular nos. 20/2020, 02/2021,19/2021, 02/2022 and 10/2022 dated 5th 
May, 2020, 13th January, 2021, 8th December, 2021, 5th May, 2022 and 28th December, 2022 respectively, read together with 

circular nos. 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020, respectively, (collectively referred to as “MCA 

Circulars”) permitted convening of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual 
Means (“OAVM”) facility, without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. Further, Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11, 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 12th May, 2020, 15th January, 2021, 13th 

May, 2022 and 5th January, 2023 respectively, (“SEBI Circulars”) has also granted certain relaxations with respect to AGM.  
 

Note: The management of the company has decided to conduct and convene the Annual General Meeting of the 

company in physical mode only. All the stakeholders are requested to attend the annual general meeting through 

physical mode only. 

 

2. There is no any special business in the agenda of AGM, so there is no requirement to give any Explanatory Statement setting 

out the material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

3. The company is providing facility for voting by electronic means and the business may be transacted through such voting, 

however, the company has adopted physical mode for convening its 15th Annual General Meeting. Therefore, members can 

also opt to physically attend the Annual General Meeting of the company. 

 

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members 

in respect of the business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 

e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting on the date of the Annual General Meeting 

will be provided by NSDL. 

 

5. The facility for voting either through ballot or polling paper shall also be made available at the meeting and members attending 

the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 

 

6. The members who have cast their vote by remote-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled 

to cast their vote again. 

 

7. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint another person (whether a shareholder or not) 

as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/ herself, and the proxy need not be a member but a proxy so 

appointed shall not have any right to speak at the meeting and can vote only on a poll. The proxies in order to be effective 

must be duly signed and received at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 

commencement of the meeting. Proxy form is annexed to the notice as ANNEXURE-1. 

 

8. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten (10%) 

percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten (10%) percent of the total 

share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy 

for any other person or shareholder. 

 

9. In case of joint holders attending the Annual General Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order 

of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

 

10. Blank or incomplete, unstamped or inadequately stamped, undated proxies or proxies upon which the stamp not been cancelled, 

will be considered as invalid. If the Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is 

dated last will be considered as valid. If such multiple proxies are not dated or they bear the same date without specific mention 

of time, all such proxies shall be considered as invalid. 

 

11. Members/ proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the meeting. 

 

12. Proxies Holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending Meeting. 

 

13. During the period beginning twenty-four (24) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the AGM and ending with the 

conclusion of the AGM, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the 

Company. All relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection by the Members at the 
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Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on all working days except Saturdays, up to and including the 

date of the AGM. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under 

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection during the AGM at the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

14. Members are requested to bring their original photo ID (like PAN Card, Aadhaar Card, Voter Identity Card, etc, having photo 

identity) while attending the meeting. 

 

15. Only bona-fide Members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members/Proxy holders, in possession of valid 

attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the meeting. The Company reserves its right to take all steps as 

may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending the meeting. 

 

16. In order to enable us to register your attendance at the venue of the Annual General Meeting, we request you to bring your folio 

number/demat account number/DP ID-Client ID to enable us to give you a duly filled attendance slip for your signature and 

participation at the meeting. 

 

17. Members are requested to quote their DP ID / Client ID, in all correspondence with the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent 

 

18. The Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives and required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) 

of their respective Board or governing body resolution/ Authorization etc., authorizing their representative for the purpose of voting 

through e-voting or to participate and voting in the Annual General Meeting to the company on their email ID cs@hmaagro.com    

 

19. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.  

 

20. Members of the Company holding shares in Dematerialized forms as on Benpos date will receive Annual Report for the financial 

year 2022-23 through electronic mode. 

 

21. The details of the directors seeking appointment/ reappointment as required by Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial 
Standards-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are given in ANNEXURE-2 to the notice. The Board of 

Directors recommends all the appointments / reappointments as proposed. The directors have furnished consent/ declaration for 

their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. 

 

22. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Saturday, the September 16, 

2023 to Friday, the September 22, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purposes of the AGM and determining the names of 

members eligible for dividend on equity shares, if declared at the AGM. 

 

23. Payment of dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved at the meeting, will be made within 30 days of its 

declaration in AGM, to those members whose names are on the Company’s Register of Members on September 15, 2023 and 

those whose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the close of the business hours on September 15, 2023 as per the details 

to be furnished by the Depositories, viz. NSDL and CDSL for this purpose. 

 

24. In accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended by and read with the provisions of the Finance Act, 

2020, with effect from April 1, 2020, dividend declared and paid by the Company is taxable in the hands of its Members and the 

Company is required to deduct tax at source (TDS) from dividend paid to the Members at the applicable rates. A separate email 

had been sent at the registered email ID of the members describing about the detailed process to submit the documents / 

declarations along with the formats in respect of deduction of tax at source on the dividend payout. Sufficient time had been 

provided for submitting the documents / declarations by the Members who desire to claim beneficial tax treatment. The intimation 

will also be uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.hmagroup.co 

 

25.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 

Refund) Rules, 2016 and Amendment Rules 2017 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to 

transfer all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the Members for seven consecutive years or 

more in the name of Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Suspense Account. As this is the first time Company is 

declaring the dividend, therefore details related to these provisions are not applicable to the Company. 

 

26. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 

participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their respective 

PAN details to their respective Depository Participants with whom they have their demat account(s). 
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27. Members are requested to intimate/update changes, if any, in postal address, e-mail address, mobile number, PAN, nomination 

details, bank details such as name of the bank and branch, bank account number, IFSC Code etc., as per instructions set out 

below: 

 

Members holding the shares in electronic form should furnish the above details to their Depository Participant (“DP”) in the 
prescribed form provided by the DP. 

 

28. The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Private Limited, as its Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) for 
rendering the entire range of services to the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, all documents, demat request, change of 

address intimation and other communication in relation thereto with respect to shares in electronic form should be addressed to 

the RTA directly quoting Folio No./Demat Account, full name and name of the Company as HMA Agro Industries Limited. 

 

29. Non Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company’s RTA, immediately of any change in their residential status 
on return to India for permanent settlement, their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, 

account number and address of the bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR Code, as applicable, if such details were not furnished 

earlier. 

 

30. The Company’s Securities are listed on BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,  

 Mumbai- 400001 and NSE Limited Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Mumbai – 400051. 

 

31. The Company has set Friday, 15th day of September, 2023 as the "Cut-off Date" for taking record of the shareholders of the 

Company who will be eligible for casting their vote on the resolution to be passed in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

32. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Sharma, Company Secretaries in practice (Mem. No. FCS 5524) and proprietor of R. C. Sharma & 

Associates, Agra appointed as the Scrutinizer of the Company for the purpose of scrutinizing the process of voting through 

electronic means ("e-voting")  

 

33. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting in the 

presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 Hours of the conclusion 

of the Annual General Meeting, a Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 

person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

34. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at 

https://www.hmagroup.co. The results shall also be uploaded to the Stock Exchange where the shares of the company are listed 

within 48 hours of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

35. The Registers under the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the Members at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

36. The Annual Report of the Company for the year 2022-2023, circulated to the Members of the Company in electronic form and is 

available on the Company’s website viz. https://www.hmagroup.co.The Annual Report is also available at the website of RTA 

Bigshare Services Private Limited viz. https://www.bigshareonline.com 

 

37. MCA, Government of India, through its Circulars Nos. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and 18/2011 dated 29th April, 2011, 

respectively, has allowed companies to send documents viz. Notices of meetings, Annual Reports and other shareholder 

communication to their shareholders electronically as part of its Green Initiatives in corporate governance. 

 

38. Shareholders intending to require information about accounts to be explained in the meeting are requested to inform the Company 

at following email id cs@hmaagro.com at least seven days in advance of the Annual General Meeting. Also, Members who require 

e-communication and in case of any queries regarding the Annual Report, Members may write to cs@hmaagro.com 

 

39. Members may also note that the Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 together with the Notice of 15th Annual General 

Meeting, Attendance Slip, Proxy Form, Ballot Paper and Route Map will also be available on the website of the Company viz. 

https://www.hmagroup.co for their download. 

 

40. Attendance Slip (Annexure-3), Proxy Form (Annexure-1), Ballot Paper (Annexure-4) have been enclosed herein. Route Map 

giving directions to the venue of the meeting is also annexed to the Annual Report.  

 

41. The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-2024 have been paid by the Company to the BSE Limited and NSE Limited where the 

shares of the Company are listed. 

 

42. The Independent Directors of the company has furnished the requisite declaration for independence as per Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
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43. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2022-2023 is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.  

 

44. Members may also note that the Notice of the 15th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2022-2023 will also be 

available on the Company’s website https://www.hmagroup.co NSDL www.evotingindia.com or https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/and 

website of Bigshare Services Private Limited  www.bigshareonline.com   for their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid 

documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office located in Agra for inspection during normal business hours 

on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physical 

form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests 

to the Company’s email id: cs@hmaagro.com. 

 

45. As per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020; SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/ 

CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022; and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 

(“SEBI Circulars”), the Annual Report will be sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email IDs are registered with 
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company/ Depository participant and shareholders may submit request to send full 

annual report to the company on the email id cs@hmaagro.com. 

 

46. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during 

normal business hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except Friday, 22nd September, 2023, the date of the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. 

 

47. Only registered members carrying the attendance slips and the holders of valid proxies registered with the Company will be 

permitted to attend the meeting. 

 

48. The facility for voting through Ballot / Polling Paper shall also be made available at the meeting and Members attending the 

meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 

 

49. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholders of the Company may nominate a person on whom the shares 

held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit nomination in 

Form no. SH-13. 

 

50. The Company has entered into agreements with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”) to offer depository services to the Shareholders. Shareholders can open account with any of the 

depository participant registered with CDSL and NSDL. 

 

51.  Any member requiring further information on the Accounts at the meeting is requested to send the queries in writing to the 

Company Secretary of the company by 15th September, 2023. 

 

OTHER INFORMATION 

 

52. In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, ECS mandates, nomination, power of attorney, change in name/address etc., 

the members are requested to approach the Company’s Registrars and Shares Transfer Agents, in respect of shares held in 

physical form and the respective Depository Participants, in case of shares held in electronic form. In all correspondence with the 

Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, members are requested to quote their account/folio numbers or DP ID and Client 

ID for physical or electronic holdings respectively. 

 

53.  As a part of “Green initiative in the Corporate Governance”, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its circular nos. 17/2011 and 

1/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and 29.04.2011, respectively, has permitted the companies to serve the documents, namely, Notice of 

General Meeting, Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Auditor’s Report, Director’s Report, etc., to the members through e-

mail.  

 

54. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the Annual General 

Meeting has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.hmagroup.co.The Notice can also be accessed from 

the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The 15th Annual General Meeting Notice is also 

disseminated on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the Annual 

General Meeting) i.e., www.evotingindia.com 

 

55. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the company will 

remain closed from Saturday, 15th September, 2023 to Friday, 22ndSeptember, 2023 (both days inclusive). 
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The dividend of ₹3.00/- per equity share (@30%), as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the AGM, will be 

paid/dispatched within 30 days from the date of the ensuing AGM of the Company as under:  

 

• To all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form, as per the beneficial ownership data made available to the 

Company by National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) as on 

Friday, 15th September, 2023. 

 

Any query related to dividend should be directed to the RTA of the Company. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, dividend paid or distributed by a 

Company on or after 1st April, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of the Members, therefore, the Company is required to deduct 

tax at source at the time of making payment of dividend at the prescribed rates. In order to enable the Company to determine the 

appropriate TDS rate, as applicable, shareholders are requested to submit their documents in accordance with the applicable 

provisions. The Company will also send an e-mail to all shareholders at their registered email ids in this regard and the same shall 

be available under Investor Relations Section at the Company’s website i.e. https: //www. indiaglycols.com/investors/shareholders-

communication html. The Members are requested to update their PAN with depository participant. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: - 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 19th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 21st September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. 

The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e.,15th September, 2023, may cast their 

vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 15th September, 2023. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 

order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period Ifyou are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience. 
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Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & 
password. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then click on registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, 
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 
- 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?  
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and 
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL.  

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 

wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 

Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 

signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to rcsharmacs@yahoo.com with a copy marked 

to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 

Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 

Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 

correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 

Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on: 022 - 4886 7000 and 

022 - 2499 7000  or send a request to of NSDL Official at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email id: cs@hmaagro.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 

Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id cs@hmaagro.com). If you are an 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at 

step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 

for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board 

    For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

 

Sd/- 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman cum Whole Time Director 

DIN: 01312305 

Place: Agra 

Date:  29.08.2023 
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ANNEXURE-1 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 
Regd Off: 18A/5/3 Tajview Crossing Fatehabad Road Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001 

 
Form No. MGT-11 

(Proxy form) 
 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014] 
 

Name of the Member(s)  

Registered Address  

E-mail Id  

Folio No /Client ID  

DP ID  

 
I/We, being the member(s) holding ____________shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint: 
 

1. Name: E-mail Id: 

Address:  

Signature:                      ,or failing him  

  

2. Name: E-mail Id: 

Address:  

Signature:                   , or failing him  

  

3. Name: E-mail Id: 

Address:  

Signature:                   , or failing him  

 
as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15thAnnual General Meeting of the Company to be 

held at “Jaypee Palace Hotel & Convention Centre” Fatehabad Road, Tajganj, Agra, Uttar Pradesh-282001 at 5:00 P.M. on 

Friday, the 22nd September, 2023 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  

Resolution 
No. 

Particulars Vote 

Ordinary Business and Special Business For Against 

1. To Receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of 
Directors (“the Board”) and Auditors thereon. 

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 06546660), who retires by 
rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

  

3. To Declare Finals Dividend of ₹3 /- Per Equity Share for The Financial Year 2022-23 
 

  

 

Signed this _____day of _____2023  

 
Signature of Shareholder____________  

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)________________ Signature of the shareholder across Revenue Stamp 

Note: 

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not 
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2) The proxy need not be a member of the company. 
3) The holder/proxy may vote either for or against each resolution.  

Affix Revenue Stamp 
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ANNEXURE-2 

Additional information on Director(s) recommended for appointment/re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard – 2 

 

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.2                              
 

Name of the Director Gulzeb Ahmed 

  

DIN 06546660 

Nationality Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board 03/06/2021 

Qualification Graduate 

Date of Birth 10/12/1988 

No. of Shares Held and Shareholding (%) in company 1,275 equity shares held and 0.0025 % of the Paid-Up Share 
Capital of the company 

List of Directorships held in other Companies 3 
 

Chairman/Member of the committee of the other Companies N.A. 

Chairman/Member of the committee of the Board of Directors 
of this Company  

N.A. 

Remuneration paid or sought to be paid ₹12.01 Million 

Relationship with other Directors/KMP/Manager Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed is son of Mr. Gulzar Ahmad. 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Having experience in Managing Business, leadership, 
organizational development.  

Brief Resume Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 06546660) aged about 34 years is 
the Whole Time Director of our Company. He was appointed 
on the Board of our Company w.e.f. June 03,2021. He has 
completed his Certificate in Planning and Entrepreneurship 
course in Personnel Management and Marketing 
Management from The Indian Institute of Planning and 
Management and Bachelor of Business Administration from 
Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar University, Agra. He has over 8 
Years of experience in the business and is also designated 
as CFO in our Company w.e.f July 08, 2021. 

Skills and Capabilities of an Independent Director 
required for the role and the manner in which the person meets 
such requirements 

N.A. 

Companies from which the director has resigned in the past 
three years 

N.A. 

Terms and conditions for appointment/re-appointment Executive Director liable to retire by rotation 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the year 15 
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ANNEXURES TO THE NOTICE 

ROUTE MAP FOR VENUE OF 15THANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

AT “Jaypee Palace Hotel & Convention Centre” Fatehabad Road, Tajganj, Agra, Uttar Pradesh-282001 at 5:00 P.M” 

 

 

 

LINK OF THE MAP: 

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Jaypee+Palace+Hotel+%26+Convention+Centre+-

+5+Star+Deluxe+Hotel+in+Agra/@27.1538551,78.071379,15z/data=!4m9!3m8!1s0x3974713cc4a9238b:0x94adedd7bc3afe

5b!5m2!4m1!1i2!8m2!3d27.1538551!4d78.071379!16s%2Fg%2F1wn_4hx_?entry=ttu 
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ANNEXURE-3 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

Regd Off: 18A/5/3 Tajview Crossing Fatehabad Road Agra, UP 282001 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be presented at the entrance) 

15th Annual General Meeting on Friday on 22nd September, 2023 

 

 

 

 

I certify that I am a registered Shareholder/Proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. I hereby record my presence at 

the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company at “Jaypee Palace Hotel & Convention Centre” Fatehabad Road, Tajganj, 
Agra, Uttar Pradesh-282001” at 5:00 P.M on Friday, 22nd September, 2023. 

 

            Members’ Name____________________             Proxy’s Name_______________________ 

 

 Members’/Proxy Signatures________________________ 

 

Note: 
 

1) Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the premises. 

2) Only Member/ Proxy holder can attend the meeting. 

3) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS 

before the commencement of the meeting. 

4) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

5) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the 

exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register 

of Members. 

6) Member/ Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting. 

 
 

  

Name of the Member attending meeting  

Registered Address  

Reg. Folio/DP & Client No.  

No. of Shares Held  
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ANNEXURE- 4 

 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

Regd Off: 18A/5/3 Tajview Crossing Fatehabad Road Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001 
 

BALLOT FORM 

1) Name of the first named Shareholder (In block letters): _________________________________________ 

2) Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s), 

if any: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

3) Postal Address: _________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

4) Registered Folio No. / Client ID No.: 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

5) Class of Share: _________________________________________________________________________ 

6) No. of Shares: __________________________________________________________________________ 

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote(s) in respect of Ordinary/ Special Resolutions enumerated below to be passed through ballot 

form for the businesses stated in the notice of the Company dated ________________by recording, my/our assent or dissent to 

the said resolutions by placing the tick (√) mark at the appropriate box below:  

Resolution No. Resolutions Type of Resolution No. of 
Shares 
Held 

FOR I/We 
assent to the 
resolution 

AGAINST 
I/We dissent 
to the 
resolution 

1. To Receive, consider and adopt 
the Audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2023 
together with Reports of the Board 
of Directors (“the Board”) and 
Auditors thereon. 

Ordinary    

2. To Declare Final Dividend of Rs. 
3/- Per Equity Share for The 
Financial Year 2022-23 

Ordinary    

3. To appoint a Director in place of 
Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 
06546660), who retires by rotation 
in terms of section 152 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

 
Ordinary 

   

 

 

Place: 

Date:           (Signature of the Shareholder) 

Note: Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vote. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. This Ballot Form will be provided to the Members who will physically present at the 15th Annual General Meeting for the purpose 

of voting and who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting process. 

3. Voting rights are reckoned on the basis of the shares registered in the name of the Members as on 15th September, 2023. 

4. The form should be signed by the member as per the specimen signature registered with the Company/Depository. 

5. A member can request for a duplicate ballot form, if so required. 
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6. In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, etc., the duly completed Ballot form should be accompanied by a 

certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their specimen signatures authorizing their representative. 

7. Unsigned, incomplete, improperly or incorrectly tick marked Ballot forms will be rejected. The form will also be rejected, if it is 

received torn, defaced or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult for the Scrutinizer to identify either the Member or as to 

whether the votes are in favour or against or if the signature cannot be verified. 

8. The decision of the scrutinizer on the validity of the ballot form and any other related matter shall be final. 

 
 
 
 

UPDATION OF SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 
To, 
HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
18A/5/3 Tajview Crossing Fatehabad Road 
Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001 
 
Updation of Shareholder Information 
 
I / We request you to record the following information against my / our Folio No.: 
 
General Information: 
 

Folio No.:  

Name of the first named Shareholder:  

PAN: *  

CIN / Registration No.: * 

(Applicable to Corporate Shareholders) 

 

Tel No. with STD Code:  

Mobile No.:  

Email Id:  

 
*Self-attested copy of the document(s) enclosed 
 
Bank Details: 
 

IFSC: 

(11 digit) 

 

MICR: 

(9 digit) 

 

Bank A/c Type:  

Bank A/c No.: *  

Name of the Bank:  

Bank Branch Address:  

 
* A blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of bank details. 
 
I / We hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed because of incomplete 
or incorrect information, I / we would not hold the Company / RTA responsible. I / We undertake to inform any subsequent changes 
in the above particulars as and when the changes take place. I / We understand that the above details shall be maintained till I / 
we hold the securities under the above-mentioned Folio No. / beneficiary account. 
 
 
Place:       
Date:                     Signature of Sole / First holder 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

The directors have pleasure in presenting the Directors Report and the audited accounts for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

 

WORKING HIGHLIGHTS: 

 

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of Slaughtering, processing & rendering of meat and meat products, edible 

consumable products, developing forest crops, natural products, agricultural, plantation and horticultural crops. The Directors are very 

pleased to inform you that company has received tremendous response and the same is expected to progress in future.  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

 

The Company’s Financial Performance for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 under review along with previous year figures 

are given hereunder: 

          

Summary of Standalone Financial Statement: 

                                                                                                                                                  (In ₹ Millions) 

Particulars Current Year 31.03.2023  Previous Year 31.03.2022 

Revenue from operations including other 

income 

 

31,716.29 

 

29,773.79 

Less: Expenditure 29,879.23 28,279.90 

Profit /(Loss) Before Tax  1,837.06 1,493.89 

Less: Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Tax expense related to prior years 

485.41 

-21.56 

- 

 

382.10 

-1.73 

10.15 

 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1,373.21 1,103.36 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,373.21 1,103.36 

 

Summary of Consolidated Financial Statement: 

                                                                                                                                     (In ₹ Millions) 

Particulars Current Year 31.03.2023 

 

Previous Year 31.03.2022 

 

Revenue from operations including other 

income 

32,560.91 31,389.76 

Less: Expenditure 30,825.38 29,803.64 

Profit /(Loss) Before Tax  1,735.53 1,586.12 

Less: Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Tax expense related to prior years 

 

521.13 

-20.26 

- 

 

411.87 

-0.73 

10.15 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1,234.66 1,164.83 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,234.66 1,164.83 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year under review.  

 

DIVIDEND: 

 

Your directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of ₹3/- (Rupee Three Only) per equity share of face value of ₹10/- each (i.e.30%) 

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM”).  
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In view of the changes made under the Income-tax Act, 1961 by the Finance Act, 2020, dividend paid or distributed by the Company 

shall be taxable in the hands of the Shareholders. The Company shall, accordingly, make the payment of the final dividend after 

deduction of tax at source. 

 

The dividend recommended is in accordance with the Company’s Dividend Distribution Policy (“the Policy”) adopted in pursuance  to 

the provisions of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

(“SEBI Listing Regulations”). The Policy contains broad parameters and factors while recommending/declaring dividend(s) by the 

Board of Directors. The Policy is available on the Company’s website at https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/3.-

Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND ("IEPF"): 

The company does not have any dividend which remains unclaimed/ unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to 

the unpaid dividend account and hence no amount has been transferred to the IEPF established by the Central Government.  

 

WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Company is having website i.e. https://www.hmagroup.coand copy of annual return of Company has been published on such 

website. The Link of the same is given below: https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Annual-Return-2021-2022.pdf 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE: 

There is no change in the Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the company during the year. 

 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ₹700,000,000/- (Rupees Seventy Crore only) divided into 70,000,000 (Seven Crore 

Only) equity shares of ₹10/- each. 

 

The Issued, subscribed & Paid-up share capital of the Company is ₹47,51,28,750 (Rupees Forty-Seven Crore Fifty-One Lakhs Twenty 

Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Only) divided into 4,75,12,875 (Four Crore Seventy Five Lakhs Twelve Thousand Eight Hundred 

Seventy Five) equity shares of ₹10/- each. 

 

CAPITAL STRUCUTRE AFTER FINANCIAL YEAR BUT BEFORE THE DATE OF ANNUAL REPORT: 

There is change in Paid -up Share Capital of the Company after the end of Financial Year but before the date of Annual Report: - 

 

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company increased from ₹47,51,28,750 (Rupees Forty Seven Crore Fifty One Lakhs Twenty 

Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Only) divided into 4,75,12,875 (Four Crore Seventy Five Lakhs Twelve Thousand Eight Hundred 

Seventy Five) equity shares of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs.500,769,770 /- (Rupees Fifty Crore and Seven Lakhs Sixty Nine 

Thousand Seven Hundred and Seventy only) divided into 500,769,77 (Five Crore Seventy Six Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy 

Seven only) by way of  Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 82,05,127 (Eighty Two lakhs Five Thousand One Hundred and Twenty Seven ) 

equity shares of ₹10/-( Rupees Ten Only) consisting of Fresh issue of 2,564,102 (Twenty-Five Lakhs Sixty-Four Thousand One Hundred 

and Two) equity shares and offer for sale of 5,641,025 (Fifty-Six Lakhs Forty-One Thousand and Twenty-Five) equity shares   

 

STATE OF AFFAIRS: 

Your Company is engaged in the business of Slaughtering, processing & rendering of meat and meat products, edible consumable 

products, developing forest crops, natural products, agricultural, plantation and horticultural crops as mentioned in its Memorandum 

of Association of the company. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year. 

 

DEPOSITORY SERVICES: 

The Company’s Equity Shares have been admitted to the depository mechanism of the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

and also the Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL). As a result the investors have an option to hold the shares of the 

Company in a dematerialized form in either of the two Depositories. The Company has been allotted ISIN No.  

INE0ECP01016.Shareholders therefore are requested to take full benefit of the same and lodge their holdings with Depository 

Participants [DPs] with whom they have their demat Accounts for getting their holdings in electronic form. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 

There have been no material changes and commitments which have occurred. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL YEAR: 

There have been material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred  

between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report:- 

 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

44

https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/3.-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/3.-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
http://www.hmagroup.co/
https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Annual-Return-2021-2022.pdf


 

 

Paid up share capital of the company increased as the Company got listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock 

Exchange on 04.07.2023 with Fresh issue of 2,564,102 (Twenty Five Lakhs Sixty Four Thousand One Hundred and Two ) equity shares 

and offer for sale of 5,641,025 equity shares which opened for subscription on for Anchor Investor on June 19,2023 and closed on June 

19,2023 and for Public opened on June 20,2023 and closed on June 23,2023 wherein 82,05,127 Equity Shares, be and hereby issued to 

respective bidders.  

      

APPLICATION UNDER SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SETTLEMENT PROCEEDINGS) REGULATIONS, 

2018: 

There has been no application under Securities and Exchange Board of India (settlement proceedings) regulations, 2018 during the 

financial year to which the financial statements of the Company relate and the date of the report. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE 

GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:  
During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

1. Changes in Directors 

There is a change during the financial year in the composition of the Board of Directors of the company: - 

 

 Appointment of Bhumika Parwani as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the company w.e.f. 26.09.2022 

 

 Resignation of Swapnla Gupta from the post of Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 30.09.2022. 

 

2. Changes in Directors Between the Date of The Board Report and End of Financial Year:  

There is no change in directors after the end of the financial year to which the board report relates in the composition of the Board of 

Directors of the company. 

 

3. Director Retire by Rotation: 

Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 06546660), Whole-time director of the company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting and being eligible, he offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

4. Declaration by The Independent Directors 

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they continue to meet the  

criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013, Regulations 16 and 26 of the Securities and 

Exchange board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors have also 

confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

5. Changes in Key Managerial Personnel 

The appointment of Key Managerial Personnel is mandatory as per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the company fall in  

the limits as prescribed under section 203 of Companies Act 2013 (“Act”). 
 

The existing composition of the Company's board is fully in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Act 2013 and applicable 

regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 having 

the following details of Directors/Key managerial Personnel: 

 

S.NO NAME OF DIRECTOR DESIGNATION DIN/PAN 

1.  Mr. Wajid Ahmed Managing Director 01312261 

2.  Mr.  Gulzar Ahmad Chairman cum Whole time Director 01312305 

3.  Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed Whole Time Director 06546660 

4.  Mr. Amit Goyal Independent Director 05146923 

5.  Mr. Gaurav Rajendra Luthra Independent Director 08023492 

6.  Mrs. Bhumika Parwani Independent Director 09732792 

7.  Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed Chief Financial Officer AIIPA0593N 

8.  Mr. Nikhil Sundrani Company Secretary FVLPS2705B 
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has following Subsidiary/Wholly owned Subsidiary/Associates namely.  

 

Sr. No Name of the Company Subsidiary/Wholly owned 

Subsidiary/Associates 

1.  FNS Agro Foods Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

2.  HMA Natural Foods Private Limited Subsidiary 

3.  HMA Food Export Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

4.  Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

5.  United Farm Products Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

6.  Laal Agro Food Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

7.  JFF Exports Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

8.  Federal Agro Industries Private Limited Subsidiary 

9.  Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP Associates 

10.  Reliable Agro Foods Associates 

11.  International Agro Food Exports Associates 

 

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES AND THEIR 

CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REPORT: 

The company have subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies during the financial year under review, the highlights of 

performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the company 

during the period under report is mentioned in Annexure-A-Form AOC-1 as a part of this report. 

 

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT 

AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF: 

During the period under review, there has been no one time settlement from the banks or financial institutions.  

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal control system, which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and 

protected and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Company’s internal control system comprises 

audit and compliance by in-house Internal Audit Division, supplemented by internal audit checks. Independence of the audit and 

compliance is ensured by direct reporting of Internal Audit Division to the Audit Committee of the Board.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks which may threaten the 

existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. R isk 

mitigation process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy. 

The Board of the Company has evaluated a risk management to monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The audit 

committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions 

are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 

The Risk Management Policy is available on the website of the Company at https://www.hmagroup.co.  

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/S MAPPS AND COMPANY, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 012796C), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of 

the company at the Annual General Meeting held on 30thNovember 2021, for a term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of 

this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of sixth Annual General Meeting to be held in 2026, for a term of 5 (five) year. 

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Report. There has been no qualification, 

reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report. 

The statutory auditor report is annexed to this annual report. There are no adverse remarks on disclosure by the statutory auditors in 

their report. They have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company during the year under review.  

 

AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification. The notes to accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report 

are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any comments. 
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BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITORS’ REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2022-2023 given by M/s MAPPS AND COMPANY, to the shareholders does not contain 

any qualification. The notes to accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any 

comments. 

 

The Secretarial Auditor Report for the financial year 2022-2023 given by M/s R.C. Sharma and Associates to the shareholders 

does not contain any qualification. The matters referred to in the Secretarial Auditor Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not 

call for any comments. 

 

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR: 

As per auditors’ report, no fraud u/s 143(12) reported by the auditor.   

 

LISTING OF SHARES: 

The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited and NSE Limited. 
 

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

There have been some related party transactions, between the Company and the Directors and the management and the relatives of 

KMP, which are in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length basis. 
 

Accordingly pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act 2013, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred 

to in Section 188(1) along with the justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements in Form AOC-2 form part of the report 

and enclosed in this report as ANNEXURE –B. 

 

POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT: 

The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, 

prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and has in place a Policy on Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There was no complaint received from any 

employee during the financial year 2022-2023. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF THE ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

Particulars under Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 do not apply to the company as the company 

has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights during the financial year 2022-2023. 

 

FIXED DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public, and as on March 31, 2023 the 

Company had no unclaimed deposits or interest thereon due to any depositor. 

 

DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 

under review. During the year 2022-23, Company has filed for DPT-3 in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

As an integral part of our commitment to good corporate citizenship, your Company strongly believes in adopting steps to improve the 

quality of life of the people in the communities around us. Founded on the philosophy that society is not just another stakeholder in its 

business, but the prime purpose of it, the Company, across its various operations is committed to making a positive contribut ion 

towards achieving long-term stakeholder value creation. 

 

As the operations have expanded, your Company has retained a collective focus on the various areas of corporate sustainability 

that impact people, environment and the society at large. 

 

We have annexed a report called “Annual Report on CSR Activities” (CSR-2) as Annexure-C and you can extract more details 

about CSR Expenditure during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM: 

As Per Regulation 22 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 it is mandatory for every listed company to formulate a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine conc ern. 

According to section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 it is mandatory for the company to disclose the establishment of such  

mechanism on the website of the company and in the Board’s Report. 
 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism, through a Whistle Blower Policy, where Directors and employees can voice their  

genuine concerns or grievances about any unethical or unacceptable business practice. A whistle-blowing mechanism not only helps 

the Company in detection of fraud, but is also used as a corporate governance tool leading to prevention and deterrence of misconduct. 
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It provides direct access to the employees of the Company to approach the Compliance Officer or the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee, where necessary. The Company ensures that genuine Whistle Blowers are accorded complete protection from any kind 

of unfair treatment or victimization. 

 

The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors and employees who avail of the mechanism 

and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in the exceptional cases. We affirm that during the financial 

year 2022-23, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

The Vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at  https://www.hmagroup.co. The web link 

of the same is https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/10.Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.pdf 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 

2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 

 There are no applications made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 2016 during the year.  

 

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT 

AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF: 

 

During the period under review, there has been no one time settlement from the banks or financial institutions. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Company is pleased to report that during the year under reporting, the industrial relations were cordial.  

 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors of the Company met Fifteen times during the year in respect of which proper notices were given and the 

proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the purpose. The intervening 

gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. Dates of Board of Directors Meeting is 

mentioned in below table 

 

Table of Board of Directors Meeting 

S.NO  DATE OF MEETING 

1.  12.04.2022 

2.  09.05.2022 

3.  10.06.2022 

4.  18.07.2022 

5.  13.08.2022 

6.  26.08.2022 

7.  15.09.2022 

8.  30.09.2022 

9.  13.10.2022 

10.  18.11.2022 

11.  12.12.2022 

12.  09.01.2023 

13.  04.02.2023 

14.  24.02.2023 

15.  10.03.2023 

 

The names of members of the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings is as under: 

 

Name of Directors, Number of Meetings attended/ Total Meetings held during the F.Y. 2022-23 

Name of the Director No of Meetings Eligible to 

Attend 

No of meetings Attended 

Gulzar Ahmad 15 15 

Wajid Ahmad 15 15 

Amit Goyal 15 14 

Gulzeb Ahmed 15 15 

Gaurav Rajendra Luthra 15 15 

Bhumika Parwani 8 0 

Swapnla Gupta 8 3 
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own 

performance and that of its Committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance 

evaluation of the independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. The 

Board works with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria. The Board has carried out an 

evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as (including chairman) the evaluation of the working of its Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company.  
The Board has devised questionnaire to evaluate the performances of each of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 

Such questions are prepared considering the business of the Company and the expectations that the Board have from each of the  

Directors. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas:  

 

1. Attendance at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings;  

2. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations;  

3. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance;  

4. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 

 

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies, Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the 

Independent Directors of the Company was held to review the performance of Non- Independent Directors, the Board as whole, 

including the Chairman of the Company and to discuss the matters related to the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 

between the Company management and the Board. The Independent Director Meeting for this Matter was held by the Company on 

30th March, 2023 and the information regarding this matter has been preserved and kept under record by the Company Secretary of 

the Company. 

 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

The Audit Committee met 8 times during the financial year ended March 31, 2023. No meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

was held during the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The nomination and remuneration committee met 5 times during the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. Members of the Committees discussed the matter placed and contributed valuable inputs on the matters 

brought before. 

 

Additionally, during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Independent Directors held a separate meeting in compliance with 

the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on 30.03.2023. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The company being a listed company falls under the criteria as defined under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 

and 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. The company has re-constituted the Audit Committee with Mr. 

Gaurav Rajendra Luthra (Non-Executive Independent Director and Chairman of the committee), Mrs. Bhumika Parwani (Non-

Executive Independent Director and member of the committee) and Mr. Wajid Ahmed   (member of the committee) w.e.f 13th Day of 

October, 2022. 

 

Eight Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23. The Committee meetings were held on 12.04.2022, 

09.05.2022, 11.07.2022, 26.08.2022, 13.10.2022, 07.01.2023, 01.02.2023 and 01.03.2023. The composition and attendance of the 

members of the Audit Committees: 

 

Name of the Director Position in committee No. of meetings attended 

Mr. Gaurav Rajendra Luthra Chairman 8 

Mrs. Bhumika Parwani Member 4 

Mr. Wajid Ahmed Member 8 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Board has a Nomination and Remuneration policy, which is generally in line with the existing industry practice and applic able 

laws. The policy has been displayed on the Company’s website viz. https://www.hmagroup.co. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assist the Board in overseeing the method, criteria and quantum of compensation for  

directors and senior management based on their performance and defined assessment criteria. The Committee formulates the criteria 

for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors & the Board of Directors; identifying the persons who are qualified to 

become directors, and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

The terms of the reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the areas mentioned under section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
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The company has re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Mr. Amit Goyal (Non-Executive Independent Director 

and Chairman of the committee), Mrs. Bhumika Parwani (Non-Executive Independent Director and member of the committee) and 

Mr. Gaurav Rajendra Luthra (Non-Executive Independent Director and member of the committee) w.e.f 13th Day of October, 2022. 

 

Five Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23. The Committee meetings 

were held on 12.04.2022, 11.07.2022, 15.09.2022, 30.09.2022 and 07.01.2023. The composition and Attendance of the members of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the financial year 2022-2023 is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Position in committee No. of meetings attended 

Mr. Amit Goyal Chairman 5 

Mrs. Bhumika Parwani Member 0 

Mr. Gaurav Rajendra Luthra Member 5 

 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The company has duly constituted the Stakeholder Relationship Committee with Mrs. Bhumika Parwani (Non-Executive Independent 

Director and Chairperson of the committee), Mr. Wajid Ahmed (Member of the committee) and Mr. Gulzar Ahmad (Member of the 

committee) w.e.f 13th Day of October, 2022. 

 

The composition and attendance of the members of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee for the financial year 2022-23 is as 

follows: 

 

Name of the Director Position in committee 

Mrs. Bhumika Parwani Chairman 

Mr. Gulzar Ahmad Member 

Mr. Wajid Ahmed Member 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection, appointment 

and remuneration of Directors and KMPs and is also available in the website of the company at https://www.hmagroup.co 

 

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/Key Managerial Personnel 

 

i. Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors: 

 

(a) The Remuneration/Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be governed as per 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and 

the approvals obtained from the Members of the Company. 

 

(b) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it may consider 

appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors. 

 

ii. Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Directors: 

 

a) The Non-Executive/Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

b) All remuneration of the Non-Executive/Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed 

under Section 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/limits as provided under the Companies Act, 

2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration 

shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of 

Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

 

c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and shall also not be eligible to participate in any share-

based payment schemes of the Company. 

 

d) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive/ Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional nature shall 

not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

 

 The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

 In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that profession.  
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iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

(a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel shall consist of fixed pay, in compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Policy. 
(b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund, 

pension schemes, etc. as decided from time to time in accordance with the Company’s Policy.  
 

Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors 

 

Non-executive Directors of a company’s Board of Directors add substantial value to the Company through their contribution to the 

Management of the Company. In addition, they also play an appropriate control role. 

 

 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 

 The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a Policy for selection, appointment 

and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

Independence of Directors. 

 

The said policy is available on the Company’s Website. Website Link: https://https://www.hmagroup.co. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

As required under Section 204 of the Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 

2014, the Company is required to appoint a Secretarial Auditor for auditing the secretarial and related records of the Company and 

to provide a report, in this regard M/s R.C. Sharma & Associates, was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the company for the 

financial year 2022-2023.  

 

The Secretarial Audit Report in (FORM MR-3) made by practicing company secretary in Agra M/s R. C. Sharma & Associates for 

the financial year 2022-2023 contains no qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Secretarial Audit Report made by 

practicing company secretary M/s R. C. Sharma & Associates for the financial year 2022-2023 is annexed as (ANNEXURE-D). 

 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s R. C. Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for the financial 

year 2022-2023. 

 

 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The loan given or guarantee provided, or investment made by the Company during the financial year 2022-2023 as per Section 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 have been given in the Balance Sheet and Audit Report. 

 

 COST RECORD AND COST AUDIT:  

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, are not 

applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company. 

 

 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of 

employees have enabled the Company to maintain efficiency in the industry. It has taken various steps to improve productivity across 

organization. 

  

 COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD: 

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that 

such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 

Regulations, 2015, (SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) a report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from the Practic ing 

Company Secretary towards compliance of the provisions of Corporate Governance, forms an integral part of this Annual Report 

and are given in Annexure-E. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION: 

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors 

pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (“SEBI”) under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such 

as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, development of suitable 

strategies and business plans at appropriate time and its effectiveness; etc. 

 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of 

the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness/conduct of committee meetings, process and procedures followed 

for discharging its functions etc. 

 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“RC”) reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as developing and managing / executing business plans, operational plans, risk management, and financial 

affairs of the organization and the contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on 

the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also 

evaluated on the key aspects of his role like demonstration of leadership qualities, managing relationship with the members of the 

Board and management etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the board as a whole 

and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors 

and also assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the Board that is 

necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The same was discussed in the board meeting that 

followed the meeting of the independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its committees and individual direc tors 

was also discussed. 

 

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board and in the evaluation the Director who was 

subject to evaluation did not participate. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall be determined whether 

to extend or continue their term of appointment, as and when their respective term expires. 

 

 INTERNAL AUDITORS 

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors M/s A.L Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants of the company to conduct 

Internal Audit of the accounts maintained by the Company for financial year 2022-23. 

 There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark made by the Internal Auditors in their report 

 

 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 there is no employee drawing remuneration above the limits set under  Section 

197 (12) read with  Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the 

disclosure as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies(Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Board’s report as ANNEXURE-F. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition including the result of operations of the Company for the year under 

review, as required under regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is given as a separate statement in Annual Report as ANNEXURE-G. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 are furnished in below 

 

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

We are totally committed to efficient plant operation & energy conservation in its Power Plants. The Company has already taken 

many steps for Energy Conservation in the past. New measures undertaken this year are as attached as Annexure-H 

 

 BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTANABILITY REPORT 

As per the provisions of Regulation 34(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Annual Report of the top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization shall 

include a Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report. But the Company was not being one of such top 1000 listed entities at 

the end of the financial year 31stMarch, 2023, so it is not required to annex any Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report. 
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm 

that: – 

i. that in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the applicable Accounting 

Standards had been followed and that there were no material departures; 

ii. that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year under review;  

iii. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

iv. that the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 on a going concern basis; and 

v. that the directors of the Company, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

vi. that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

Declaration by the Managing Director (MD), inter alia, confirming that the Board of Directors of the company have complied with the 

“CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS”, is attached and forms part of Annual report. 

 

The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for members of the Board and Senior Management personnel of the Company. The 

Code lays down, in details, the standards of business conduct, ethics and governance. Code of Conduct has also been posted on  

the Company’s Website https://https://www.hmagroup.co.  

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

The Company has clearly defined organization structure and lines of authority and sufficient Control is exercised through business 

review by the Management. The Company has adopted a well-defined system to ensure adequacy and efficiency of the Internal 

Financial Control Function. 

 

INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Designated Persons’ 
(“the Code”) in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”). The Code is 
applicable to promoters, member of promoter group, all Directors and such designated employees who are expected to have access 

to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring 

adherence to the said PIT Regulations. The Company has also formulated ‘The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)’ in compliance with the PIT Regulations. This Code is displayed on the Company’s 
website https://https://www.hmagroup.co.  
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We thank our customers, vendors, investors and bankers for their continued support during the year. We place on record our 

appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, 

solidarity, co-operation, and support. 

 

We thank the Government of India, Ministry of Commerce &Industry, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Department 

of Economic Affairs, Customs & Excise Departments, Income Tax 

 

Department, Reserve Bank of India, BSE, NSE, NSDL, CDSL and various bankers, various State Governments and other 
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Your Directors appreciate and value the trust imposed upon them by the members of the Company. 

 

By Order of the Board 

For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

Sd/- 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman cum Whole Time Director 

DIN: 01312305 

Place: Agra  

Date:  29.08.2023 
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ANNEXURE-A 
FORM AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules,2014) 

 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or  joint 

ventures 
 

Part: A Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rupees) 

 
           (In ₹Millions) 

1.Sl.No 1 2 3 4 5 
2.Name of the subsidiary FNS Agro 

Foods 
Limited 

HMA 
Natural 
Foods 
Private 
Limited 
 

HMA Food 
Export 
Private 
Limited 
 

United 
Farm 
Product 
Private 
Limited 

Laal Agro 
Food 
Private 
Limited 

3.The date since when subsidiary was acquired 29.10.2016 04.04.2016 18.05.2017 23.05.2018 20.01.2020 

4.Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting period 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

6.Share capital 8.95 24.90 16.87 158.15 0.1 

7. Reserves and surplus 0.84 (1.06) 127.40 (203.22) (6.18) 

8.Total assets 
 

40.68 27.89 334.88 2116.39 71.40 

9. Total Liabilities 30.89 4.059 190.613 2,161.46 77.48 

10. Investments - - - - - 

11.Turnover 0 0 531.54 1,289.77 0 

12.Profit/loss before taxation (4.66)             (0.04) 17.80 (200.50) (0.43) 

13.Provision for taxation 0.039 - 6.08 5.109 (0.19)  

14.Profit/loss after taxation 
 

(4.70) (0.04) 11.72 (205.60) (0.24) 

15. Proposed Dividend 
 

- - - - - 

16.Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 
 

100% 90.36% 100% 100% 99.99% 

 
 

1.Sl.No 6 7 8 9 10 
2.Name of the subsidiary  

Swastik Bone 
And Gelatines 
Private Limited 

 

 
JFF Exports 
Private Limited 

 

 
Indus Farmers 
Food Co. LLP 

 
Federal Agro 
Industries 
Private Limited 

 
Reliable Agro 
Foods 

3.The date since when subsidiary was 
acquired 

27.03.2015 23.07.2020 01.12.2017 01.04.2021 09.11.2022 

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period 

01.04.2022 to       
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 
to              
31.03.2023 

01.04.2022 to           
31.03.2023 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as 
on the last date of the relevant Financial year 
in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

6.Share capital 10 0.1 33.43 9.74 15.43 

7. Reserves and surplus (18.21) (0.24) (0.62) 352.94 (1.74) 

8.Total assets 20.37 409.40 70.93 46.59 206.11 

9. Total Liabilities 28.59 409.40 38.12 103.172 53.55 

10. Investments - - - - - 

11. Turnover 0 0 0 13,679.89 208.347 

12. Profit/loss before taxation (1.16) (0.05) (0.41) 103.419 (11.56) 

13. Provision for taxation - - - 25.98 - 

14.Profit/loss after taxation (1.16) (0.05) (0.41) 77.44 (11.56) 

15. Proposed Dividend 
 

- - - - - 

16.Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 
 

100% 100% 90.46% 60% 95% 
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Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations (NA) 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. (NA) 
 

 
Part B Associates and Joint Ventures:  

 
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

 

Name of Associates/Joint Venture INTERNATIONAL AGRO FOOD EXPORTS 

1.  Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2023 

2.Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 
associated or acquired 

22.01.2015 

3.Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company 
on the year end 

Not applicable 

No. Not Applicable 

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture 29.83 

Extent of Holding (in percentage) 49.40% 

Partners’ Capital 60.36 

4.Description of how there is significant influence Control or participation in business decisions 
under an agreement 

5.Reason why the associate/ joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable 

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet 

Not Applicable 

7. Profit or Loss for the year (0.047) 

i.  Considered in Consolidation 49.40% 

ii.  Not Considered in Consolidation 50.60% 

 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. (NA) 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. (NA) 
 
 
Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified. 
 
By the order of the Board of Directors 
FOR HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED   
 
 
 
Sd/-    Sd/- 
Gulzar Ahmad   Wajid Ahmed  
Whole time Director                 Managing Director  
DIN: 01312305    DIN: 01312261 
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ANNEXURE-B 
Form AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section 

(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transaction under third proviso thereto.  
 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

NIL 

e)        Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 
NIL 

f)         Date of approval by the Board NIL 

g)        Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

h)       Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting 
as required under first proviso to section 188 

NIL 

 
 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 

HMA Food Export Private Limited 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
Reliable Agro Foods 
Relative of KMP is Director: 
Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Facility Utilization Charges 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 Year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business: 
HMA Food Export Private Limited. Nil 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited Nil 
Reliable Agro Foods Nil 
Gausia Cold Storage Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

 
3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.                                    (in ₹ millions)  

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 
Reliable Agro Foods 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Cooling Charges 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 Year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business: 
HMA Food Export Private Limited ₹390.63 

Reliable Agro Foods ₹208.35 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

4. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Relative of KMP: 

Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Commission on sales 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi ₹12.81 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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5. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
United Farm Products Private Limited  

Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private Limited 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 
Relative of KMP is Director: 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited 
Black Gold Tanners  

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Revenue from operations 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Federal Agro Industries Private Limited ₹1.73 
United Farm Products Private Limited ₹5.37 
Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited ₹0.15 

HMA Food Export Private Limited ₹0.05 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited ₹42.61 
Black Gold Tanners ₹10.57 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

6. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 

LaalAgro Food Private Limited 

Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
United Farm Products Private Limited  
 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchase of finished goods  

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited ₹1.51 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited ₹12,193.78 
United Farm Products Private Limited ₹1,186.43 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

7. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Relative of KMP: 

Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 

Parvez Alam 
Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 
Gulzair Ahmed 

Director/KMP of the company: 
Gulzar Ahmad 
Wajid Ahmed 

Gulzeb Ahmed 
Nikhil Sundrani 
Bhumika Parwani 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Remuneration 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Mohammad Kamil Qureshi ₹18 
Parvez Alam ₹18 

Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi ₹18 
Gulzair Ahmed ₹5.30 
Gulzar Ahmad ₹18 

Wajid Ahmed ₹18 
Gulzeb Ahmed ₹12.01 
Nikhil Sundrani ₹0.42 

Bhumika Parwani ₹0.02 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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8. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 
SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
Relative of KMP is Director: 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited 
Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Reimbursement of expense incurred on behalf of 

subsidiary 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Federal Agro Industries Private Limited :-Nil 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited:- Nil 
Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited:-Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

9. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited 
JFF Export Private Limited 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 

United Farm Products Private Limited  
Reliable Agro Foods 
HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Advance given to related parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited ₹1.88 
JFF Export Private Limited ₹9.22 
HMA Food Export Private Limited ₹904.87 

United Farm Products Private Limited ₹10.61 
Reliable Agro Foods ₹495.65 
HMA Natural Foods Private Limited ₹0.03 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

10. *Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited 

United Farm Products Private Limited  
Realiable Agro Foods  
HMA Food Export Private Limited 

 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Advances received back from related parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Laal Agro Food Private Limited ₹3.57 

United Farm Products Private Limited ₹1,252.47 
Realiable Agro Foods ₹ 488.50 
HMA Food Export Private Limited ₹ 914.01 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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11. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.     (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
United Farm Products private Limited 
FNS Agro Foods Limited 

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Loan Given 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
United Farm Products private Limited ₹2,351.88 

FNS Agro Foods Limited ₹1.00 
Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP ₹14.05 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

 
12. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.       (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
United Farm Products private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Loan Received Back 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

United Farm Products private Limited                    Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

13. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Relative of KMP: 

Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 
Director/KMP of the company: 
Wajid Ahmed 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Borrowing taken from related parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi:- Nil 
Wajid Ahmed :- Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

14. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Director/KMP of the company: 

Wajid Ahmed 

Gulzeb Ahmed 
Relative of KMP: 
Mohammad KamilQureshi 

Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Borrowing repaid to related parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Wajid Ahmed:- Nil 

Mohammad Kami lQureshi:- Nil 
Gulzeb Ahmed:- Nil 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi:- Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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15. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.                               (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Director/KMP of the Company: 
Gulzar Ahmad 
Wajid Ahmed 
Relative of KMP: 
Zulfiqar Ahmed Qureshi 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 
Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 
Parvez Alam 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Dividend Paid 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Gulzar Ahmad ₹15.21 
Wajid Ahmed ₹30.39 
Zulfiqar Ahmed Qureshi ₹15.21 

Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi ₹15.21 
Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi ₹15.21 
Parvez Alam ₹3.80 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

16. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.  (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 

United Farm Products private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Guarantee given for subsidiary company 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
United Farm Products private Limited:- Nil 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

 
17. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.  (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Company: 

Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 
Director/KMP of the Company: 
Gulzar Ahmad 
Wajid Ahmed 

Gulzeb Ahmed 
Relative of KMP is director: 
Taj View Builder and promoters Private Limited 
Taj View Construction Private Limited 
Agra Better Homes LLP 
Relative of KMP: 
Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 
Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 
Zakiya Qureshi 
Parvez Alam 
Nafees Begaum 
Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Guarantee given on behalf of the Company 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Taj View Builder and promoters Private Limited ₹2400.00 
Taj View Construction private Limited ₹2400.00 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited ₹2400.00 
Agra Better Homes LLP ₹1250.00 
HMA Food Export Private Limited ₹2400.00 
Gulzar Ahmad ₹3650.00 
Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi ₹3650.00 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi ₹2400.00 
Wajid Ahmed ₹3650.00 
Mohammad Kamil Qureshi ₹2400.00 
Gulzeb Ahmed ₹3650.00 
Zakiya Qureshi ₹3650.00 
Parvez Alam ₹2400.00 
Nafees Begaum ₹2400.00 

Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi ₹2400.00 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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18. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.                              (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Companies: 
United Farm Products private Limited 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Guarantee Commission 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

United Farm Products private Limited ₹ 0.79 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

19. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Company: 
Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private Limited  
Relative of KMP is Director: 
Black Gold Tanners  
HMA Leather Export Private Limited  

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Trade Receivables 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 Year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private Limited ₹23.02 

Black Gold Tanners ₹6.47 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited ₹24.42 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

 
20. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Company: 
United Farm Products Private Limited 
FNS Agro Foods Limited 

Reliable Agro Foods 
Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Loans Receivables 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

United Farm Products Private Limited ₹1,466.31 
FNS Agro Foods Limited ₹30.69 
Reliable Agro Foods ₹17.62 

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP ₹18.95 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
 

21. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary company: 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited 
JFF Export Private Limited 
HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 

HMA Food Export Private Limited  
Reliable Agro Foods 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Advance to Related Parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited ₹76.72 
JFF Export Private Limited ₹409.53 
HMA Natural Foods Private Limited ₹0.55 

MA Food Export Private Limited ₹136.07 
Reliable Agro Foods ₹9.62 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 
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22. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.                                   (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Relative of KMP: 
Gulzar Ahmad  

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Advance to Related Parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction As per agreed terms and conditions 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Gulzar Ahmad ₹0.13 

 

 
23. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.    (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Subsidiary Company: 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 
Relative of KMP is Director: 
Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited 
 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Trade payables 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 Year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 

Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited ₹23.01 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited ₹17.86 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

 
24. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.                      (in ₹ millions) 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Relative of KMP is Director: 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited   
 

b)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  Advance from Related Parties 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 Year 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

In the ordinary course of business. 
HMA Leather Export Private Limited  ₹Nil 
 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 01.04.2022 

f)         Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 

By the order of the Board of Directors 
FOR HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED   
 
Sd/- 
Gulzar Ahmad 
Whole time Director and Chairman 
DIN: 01312305  
Date: 29.08.2023 
Place: Agra 
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ANNEXURE–C  

TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company emphasize initiatives in specific areas of social development that 

would include primary, secondary education, kills development, vocational training, health and hygiene, preventive health care 

and sanitation, women empowerment, environment and ecological protection, character  building by providing training 

opportunities in sports and cultural activities etc. The CSR Policy is available on thewebsiteoftheCompanyatWeb-

link:https://www.hmagroup.co/wpcontent/uploads/2023/07/7.-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf 

 

2. The composition of the CSR Committee: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year 

1 Mr. Gulzar Ahmad Chairman 5           5 

2 Ms. Bhumika Parwani Member 5 3 

3 Mr. Amit Goyal     Member 5        5 

 

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company: 

Web-link:https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/c-Composition-of-various-committees-of-Board-of-

Directors_compressed.pdf 

 https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/7.-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf 

 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per sub section 5 of Section 135: ₹1026.98 Millions 

b) Two percent of Average Net Profit of the Company as per sub-section 5 of Section 135: ₹20.5 Million 

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Not Applicable 

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c-5d): ₹20.5Million 
 

6. a) Amount spent of CSR Projects(Both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ₹20.5Million 

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable 

c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, If applicable: Not Applicable 

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c): ₹20.5million 

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year (in 

₹ Million) 

Amount Unspent (in  ₹ Million) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

sub-section 6 of Section135 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as 

per second proviso to sub-section 

5 Of Section135 

Amoun
t 

Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

20.5 Million — — — — — 
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f) Excess amount for set off, if any 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Amount 
(in ₹ 

Million) 

i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section 5 of Section 135 20.5 

ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 20.5 

iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 

iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any 

Nil 

v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 

 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section 6 

Of Section 
135 (in ₹ 
Million) 

Balance 
amount in 
unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section 6 

of 
Section135

(in  ₹  
Million) 

Amount 
Spent in 

the 
Financial 

Year 

(in  ₹  
Million) 

Amount transferred 
to a Fund as 
specified under 
Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to 

sub-section 5 of 
Section 135, if any 

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeedin
g 

Financial 
Years 
(in  ₹ 

Million) 

Deficiency
, if any 

Amount 

(in  ₹  
Million) 

Date of 

Transfer 

1 FY2019-20 — — — — — — — 

2 FY2020-21 — — — — — — — 

3 FY2021-22 — — — — — — — 

         

 

8. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

Sr. No Name of the project 
Item from the list of 

activities in 

Schedule VII to the 

Act 

Particulars of the Projects 
Amount 

spent 

for the 

project (In  ₹  

Million) 

1.  
SANSTHANAM ABHAY 

DAANAM 

Animal welfare Contribution towards Bird & Animal 

Hospital 

4 

2.  
MISSION HOPP Social Welfare Contribution toward Social Welfare 

Trust/Organization 

2.5 

3.  
BIPINCHANDRA SEVA 

KARYA TRUST 

Social Welfare Contribution towards Social Welfare 

Trust 

2.5 

4.  
DNIGHT WING S YOUNG 

FOUNDATION 

Education Contribution towards Trust that 

support education, Cow Shelter, Free 

Medicines, along with foods 

5 

5.  
KRISHNAWANTI 

MEMORIAL EDUCATIONAL 

SOCIETY 

Education Contribution towards Society that 

provide educational support 

3.5 

6.  
OMKAR ANDH APANG 

SAMAJIK SANSTHA 

Social Welfare Contribution towards Social Welfare 

and handicaps 

3.5 

9. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the 

Financial Year: No 

 
10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per sub-section 5 of Section 

135: Not Applicable 
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The Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee of the Board of Directors: 

 

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is incompliance with CSR objectives and Policy of 

the Company. 

 

 
 
 
Place : Agra 
Date: 29.08.2023 

 
Sd/- 
Gulzeb Ahmed 
DIN: 06546660 
Chief Financial Officer 

 
Sd/- 
Gulzar Ahmad 
DIN: 01312305 

  Chairman, CSR Committee 
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CS R.C. SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

MumbaDhaam  
Block No. 30, Shop No. 218 
Opposite VikasBhawan 

Sanjay Place, Agra-282002 
Mobile: 9319104242  

E-mail: rcsharmacs@yahoo.com 

 
Annexure-D 
 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2023 
[Pursuant To Section 204(1) Of TheCompanies Act, 2013 And Rule No.9 Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration 
Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2023 

 
To, 
The Members, 

HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 
I/We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by HMA Agro Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my/our verification of the HMA Agro  Industries Limited’sbooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns  filed and other 

records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and  authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,  I/We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March ,2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 
 

I/we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by HMA Agro Industries 
Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March ,2023 according to the provisions of: 
 

(i)The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 
 
(ii)The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder. 

 
(iii)The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder. 
 

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 
 

(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;  
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 

1999; NA 
(f)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; NA 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 

Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; NA and 
(i)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; NA 

 
(vi)Other laws applicable to the Company as given below, we have relied on the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on the basis of information provided to us;  

(a). Industry Related Legislation 
1. The Factories Act, 1948 
2. Food Safety Standards Act, 2006 (the “FSS Act”) 
3. Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Development Authority Act, 1985 ("APEDA Act”)  
4. Electricity Act, 2003. 
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(b). Employee And Labour Related Legislations: 
1. The Code on Wages, 2019; 

2. The Code on Social Security, 2020; 
3. The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020; and 
4. The Industrial Relations Code, 2020 

5. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
(c). Tax Related Laws: 

1. Income-tax Act, 196 
2. Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 
3. Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 

4. The Customs Act, 1962 and the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 
5. Professional Tax 

 

(d). Intellectual Property Laws 
1. The Trademarks Act, 1999 

 

(e). Other Applicable Laws: 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 
2. The Consumer Protection Act, 1986 

3. The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (“T.P. Act”) 
4. The Sale of Good Act, 1930 
5. The Registration Act, 1908 

6. The Indian Contract Act, 1872 
7. The Specific Relief Act, 1963 
8. Competition Act, 2002 

9. Legislations pertaining to Stamp Duty 
10 .Legal Metrology Act, 2009 

 

(f). Environmental Laws 
1. The Environment Protection Act, 1986 and Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986 
2. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 (“the Water Act”) 
3. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 (“the Air Act”) 
4. Hazardous Waste Management Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 

 

(g). Regulations Regarding Foreign Investment 
1. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange(s) and National Stock Exchange. 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned. 

 
We further report that 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.  
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
 
  Sd/- 

R C SHARMA 

PROPRIETOR 

FCS NO. 5524 

CP NO.7957 

 

DATE: 05.08.2023 

PLACE: AGRA 

UDIN: F005524E000748805 
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CS R.C. SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

MumbaDhaam  
Block No. 30, Shop No. 218 
Opposite VikasBhawan 

Sanjay Place, Agra-282002 
Mobile: 9319104242  

E-mail: rcsharmacs@yahoo.com 

 

  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT- HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED -2023 

Annexure – A 

[Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report of HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023] 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as  were  appropriate  to  obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the  contents of the Secretarial records.   The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 

are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 

our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.  

4. Where  ever  required,  we  have  obtained  the  Management  representation  about  the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

FOR R C SHARMA & ASSOCIATES  

COMPANY SECRETARIES  

 

Sd/- 

R C SHARMA 

PROPRIETOR 

FCS NO. 5524 

CP NO. 7957 

 

DATE: 05.08.2023 

PLACE: AGRA 

UDIN: F005524E000748805 
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Annexure-E 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

(Pursuant toRegulation 34 (3) and Schedule V (C) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations 
andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015).  

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company strongly supports the principles of Corporate Governance. Emphasis is laid 
on transparency, accountability and integrity in all its operations and dealings with all the stakeholders. Corporate 
Governance is an ongoing process in your Company and there is a continuous strive to improve upon its practices, in 
line with the changing demands of the business environment. These governance structures and systems are the 
foundation that provide adequate empowerment across the organization helping leverage opportunities for rapid 
sustainable growth of the Company. 
 

We aim to abide by the highest standards of good governance and ethical behaviour across all levels within the 
organisation with a zero-tolerance policy towards any deviation from these standards. 
 

The Company has ingrained the objectives of good quality Corporate Governance, which will lead to creation of value 
for all its stakeholders. The Company adopts the best of the Corporate Governance practices in its spirit, where by the 
highest level of transparency, accountability and equity is maintained at all levels of its operations. The Company 
policies are drawn keeping in mind the interest of all its stakeholders. 
 

At HMA Agro Industries Limited, it is not a mere compliance of laws, rules and regulations, but a commitment to values, 
best management practices, adherence to ethical principles in all its dealings, enhance stakeholder value and 
discharge its social responsibility while simultaneously achieve the objectives of the Company. 
 

Your Company's policy with regard to Corporate Governance is an integral part of the Management and its pursuits of 
excellence, growth, and value creation, it continuously endeavours to leverage resources to translate opportunities into 
realty. Your Company believes that all its actions and operations must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall 
stakeholders' value on a sustained basis. 
 

The Company believes that sound corporate governance is critical for enhancing and retaining stakeholder trust and 
we always seek to ensure that the Company’s performance goals are met accordingly. Based on the principles of good 
Corporate Governance the company has always strived towards building trust and confidence with its shareholders, 
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders. 
 

Your Company's policy with regard to Corporate Governance is an integral part of the Management and its pursuits of 
excellence, growth, and value creation, it continuously endeavors to leverage resources to translate opportunities into 
realty. Your Company believes that all its actions and operations must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall 
stakeholders' value on a sustained basis. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Board of HMA Agro Industries Limited is diverse comprising of highly experienced individuals and persons with 
eminent expertise who are entrusted with the responsibility of the Management, directions and performance of the 
Company. Raymond recognizes that an independent, dynamic and well-informed Board is essential to ensure the 
highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Board’s primary role is fiduciary. The Board also requests special 
invitees to attend the meetings, as appropriate. 
 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of the Company comprises six members out of which three areNon-Executive 
Independent Directors (including one Independent Women Directors), three executive directors, comprising of 
oneManaging Director and one CFO &two Whole-time Director. The tenure of Independent Directors is five consecutive 
years from the date of their appointment. 
 

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provide effective leadership and strategic guidance to the Company’s 
management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby ensuring that the management adheres to the high 
standards of ethics, transparency and disclosures. 
 

The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and an independent view to the Company’s management 
while discharging its responsibilities and ensures that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures 
which ultimately serves the long-term goals of all its stakeholders along with achieving the Company’s objectives and 
sustainable profitable growth. The Board ensures that the management is accountable for attaining the long-term goals 
of the Company and also ensures compliance with the applicable Act. 
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2.1 Brief Profile Directors and expertise 

1. GULZAR AHMAD 

(Chairman and Whole-Time Director) 
Gulzar Ahmad, aged 56 years is one of the founding Promoters and is currently designated as Chairman and 
Whole Time Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board of our Company upon incorporation i.e., 
W.e.f April 09, 2008. He is undergraduate. He has vast and diversified experience in field of trading of livestock 
and meat export business for over 3 decades. Under his stewardship, the company has grown from a small 
organisation to operating multiple processing facilities and exporting to over 40 countries. He is currently 
responsible for overall supervision of the management and affairs of the Company including the setting up of new 
plants and developing industry networks for further business development. 
 

2. WAJID AHMED 

(Managing Director) 
Wajid Ahmed, aged 39 years is the Managing Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board of our 
Company w.e.f April 01, 2013. He has completed his Bachelor of Commerce from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar 
University, Agra. He has more than 16 years of experience in the meat industry. He is currently responsible for 
overall capital expenditure items such as machinery, equipment, packaging machines etc and ensuring smooth 
functioning of the processing units. 
 

3. GULZEB AHMED 

(CFO and Whole-Time Director) 
Gulzeb Ahmed, aged 34years is the Whole Time Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board of our 
Company w.e.f June 03, 2021. He has completed his Certificate in Planning and Entrepreneurship Course in 
Personnel Management and Marketing Management from The Indian Institute of Planning and Management and 
Bachelor of Business Administration from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar University, Agra. He has over 8 years of 
experience in the business and is also designated as CFO in our Company w.e.f. July 08, 2021.  
 

4. AMIT GOYAL 

(Independent Director) 
Amit Goyal, aged 44 years is an Independent Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board of our 
Company w.e.f. June 03, 2021. He has completed his Bachelor of Legislative Law from Dr. Bhim Rao Ambedkar 
University, Agra. He is a practicing advocate by profession and is registered with the Bar Council of Uttar Pradesh 
since 2003. He has over 18 years of experience in handling Tax Litigations, civil litigations, arbitrations, 
appearances at tribunals, courts, commissions etc. 
 

5. BHUMIKA PARWANI 
(Independent Director) 
Bhumika Parwani, aged 30years is an Independent Director of our Company. She was appointed on the Board of 
our Company w.e.f. September 26, 2022. She has completed her bachelor’s in Commerce degree from Dr. 
Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Agra in the year 2013 and is also a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  
She was previously associated with PSA & Company, Anurag Sinha & Associates and V Thukral & Associates 
and is currently associated with TCI Foundation. She has an experience of around three yearsin the field of 
Financial Reporting and Accounting, Risk Advisory, Statutory Audits and Taxation. 
 

6. GAURAV R. LUTHRA 

(Independent Director) 
Gaurav Luthra, aged 40 years is an Independent Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board of our 
Company w.e.f. June 03, 2021. He is a Qualified Chartered Accountant and is a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. He has more than a decade of experience in the field of Internal Auditing, Internal 
Financial 
Controls, Taxation, Finance & Accounting, Tax Audit and Statutory Auditing. 
 

Key functions of the Board 

The Board performs various statutory and other functions in connection with managing the affairs of the Company. 
The key functions performed by the Board of the Company are: 
 

a. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, major plans of action, annual budgets and business plans, setting 
performance objectives, monitoring corporate performance and overseeing major capital expenditures, 
acquisitions and divestments. 

b. Monitoring effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices and making changes as needed. 
c. Selecting, compensating, monitoring and when necessary, replacing Key Managerial Personnel and 

overseeing succession planning. 
d. Aligning remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel and the Board with long term interests of the 

Company and its shareholders. 
e. Ensuring a transparent Board nomination process with the diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 

perspective and gender in the Board. 
f. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of management, Board members and shareholders, 

including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party transactions.  
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g. Ensuring integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, including the independent 
audit and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for risk management, 
financial and operational controls and compliance with the law and relevant standards.  

h. Overseeing the process of disclosure and communications. 
i. Monitoring and reviewing Board Evaluation framework. 

 
BOARD COMPOSITION, CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EACH DIRECTOR: 
 
The Board comprises of optimum combination of Independent and Non-Independent Directors, including Woman Director in line 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Listing Regulations. The Board of the Company has a good 
and diverse mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors with half of the Board Members comprising of Independent Directors. 
The composition of the Board represents an optimal combination of professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the 
Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. 

 
As on 31st March, 2023 the Board of Directors comprises of 6 directors, 3 of which are non-executive Independent Directors 
(Including One Independent Women Director) and other 3 directors are Executive 

Promoter Directors. Subsequent to the Year end, there was no change in the composition of Board of the Company. The number 
of Independent Directors is 4 which is in compliance with the stipulated number. All Independent Directors are person so 
eminence and bring a wide range of expertise and experience to the Board thereby ensuring the best interest of  stakeholders 

and the Company. All Independent Directors meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-section(6)of 
Section149 of the Act and under Regulation(1)(b) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.None of the Directors on the Board are 
Independent Directors of more than seven listed companies and none of  the Whole-time Directors are Independent Directors of 

any listed company. The Board had one Woman Director during the year 2022-23. 
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than10 committees and Chairperson of more than5committees (as 
specified in Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (LODR Regulations) across all the public Companies in which he/she is a Director. The 

necessary disclosures regarding committee positions in other public companies, have been made by the Directors. 
 
The details of composition of the Board as at 31.03.2023, the attendance record of the Directors at the Board Meetings held 

during the financial year 2022-23, as also the number of Directorships, Committee Chairmanships and Memberships held by 
them in other Public Companies and number of Board Meetings and dates on which held are given here below: 
 

Note: As on 31st March, 2023 our company was unlisted company. Our company got listed on 04th Day of July, 2023. As 
on date of this report Board of Directors of the company is as follows: 
 

 
^* This relates to Committee referred under Regulation 18,19 & 20 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, viz. Audit Committee, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee.   

 

 

Composition of Board ofDirectors 

Title 
(Mr. 

/ 
Ms) 

Name of 
the 

Director 

PAN $ & DIN Category 
(Chairperson 
/Executive/N

on 
Executive/in 
dependent/N

ominee) & 

Date of 
Appointment 
in the current 

term / 
cessation 

Tenure
* 

No of 
Directors

hip in 
listed 

entities 
including 
this listed 

entity 
 
 

Number of 
membership

s in Audit/ 
Stakeholder 
Committee(s
) including 
this listed 

entity 
 
 

No of post of 
Chairperson 

in Audit/ 
Stakeholder 
Committee 

held in listed 
entities 

including 
this listed 

entity 

 
 

Mr.  Gulzar Ahmad PAN- 
ADFPA7361N 

Whole Time 
Director 

June 03, 2021 Five years 
till June 02, 
2026 

1 
 

1 
 

0 
 

DIN- 01312305 

Mr.  Wajid Ahmed PAN- 
AEMPA6979C 

Managing 
Director 

June 03, 2021 Five years 
till June 02, 
2026 
(Liable to 
retire by 
rotation) 

1 
 

2 
 

0 
 

DIN- 01312261 

Mr.  Gulzeb Ahmed PAN-
AIIPA0593N 

Whole Time 
Director 

June 03, 2021 Five years 
till June 02, 
2026 
(Liable to 
retire by 
rotation) 
 

1 
 

0 
 

0 
 

DIN- 06546660 

Mr.  Amit Goyal PAN- 
AARPG3150C 

Independent 
Director 

June 03, 2021 Five years 
till June 02, 
2026 

1 
 

0 
 

1 
 

DIN- 05146923 

Mr.  Gaurav Luthra PAN- 
ABTPL1384L 

Independent 
Director 

June 03, 2021 Five years 
till June 02, 
2026 

1 0 1 

DIN- 08023492 

Mr. Bhumika 
Parwani 

PAN- 
BQXPP6066R 

Independent 
Director 

September 26, 
2022 

Five years 
till 
September2
5, 2026 

        1       1             1 

DIN- 09732792 
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Disclosure of Relationships between Directors inter-se: 

No other Directors are related to each other or to any other employee of the Company except thefollowing:  

Mr. Gulzar Ahmad and Mr. Wajid Ahmed are Brothers. 

Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed is Son of Mr. Gulzar Ahmad. 

APPOINTMENT AND TENURE: 
The Directors of the Company are appointed by the shareholders at the General Meetings. Two third of the Directors (other than 
independent Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation and at every Annual General Meeting, one third of such Directors as 

are liable to retire by rotation, if eligible, generally offer themselves for re-election, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
152 of the Companies Act, 2013(hereinafter also referred to as “Act”) and that of the Articles of Association of the Company. The 
Executive Directors on the Board serve in accordance with the terms of their contracts of service with the Company.  

 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA: 
Meeting the needs of the Company and enhancing the competencies of the Board are the basis for the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, to select a candidate for appointment to the Board. When 
recommending a candidate for appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 

i. assess the appointee against a range of criteria including qualification, age, experience, positive attributes, 
independence, relationships, diversity of gender, background, professional skills and personal qualities required 
to operate successfully in the position and has discretion to decide adequacy of such criteria for the concerned 

position; 
ii. assess the appointee on the basis of merit, related skills and competencies. No discrimination is made on the 

basis of religion, caste, creed or gender. 

 
A. Meetings of the Board 

 

The Company places before the Board all the relevant and necessary information at their meetings for the information 
of the Board. During the year under review,15 (Fifteen) Board meeting were held at below mentioned dates and the 
gap between the two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

 

Sr. No Date of Board Meeting 

1. 12.04.2022 

2. 09.05.2022 

3. 10.06.2022 

4. 18.07.2022 

5. 13.08.2022 

6. 26.08.2022 

7. 15.09.2022 

8. 30.09.2022 

9. 13.10.2022 

10. 18.11.2022 

11. 12.12.2022 

12. 09.01.2023 

13. 04.02.2023 

14. 24.02.2023 

15. 10.03.2023 

 
 

Attendance at the Board meetings during the year and attendance at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM): 
 
15 Board Meetings were held during the financial year April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023. The Maximum gap between any two 
Board Meetings was within stipulated time. 

 
The Company has held a minimum of one Board Meeting in each quarter and maximum gap between two consecutive meetings 
did not exceed 120 days which is in compliance with the Listing Regulations and provisions of the Act.  
 
Concerned executives of the Company communicate to the Company Secretary matters requiring approval of the Board, well in 
advance, so that these can be included in the agenda for the scheduled Board/ Committee meetings.  
 
Agenda papers are sent electronically to the Directors, well in advance, before the meetings. Draft minutes of the Board and 
Committee meetings are circulated to the Directors of the Company for their comments and thereafter, noted by the 
Board/Committees at the next meeting. 
 
The Company secretary, in consultation with the chairman & Managing Director, drafts the agenda of the meetings, which is 

circulated well in advance to the Board members, along with comprehensive background information on the items in the agenda 
to enable the Board to arrive at appropriate decisions. The information as required under Part A of Schedule II to the Listing 
Regulations is made available to the Board. 
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Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2023 and attendance at the Board meetings held during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and at the last AGM are given below: 
 

Sr. No Name of the 
Director 

Category of 
Directorship 

Attendance Details Attendance 
at Last AGM 

   Board 
Meetings Held 

Eligible to 
Attend 

Attended  

1. Gulzar Ahmad (DIN: 
01312305) 

Executive 
Director 

15 15 15 Present 

2. Wajid Ahmed (DIN: 

01312261) 

Executive 

Director 

15 15 15 Present 

3. Gulzeb Ahmed (DIN: 
06546660) 

Executive 
Director 

15 15 15 Present 

4. Amit Goyal   
(DIN:05146923) 

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

15 15 14 Present 

5. Gaurav R. Luthra 
(DIN:08023492) 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 

15 15 15 Present 

6. Bhumika Parwani 
(DIN: 09732792) 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 

15 8 0 - 

 
The previous AGM of the Company was held on Tuesday, 20th September, 2022 at 18A/5/3 Tajview Crossing Fatehabad Road 

Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001, India as per the circulars issued by MCA from time to time. 
 
Directors’ interest in the Company & other disclosures: 
 

 None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the 
Company. 

 The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are highly respected and accomplished professionals in the corporate 
and academic world. 

 There is no compensation package for Non-Executive Directors. 

 There is no Nominee Director on the board as on 31.03.2023. 
 

 All the information required to be furnished to the Board was made available to them along with detailed agenda notes.  

 The Board of Directors do hereby confirm that, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these 
regulations and are Independent of the Management. 

 

BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES 
 

A. INSTITUTIONALISED DECISION-MAKING PROCESS 
 

The Board of Directors oversees the overall functioning of the Company. The Board provides and evaluates the strategic direction 
of the Company, management policies and their effectiveness and ensures that the long-term interests of the stakeholders are 

being served. The Managing Director is assisted by the Senior Managerial Personnel in overseeing the functional matters of the 
Company. 
 

The Board has constituted Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee. 
 

B. SCHEDULING AND SELECTION OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR BOARD MEETINGS 
 
A minimum of four Board Meetings are held every year. Dates for the Board Meetings in the ensuing quarter are decided well in 

advance and communicated to the Directors. The Agenda along with the explanatory notes are sent in advance to the Directors. 
Additional meetings of the Board are held when deemed necessary to address the specific needs of the Company. The meetings 
are held at the Company's Registered Office at 18A/5/3, Taj view Crossing Fatehabad Road, Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001. 

 
All divisions/departments of the Company are advised to schedule their work plans well in advance, with regard to matters 
requiring discussion/approval/ decision at the Board/ Committee meetings. All such matters are included in the Agenda for the 

Board/Committee Meetings. In addition to items which are mandated to be placed before the Board for its noting and/or approval, 
information is provided on various significant issues. 
 

The Board is also provided with the Audit Committee observations on the Internal Audit findings and matters required to be 
included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
C. DISTRIBUTION OF BOARD AGENDA MATERIAL 

 

Agenda and Notes on Agenda are circulated to the Directors, in advance, in the defined Agenda format. All material information 
is incorporated in the Agenda papers for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not practical 
to attach any document to the Agenda, the same is tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the Agenda. 

In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s) on the Agenda are considered. 
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D. RECORDING MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

The Company Secretary records the minutes of the proceedings of each Board and Committee meeting. Draft minutes are 
circulated to all the members of the Board/Committee for their comments. The Final minutes are entered in the Minutes Book 
within 30 days from conclusion of the meeting and are signed by the Chairman of the meeting/Chairman of the next meeting. The 

copy of the signed minutes is circulated to all members after those are signed. 
 

E. POST-MEETING FOLLOW-UP MECHANISM 
 
The Company has an effective post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process mechanism for the decisions taken by the 
Board/Committees. The important decisions taken at the Board/Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned 

functional Heads. Action Taken Report on decisions of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the immediately succeeding meeting 
of the Board/Committee for noting by the Board/Committee members. 
 

F. COMPLIANCE 
 
While preparing the Agenda, Notes on Agenda, Minutes etc. of the meeting(s), adequate care is taken to ensure adherence to 

all applicable laws and regulations including the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules made thereunder.  
 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors were set out in the appointment letter issued to the Director 

at the time of his/her appointment/re- appointment as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. The terms and 
conditions as mentioned in the appointment letter is disclosed on the company's website www.hmagroup.co 
 

Independent Director: 
As per Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations, Independent Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent Director 
in more than seven listed companies. None of the Independent Directors of the Company have resigned during Financial Year 

2022-23. Thus, disclosure of detailed reasons for their resignation along with their confirmation that there are no material reasons 
other than those provided by them is not applicable. 
 

All Independent Directors have provided their annual declarations stating that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. During the Year under review, Independent 
Directors meet once on 30.03.2023 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors. All the Independent directors were 

present at the meeting. 
 
The Company has devised the Policy on Familiarization Programme for Independent Director and the same is available on the 

website of the Company i.e www.hmagrpup.co The web-link for the same is:https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-
content/uploads/2023/07/6.-Terms-and-condition-for-appointment-of-Independent-Directors.pdf 
 
MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Independent Directors of the Company meet once a year without the presence of Executive Directors or management 

personnel. This meeting is conducted in an informal and flexible manner to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters 
pertaining to the affairs of the Company and put forth their views to the Managing Director. 
 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 30March, 2023, inter alia, to discuss: 
 
• Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole; 

• Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors; 
• Evaluation of the quality, content and time lines of flow of information between the Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. 
 
SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Considering the requirement of skill sets on Board, eminent people having an independent standing in their respective 
field/profession, and who can effectively contribute to the Company’s business policy decisions are considered by the Nominat ion 

and Remuneration Committee, for appointment, as Independent Directors on the Board. The Committee, inter-alia, considers 
qualifications, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of Directorships and Memberships held in various committees of 
other companies by such persons in accordance with company’s Policy for selection of Directors and determining Director’s 
Independence. The Board Considers the Committee’s recommendation, and takes appropriate decisions thereupon. 
 
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Company believes that the Board be continuously empowered with the knowledge of the latest developments in the 
Company's business and the external environment affecting the industry as a whole. 

 
The Independent Directors are familiarised about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in 
which the Company operates, business model of the Company, legal updates, etc. In this regard, the Company follows a 

structured familiarisation program for the Independent Directors. The detailsrelated thereto are displayed on the Company’s 
websitewww.hmagroup.co. The web-link for the same is:https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Policy-on-
familirisation-of-independent-directors.pdf 
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To this end, the Directors were given presentations on the business environment, as well as all business areas of the Company 

including business strategy, risks opportunities. Updates on performance/developments giving highlights of performance of the  
Company during each month including the developments/events having impact on the business of the Company are also informed 
to all the Directors. The details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors, are disclosed on the company's 

website www.hmagroup.co 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10), 19(4) and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR 
Regulations) 2015, a Board Evaluation Policy has been framed and approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and by the Board. 
 
The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Independent Directors individually as well  

as the evaluation of the working of the Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the Managing Director and the Non- 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

 
The purpose of the Board evaluation is to achieve consistent improvement in the governance of the Company at the Board level 
with the participation of all concerned in an environment of harmony. The Board acknowledges its intention to establish and f ollow 

“best practices” in Board governance in order to fulfil its fiduciary obligation to the Company. The Board believes the evaluation 
will lead to a closer working relationship among Board members, greater efficiency in the use of the Board's time, and increased 
effectiveness of the Board as a governing body. 

 
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Managing Director, who 
were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgement, safeguarding the 

interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The details of Familiarization programmes imparted to Independent 
Directors of the Company, are available on the Website of the Company viz. www.hmagroup.co 
 

Confirmation of Independence 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence specified in the Listing Regulations and are 
independent of the Management of the Company. 
 
Skills, Expertise and Competencies of the Board 
 
The Board of Directors have, identified the following core skills/expertise/competencies of Directors as required in the context of 
business of the Company for its effective functioning: 
 

a) Leadership Experience in managing companies and associations including general management; 
b) Financial Skills: Understanding the financial statements, financial controls, risk management, mergers and 

acquisition, etc; 
c) Experience in human resource and communication; 
d) Relevant experience and knowledge in the matters of safety and corporate social responsibility including 

environment, sustainability, community and values; 
e) Sales and Marketing: Experience in sales and marketing management based on understanding of the industry;  
f) General Management/Governance:  Strategic thinking, decision making and protect interest of all stakeholders;  
g) Expertise in the field of strategies and knowledge relating to meat industry. 

 
On the basis of the above-mentioned skill matrix, the Board has identified the following skills/competencies/expertise of the 
Directors of the company: Core Skills / Expertise / Competencies available with the Board: 
 

Directors Leadership Finance Human 

Resources and 
communication 

Safety and 

Corporate 
Social 
Responsibility 

Sales & 

Marketing 

General 
management/ 
Governance 

Expertise 

in science 
and 
knowledge 

Gulzar 
Ahmad 

       

Wajid 
Ahmed 

       

Gulzeb 
Ahmed 

       

Amit 
Goyal 

    -  - 

Gaurav 
R. Luthra 

  -  -  - 

Bhumika 
Parwani 

  -  -  - 

 
 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD 
 
We are in compliance with the requirements of applicable regulations, including the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Companies Act 
and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including constitution of our Board and committees thereof, 
and formulation and adoption of policies. 
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Our Company stands committed to good Corporate Governance practices based on the principles such as accountability, 
transparency in dealing with our stakeholders, emphasis on communication and transparent report. We have complied with the 
requirements of the applicable regulations, including Regulations, in respect of Corporate Governance including constitution of 
the Board and its Committees. The Corporate Governance framework is based on an effective Independent Board, the Board’s 
supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under law.  
The following committees have been constituted for compliance with Corporate Governance requirements: 
 

A. Audit Committee; 
B. Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 
C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  
D. Risk Management Committee; 
E. Corporate Social responsibility Committee 
 

A. Audit Committee: 
 

Our Board has re-constituted the Audit Committee in accordance with the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 
18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations by a resolution dated October13, 2022.  
 
During the year under review, 8 (Eight) Audit Committee meetings were held at following dates and the gap between the two 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The requisite quorum waspresent at all the Meetings.  
 
Eight Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23. The Committeemeetings were held on 
12.04.2022, 09.05.2022, 11.07.2022, 26.08.2022, 13.10.2022, 07.01.2023, 01.02.2023 and 01.03.2023. 
 
Attendance details of the members are given in thetable below: 
 

Name of the 
Directors 

Nature of Directorship No. of Meetings Held Eligible to Attend No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Gaurav R. Luthra Independent Director 8 8 8 

Bhumika Parwani Member-Independent 
Director 

8 4 3 

Wajid Ahmed     Member-Managing 
Director 

8 8 8 

 
The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company will act as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 

In Conformity with the requirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, the strength of the Board as also of the Audit Committee 
is adequate. The Audit Committee of the company consists of Two Independent Directors and Managing Director of the Company.  
All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, 
Risk and International Finance. It functions in accordance with its charter that defines its authority, responsibility, and reporting 
function. The Audit Committee also advises the Management on the areas where internal control system can be improved. The 
Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Audit committee. 
 
In addition to members of Audit Committee, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and the 
representatives of the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors attend the Audit Committee Meetings.  
 
Role and Term of Reference of Audit Committee: 
 
The scope of Audit Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:  
 

The Audit Committee functions according to its terms of reference that define its authority, responsibility and reporting functions 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations. The 
terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, include the following: 
 

• Oversight of the Issuer’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

• Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory 
auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 

• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.  
• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with particular 

reference to: 
1. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms 

of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

2. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.  
3. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.  
4. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
5. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.  
6. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
7. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
 

 Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly financial statements before submission to the board for approval.  

 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/notice 
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and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.  
 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.  

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems. 

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and 
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

 Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 

 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or  
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board. 

 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism. 

 Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate.  

 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
 

Explanation (i): The term "related party transactions" shall have the same meaning as contained in the Accounting Standard 18, 
Related Party Transactions, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

Explanation (ii): If the Issuer has set up an audit committee pursuant to provision of the Companies Act, the said audit committee 
shall have such additional functions / features as is contained in this clause. 
 

The Audit Committee enjoys following powers: 
 
1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 

2. To seek information from any employee. 
3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 
4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers necessary. 

5. The audit committee may invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and particularly the head of the finance 
function) to be present at the meetings of the committee, but on occasions it may also meet without the presence of any 
executives of the Issuer. The finance director, head of internal audit and a representative of the statutory auditor may be 

present as invitees for the meetings of the audit committee.  
 
The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 
 
a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by management;  

c. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
d. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit 

Committee. 
f. Statement of deviations: (a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted  

to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations. (b) Annual statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(5) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

 

The recommendations of the Audit Committee on any matter relating to financial management, including the audit report, are 
binding on the Board. If the Board is not in agreement with the recommendations of the Committee, reasons for disagreement 
shall have to be incorporated in the minutes of the Board Meeting and the same has to be communicated to the shareholders.  

 
The Chairman of the committee has to attend the Annual General Meetings of the Company to provide clarifications on matters 
relating to the audit.  

 
B. Stakeholder Relationship Committee: 
 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of our Board was constituted by our Board of Directors pursuant to section 178 (5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. During the year under review, no committee meeting 
was held as the company did not have shareholders more than 1000 and was unlisted public company at that time so the 
requirement of holding that committee meeting was not applicable on the company, though the company had constituted the 
committee w.e.f 13.10.2022.  
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The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee comprises of: 
 

a) Composition, name of Members, chairman and their attendance at meetings during the year: 
 

Name of the 
Directors 

Nature of 
Directorship 

No. of Meetings 
Held 

Eligible to 
attend 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Bhumika Parwani Chairman-Independent 
Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

Wajid Ahmed     Member-Managing 
Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

Gulzar Ahmad Member-Whole Time 
Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company will act as the Secretary of the Committee.  

 

b) Role and Term of Reference of stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
 
The Board approved ‘Terms of Reference’ of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee in compliance with Section 178 
of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The Committee looks into the 
matters of Shareholders/Investors grievances along with other operational matters listed below: 
a) Allotment and listing of our shares in future. 
b) Redressing of shareholders and investor complaints such as non-receipt of declared dividend, annual report, 

transfer of Equity Shares and issue of duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates;  
c) Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and consolidation of Equity 

Shares and other securities issued by our Company, including review of cases for refusal of transfer/ transmission 
of shares and debentures; 

d) Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances; 
e) To otherwise ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; 
f) To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers.  
g) Review the adherence to the service standards adopted in respect of various services being rendered by the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 
h) Review the various measures and initiatives taken for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring 

timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.  
 

c)  Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 
Mr. Nikhil Sundrani, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. 

 
d) Redressal of Complaints 

Shareholders may send their complaints for redressal to the email id cs@hmaagro.com 
 
e) No. of Complaints received, resolved/pending/not resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholder during the 

financial year 
During the financial year under review the company has not received any complaints from the shareholders.  

 
C. Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

 
The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation (‘NRC’) Committee functions according to its terms of reference that define 
its authority, responsibility and reporting functions in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part 
D of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Board was re-constituted by our Board of Directors pursuant to section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations vide resolution dated October13, 2022. During 
the year under review, 5 (Five) meetings of Nomination and remuneration Committee (NRC) were held at below mentioned dates:  
 
Five Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23. The Committee 
meetings were held on 12.04.2022, 11.07.2022, 15.09.2022, 30.09.2022 and 07.01.2023. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises: 
 

Sr.No. Committee 
Members 

Designation No. of meetings 
held 

Eligible to 
Attend 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

1. Amit Goyal Chairman-Non – Executive 
Independent Director 

5 5 5 

2. Bhumika Parwani Member-Non – Executive 
Independent Director 

5 1 0 

3. Gaurav Rajendra 
Luthra 

Member-Non – Executive 
Independent Director 

5 5 1 

4 Swapnala Gupta* Member-Non – Executive 
Independent Director 

5 4 4 

 

*Swapnla Gupta has been resigned with effect from 30th September, 2022. 
 
The Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company will act as the Secretary of the Committee. 
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Role and Term of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 
The scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:  
 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to 
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 
2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
3. To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 
4. Devising a policy on Board diversity, if any; 
5. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors  
their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director‘s performance. 
6. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of  the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors. 
7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.  
8. To ensure the policy includes the following guiding principles: 

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the 
quality required to run the Company successfully, 

b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and 

c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short-and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals. 

The quorum of the meeting shall be either two members or one third of the members of the committee whichever is greater.  
 
The composition of the Board Committees can be viewed from the web link :  https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-
content/uploads/2023/07/c-Composition-of-various-committees-of-Board-of-Directors_compressed.pdf 
 
 

Board and Director Evaluation and criteria for Performance evaluation: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance, its Committees and Directors 
individually. A structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of 
specific duties, obligations and governance. A consolidated summary of the ratings given by each Director was then prepared. 
The report of performance evaluation was then discussed and noted by the Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman 
and Managing Director and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 
Performance of the Board was evaluated by each Director on the parameters such as its role and responsibilities, business risks, 
contribution to the development of strategy and effective risk management, understanding of operational program, availability of 
quality information in a timely manner, regular evaluation of progress towards strategic goals and operational performance, 
adoption of good governance practices and adequacy and length of meetings, etc. Independent Directors also carried out 
evaluation of the Board performance. 
 
Performance of the Chairperson was evaluated by the Independent Directors on the parameters such as demonstration of 
effective leadership, contribution to the Board’s work, communication with the Board, use of time and overall efficiency of Board 
meetings, quality of discussions at the Board meetings, process for settling Board agenda, etc.  
 

The performance evaluation of the independent director was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the independent 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as participation in decision making and safeguarding of confidential information, 
contribution in raising concerns to the Board, rendering unbiased opinion; participation in initiating new ideas and planning of the 
company etc. 
 
 
Remuneration Policy of the company and Details of Remuneration 
 
The company’s philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key managerial personnel and senior management is based on the 
commitment of fostering a culture leadership with trust. 
 
The company has adopted a policy for remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, which is 
aligned to this philosophy.  The key factors considered in formulating policy are as under:  
 
i. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality 

required to run the company successfully. 
ii. Relationship of remuneration to the performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and  
iii. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and 

incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its 
goals. 

 
The Company has adopted and implemented the Nomination and Remuneration Policy devised in  

accordance with Section 178(3) and (4) of the Companies Act, 2013. The detailed Nomination &  
Remuneration Policy is uploaded on the website of the Company. The web link is: https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-
content/uploads/2023/07/8.-Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf 
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The remuneration payable to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Person will involve a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short term and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
Company and support in the achievement of Corporate Goals. 
 

The key principles governing the Company's Remuneration Policy are as follows: 
 
Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 
 
Fixed pay: 
 
The Whole-time Director / KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be 
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites 
including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by 
the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever 
required. 
 

Minimum Remuneration: 
 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its 
Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply 
with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government. 
 

Provisions for excess remuneration: 
 
If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she 
shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not  
waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.  
 
Remuneration to Non- Executive/Independent Director: 
 
Remuneration/Commission: 
The remuneration/commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the 
Company and the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 
 
Sitting Fees: 
 
The Non- Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or 
Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. One lakh per meeting of the Board or Committee 
or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.  
 
Commission: 
 
Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits 
of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

No remuneration is paid to any Non-Executive Directors during the financial year April 01, 2022 to March 31,2023 except sitting 
fee for attending Board meetings and committee meetings. 
 

Details of the Executive Directors Remuneration for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 
(in  ₹ Million) 

REMUNERATION DIRECTORS 

 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Non-Executive 
Directors Mr. Gulzar 

Ahmad 
Mr. Wajid Ahmed Mr. Gulzeb Ahmed 

(a) Salary & Allowances (fixed) 18.00 18.00 10.00 - 
(b) Benefits & Perquisites - - - - 
(c) Bonus/Commission 

Additional Salary 
- - - - 

d) Pension, Contribution to 
Provident Fund& Super 
annuation Fund 

- - - - 

 Total 18.00 18.00 10.00 - 
e) Stock Option Details (if any) The Company has not offered any Stock Options to its employees. 
f) Notice period The Agreement may be terminated by either party giving the 

other party six months’ notice. With the liberty to the board of 
Directors to alter and vary the same. 

- 

 
Note: The agreement with each Executive Director is for a period of 5 years. 
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Details of the Sitting Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended March 31,2023 

(In ₹ Million) 
Name of the Non-Executive Director Amount of Sitting Fees Paid 

Amit Goyal 0.18 

Gaurav R. Luthra 0.18 

Bhumika Parwani* 0.06 

Swapnla Gupta** 0.06 
 
* Bhumika Parwani was appointed as Independent Director w.e.f 26th Say of September, 2022 

** Swapnla Gupta tendered her resignation w.e.f 30th Day of September, 2022. 
 
D. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

The Risk Management Committee was re-constituted by our Board of Directorsin accordance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. The Risk Management Committee comprises of: 
 

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 

Gulzar Ahmad Chairman and Whole Time Director Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed     Managing Director Member 
Bhumika Parwani Independent Director Member 

 

The scope and function of the Risk Management Committee is its terms of reference are as follows: 

a) To formulate a detailed Risk Management Policy covering risk across functions and plan integration through training and 
awareness programmes. The Policy shall include: 

 

 A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in particular including 
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other 
risk as may be determined by the Risk Management Committee; 

 Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks;  
 Business continuity plan. 

 
b) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated with 

the business of the Company; 
c) To review and recommend potential risk involved in any new business plans and processes;  
d) To review the Company’s risk-reward performance to align with the Company’s overall policy objectives; 
e) To implement, monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of 

risk management systems; 
f) To periodically review and assess the Risk Management Policy at least once in two years, including by considering the 

changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity and recommend for any amendment or modification as necessary;  
g) To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and actions to 

be taken; 
h) To seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of 

outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 
i) Laying down risk assessment and minimization procedures and the procedures to inform Board of the same;  
j) To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief risk officer (if any);  
k) Framing, implementing, reviewing and monitoring the risk management plan for the Company and such the functions, 

including cyber security; 
l) Advise the Board with regard to risk management decisions in relation to strategic and operational matters such as 

corporate strategy; and 
m) Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law to be 

attended to by the Risk Management Committee. 
 
E. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted by our Board in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act. 
During the year under review, 5 (Five) meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) were held at below 
mentioned dates:  
 
Five Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23. The Committee 
meetings were held on 10.06.2022, 13.10.2022, 01.12.2022, 12.01.2023 and 01.02.2023. 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises: The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of 
following Directors: 
 

Name of the 
Directors 

Nature of Directorship No. of Meetings 
Held 

Eligible To Attend Meetings Attended 

Gulzar Ahmad Chairman and Whole Time 
Director 

5 5 5 

Bhumika Parwani Member-Independent 
Director 

5 4 3 

Amit Goyal Member-Independent 
Director 

5 5 5 
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The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee include the following: 

a) Formulation of a corporate social responsibility policy to the Board, indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company 
in areas or subject specified in the Companies Act, 2013. The activities should be within the list of permitted activities 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder; 

b) Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred, amount to be at least 2% of the average net profit of the Company 
in the three immediately preceding financial years or where the Company has not completed the period of three financial 
years since its incorporation during such immediately preceding financial years;  

c) Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the corporate social responsibility projects or programs 
or activities undertaken by the Company; 

d) Monitoring the corporate social responsibility policy from time to time and issuing necessary directions as required for proper 
implementation and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes; 

e) Identifying corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy programmes;  
f) Identifying and appointing the corporate social responsibility team of the Company including corporate social respons ibility 

manager, wherever required; and 

g) Performing such other duties and functions as the Board may require the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to 
undertake to promote the corporate social responsibility activities of the Company or as may be required under applicable 
laws. 

 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 

i. Annual General Meeting: 
 

AGM Financial Year Day, Date & Time of 

Meeting 

Venue Detail of Special 

Resolution Passed 

14th 2021-2022 Tuesday, 20.09.2022 
at 3:00 P.M 

18A/5/3, Tajview 
Crossing Fatehabad 

Road Agra U.P-
282001 

No Special resolution  

13th 2020-2021 Tuesday, 30.11.2021 
at 01:30 P.M 

18A/5/3, Tajview 
Crossing Fatehabad 
Road Agra U.P-

282001 

No Special resolution  

12th 2019-2020 Thursday, 31.12.2020 
at 11:00 A.M 

2/220, 2nd Floor Glory 
Plaza Sur Sadan, M.G 

Roard Agra Uttar 
Pradesh-282002 

No Special resolution 

 
 

ii. Extra-Ordinary general Meeting/ Postal Ballot Resolution: No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held in the period under 
review. 

 
iii. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT DURING 2022-23 

 

No special resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during 2022-23. None of the Businesses proposed to betransacted in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a special resolution through Postal Ballot. 
 

Disclosure Regarding appointment/re-appointment of Director in the ensuing AGM: 
 
As required under 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2, particulars of the Directors seeking 

appointment/re-appointment are provided in the notice convening this meeting. 
 
 

CODES AND POLICIES: 
 
The Company has established a robust framework of Codes and Policies that facilitates and reflects adoption of good governance 
practices. The salient Codes and Policies adopted by the Company are mentioned below: 

 
i. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
 

The Board of Directors has laid down a ‘Code of Conduct’ for all the Board members and the Senior Management of the Company 
and this code is posted on the website of the company. During the year, Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
has complied with general duties, rules, acts and regulations and Annual declaration is obtained from every person covered by  

the code. In this regard certificate from Managing Director as required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been received by the Board and the same is attached as Annexure-I. The 
Code of Conduct is posted on the Company’s website and can be accessed at https://www.hmagroup.co 

 
ii. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
 

Code for prevention of Insider-Trading practices: 
 
As per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, the Compliance Officer is responsible for setting forth policies, 
procedures, monitoring adherence to the rules for the preservation of price-sensitive information, preclearance of trade, 
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monitoring of trades and implementation of the Code of Conduct for trading in Company’s securities under the overall supervision 
of the Board. 
 
The Company has in place Board approved Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading as well as a Code of Practices 
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure in accordance with aforesaid Regulations. All the Directors on the Board, Senior Management 
at all locations and other employees who could be privy to unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are governed 
by this Code. 
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities of 
the Company by the Designated Persons. The Code also includes requirements for the Structured Digital Database, prescribed 
format for reporting of trading in the securities of the Company, reporting of violations to the stock exchanges etc. The Company 
has also implemented the Policy and Procedure for inquiry in case of leak or suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information (‘UPSI’), pursuant to the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations.  
 

Dealing in the shares of the Company by the Designated Persons is effectively monitored for ensuring compliance with the Code. 
Report on dealing in the shares of the Company by the Designated Persons is placed before the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
and the Board on a quarterly basis. Pursuant to the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations, the Company has established a Structured 
Digital Database with adequate internal controls and checks such as time stamp and audit trails. The Company has also 
established effective internal controls to ensure compliance with the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations. These internal controls 
are reviewed annually by the Audit committee and the Board of Directors to ensure effectiveness of such controls. The 
compliances with the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 were independently reviewed 
by the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 
 

iii. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information  
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of UPSI with a view to facilitate prompt, 
uniform and universal dissemination of UPSI. The Code also includes the Policy for Determination of Legitimate Purposes. The 
information can be accessed at the website of the company i.e. www.hmagroup.co  
 
iv. Policy for Determining Materiality of Events and Information 
 
The Company has adopted the Policy for Determining Materiality of Events and Information. This policy aims to ensure timely 
and adequate disclosure of all material and price sensitive information to the Stock Exchanges. The Policy is displayed on the 
Company’s website and can be accessed at : https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/9-Policy-for-determination-
of-materiality-of-events-or-information.pdf 
 
v. Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism Policy: 
 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the management about the unethical 
behaviour, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee.  
 

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism also provides safeguards against victimization or unfair  
treatment of the employees who avail of the mechanism and no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 

The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the Company’s website and can be accessed at: The Audit Committee periodically 
reviews the functioning of the Policy and the Ombudsperson Process. During the financial year, no Director or full time employee 
was denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  
 
vi. Appointment and Remuneration Policy 
 
The Company has a Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) and Senior 
Management/ other employees (‘Employees’) of the Company. The Policy aims to ensure that the persons appointed as Directors, 
KMPs and Employees possess the requisite qualifications, experience, expertise and attributes commensurate to their positions 
and level and that the remuneration of such persons is fair, reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the personnel 
to manage the Company successfully. The Policy contains, inter alia, provisions pertaining to qualification, attributes and process 
of their appointment and removal as well as remuneration. The Policy is displayed on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed at https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/8.-Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf 
 
vii. Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries: 
 

Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries is displayed on the Company’s website and can be accessed at: 
https://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/9-Policy-for-determination-of-materiality-of-events-or-information.pdfAs 
on March 31, 2023, the Company did had only one any material subsidiary i.e Federal Agro Industries Private Limited. 
 
viii. Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party Transactions 
 
There are no materially significant related party transaction with its promoters, Directors or the management, their subsidiaries 
or Relatives, which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The other related party transactions are 
given in Notes to Accounts annexed to and forming part of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the Company.  
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Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party Transactions is displayed on the Company’s  
website and can be accessed athttps://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/4.-Policy-on-dealing-with-related-party-

transactions.pdf 
 
ix Dividend Distribution Policy 
 
The Company has formulated and implemented the Dividend Distribution Policy in accordance with the Listing Regulations. The 
Policy has been posted on the Company’s website and can be accessed athttps://www.hmagroup.co/wp-

content/uploads/2023/07/3.-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf 
 
x. Policy for Preservation of Documents  
 
The Company has a Policy for Preservation of Documents. The Policy facilitates preservation of documents in compliance with 
the laws applicable to various functions and departments of the Company. 

 
xi. Archival Policy 
 

The Company has an Archival Policy that lays down the process and manner of archiving the disclosures made to the Stock 
Exchanges under the Listing Regulations. The Policy provides that such disclosures shall be hosted on the website of the 
Company for a period of five years from the date of disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. The Policy also lays down the manner of 

archiving these disclosures after the period of 5 years. The information can be accessed at the website of the company i.e. 
www.hmagroup.co  
 

xii. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy  
 
The Company has outlined the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy that is displayed on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed athttps://www.hmagroup.co/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/7.-Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf 
 
xiii. Risk Management Policy 
 
The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy in accordance with the Regulations 4(2)(f ), 17(9), 21 and Part D of 
Schedule II of Listing Regulations and section 134(3), 177(4) of the Act read with Rules made thereunder, as amended from time 

to time. The Risk Management Policy of the Company aims to increase overall awareness of risk and enables the managers and 
those responsible for risk reporting, to identify, assess and control risks within their areas. 
 

The Company also has in place other policies such as:  
• Policy on Board Diversity.  
• Succession Plan for Board Members and Senior Management.  
• Performance Evaluation Policy 
• Code of Conduct for Employees.  
• Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment. 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
(a) Quarterly Results/ Annual Results: 
 
The quarterly and the annual results, published in the format prescribed by the Listing Regulations read with the Circular issued 

thereunder, are approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company. The approved results are forthwith 
uploaded on the designated portals of the Stock Exchanges where the Company's shares are listed viz, NSE Electronic 
Application Processing System (NEAPS) of the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Online Portal of BSE Ltd. 

(BSE).  
 
(b) Newspapers wherein results are normally published; 
The results are also published within 48 hours in Financial Express and Hindustan (English &Hindi editions, respectively) and are 

also displayed on the Company's website: www.hmagroup.co 
 
(c) Posting of Information on the website of the Company: 
 

1. The Annual/Quarterly results of the Company, Share Holding Pattern, and other official news are promptly posted on 
the website of the Company: www.hmagroup.co 

2. Various sections of the Company’s website www.hmagroup.co   keep the investors updated onmaterial developments 
of the Company by providing key and timely information like details of Directors, financial information, press releases, 
presentations, stock information, etc. 

3. Disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges are promptlyuploaded on the website of the Company for informationof the 
Investors. 

4. The Company diligently works towards excellence instakeholder communication. It believes in sharing allmaterial 

information that may directly or indirectlyaffect the financial and operational performance of theCompany and 
consequently the share price. 

 

(d) A dedicated e-mail address viz. cs@hmaagro.com. com for interacting on various matters with respect to share transfer, 
transmission, dividends and other related issues with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 
 

(e) The Management Discussion and Analysis report forms a part of this Annual Report. 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

a) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
 

DATE AND TIME 22nd September, 2023 at 5.00 PM 
VENUE Jaypee Palace Hotel & Convention Centre 

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE Saturday, 16 September, 2023 to Friday, 25 September, 
2023 (both days inclusive) 

RECORD DATE Friday, 15 September, 2023 

 
b) Current Financial Year: From 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024. 

 
Tentative Calendar for Financial Year ending 31st March, 2024: 
 

Result of First quarter ended on 30th June, 2023 On or before 14th August, 2023 

Result of Second quarter ended on 30th September, 2023  On or before 14th November, 2023 

Result of Third quarter ended on 31st December, 2023  On or before 14th January, 2024 

Result of Fourth quarter and year ended on 31st March, 
2024  

On or before 30th May, 2024 

 

c) Dividend Payment Date: As per the notice convening the 15th Annual General Meeting, the Dividend, if declared, will 
be paid within 30 days from the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
 

d) Names and address of stock exchange(s) at which listed entity’s securities are listed and a confirmation about 
payment of annual listing fee to each of such stock exchange(s): 

    
 Listing on Stock Exchange: 

 
Company is a newly listed entity. The shares of the company were listed on 04 th Day of July, 2023 at both the stock exchanges 

i.e BSE limited and NSE Limited. The details are as follows: 
   

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Stock 

Exchange 

Address of 
Stock 
Exchange 

Scrip Code/ 
Symbol 

Type of 
Shares 
Listed 

No. of 
Shares 
Listed 

1. BSE Limited Phiroze 

Jeejeebhoy 
Towers, Dalal 
Street, 

Fort, Mumbai -400 
001 

543929 Equity Shares 50076977 

2. National Stock 
Exchange of India 
Limited 

Exchange Plaza, 
C-1, 
Block G, Bandra 

Kurla 
Complex, Bandra 
(E) 

Mumbai – 400 
051 

HMAAGRO Equity Shares 50076977 

 
Note: 
a. Annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2023-24 have been duly paid to the Stock Exchanges. 
b. ISIN with NSDL & CDSL: INE0ECP01016 

c. Stock Code:  
BSE Limited: 543929 
National Stock Exchange Limited: HMAAGRO 

Demat ISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL: INE0ECP01016 
 
d. Market Price Data, Stock Performance & Comparison to board-based Indices: 
Data for 31.03.2023 is not available as the company was not listed as that time. The company was listed w.e.f 04 thDay of July, 
2023. 
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Note: The Company’ equity shares were listed on July04, 2023; hence, data provided from July 04, 2023 onwards. 
 
e. In case the securities are suspended from trading, the director’s report shall explain the reason  
thereof: Not Applicable 
 
f. Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents 
Registrar & Transfer Agents: 
Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Address: E/2 Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road 

Saki Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 072, Maharashtra 
Tel: 91-22-40430200, 
Fax: 91-22-28475207 

Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/ 
SEBI registration number: INR000001385 
 
g. Share Transfer System 
Trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form. In terms of requirements of Regulation 40 of 
the Listing Regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 2019, transfer of securities in physical form, except in case of request received for 

transmission or transposition of securities, shall not be processed. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity shares in physical 
form are urged to have their shares dematerialized to be able to freely transfer them and participate in various corporate actions. 
 
To facilitate shareholders for trading in demat form, Company has entered into agreement with both the depositories i.e. National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
 

h. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2023: 
 
a) Value Wise 
BIGSHARE SERVICES PVT LTD. 
(NSDL-CDSL-Physical) DISTRIBUTION SHARE HOLDING (IN SHARES) As on Date 31/03/2023 
 

SHAREHOLDING NUMBER OF 
SHAREHOLDERS 

PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
SHARES 

PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL 

1001-2000 1 14.2857         1275 0.0025 

10001-9999999999 6 85.7143 47511600 94.8771 
TOTAL 7  47512875 94.8797 

 
b) Category Wise 

Sr. No Category No. of Shares Shareholding as a 
Percentage 
of Total Number of Shares 

A Promoters & Promoter 
Group 

47512875 100.00 

B Public Shareholding   

 1. Financial Institutions/ 
Banks 

0 0 

 2. Mutual Funds/ Domestic 

Companies 

0 0 

 3.Non-Resident Indians/ 
Foreign Nationals 

0 0 

 4. FPI / FII 0 0 
Grand Total  47512875 100.00 
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i. Dematerialization of Equity Shares and liquidity: 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are admitted in the following depositories of the Country under the International Securities 
Identification Number (ISIN) INE0ECP01016. This number is required to be quoted in each transaction relating to the 
dematerialized equity shares of the Company. 

 

Name of the Depository Address 

National Securities Depository Limited Trade World, A wing, 4th & 5th Floors, Kamala Mills 

Compound, Senapathi BapatMarg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 
400 013 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 17th Floor, Dalal Street Mumbai 
– 400 001. 

 

The Company has paid the custodial charges to the respective depository participants for the year ending 31 March 2024.  
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India has specified that the shares of the Company would be traded only in demat form 
effective 29 November 1999. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India, had vide its notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/ 
GN/2018/24 dated 8 June 2018 and a press release dated 3 December 2018, have restricted transfer of shares in physical form 
effective 1 April 2019. In view of the above and considering the benefits of holding shares in electronic form, the shareholders 
holding physical share certificates are requested to dematerialize their holding at the earliest. As on 31 March 2023, 100.00% 
shareholders are holding shares in demat form. 
 

j. PLANT LOCATIONS: 
 
We process our products through APEDA approved Food Processing units, most of which are owned by our subsidiaries. Some 

of these subsidiaries carry out the raw material purchases and sell the exportable products to us while some of these units only 
processes our products on a contractual basis against fixed charges. Further, some of these processing units are owned by third 
parties. All the products are packaged and exported by our company. 

 
The details of our current processing set up and capabilities are as mentioned at Page No. 17 of this document 
 

k.  Address for correspondence: 
 

Company Registrar & Share transfer Agent 

HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Secretarial Department 
Address: 18A/5/3, Tajview Crossing fatehabad Road Agra 
Uttar Pradesh-282001. 
Email Id: cs@hmaagro,com 
Website: www.hmagroup.co 
Ph. No: +91-7217018161 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Address : E/2 Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar road, Saki 
Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 072, Maharashtra 

Tel: 91-22-40430200, 
Fax: 91-22-28475207 
Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/ 

SEBI registration number: INR000001385 
 

 

 
l. Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging activities: 
 
Instruments in hedging relationship  

 
The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward contracts as hedge instruments in respect of foreign exchange risks. 

These hedges are accounted for as cash flow hedges, net of taxes based on the forecasted highly probable transactions.  
The Company uses hedging instruments that are governed by the policies of the Company which are approved by the Board of 
Directors. The policies provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management 

strategy of the Company. 
 
The hedge instruments are designated and documented as hedges at the inception of the contract. The Company determines 

the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and 
timing of their respective cash flows. The effectiveness of hedge instruments to reduce the risk associated with the exposure 
being hedged is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 

in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the statement of profit and loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted 
transaction. If the hedged forecasted transaction are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated 
in other equity are immediately reclassified in net foreign exchange gains in the statement of profit and loss. The effective portion 

of change in the fair value of the designated hedging instrument is recognised in the other comprehensive income and 
accumulated under the heading cash flow hedging reserve. 
 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or no longer qualifies for hedge 
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity til l that time remains and is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the forecasted transaction ultimately affects profit and loss.  
Instruments not in hedging relationship  

The Company enters into contracts that are effective as hedges from an economic perspective, but they do not qualify for hedge 
accounting. The change in the fair value of such instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  

 
m. CREDIT RATING 

 
CRISIL upgraded long-term rating on the bank facilities CRISIL A- CRISIL Ratings has reaffirmed its ‘CRISIL A-/Stable’ rating on 
the bank facilities of HMA Agro Industries Limited (HMA; apart of the HMA group). The outlook on the long-term and short-term 
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rating is 'Stable. The rating continues to reflect established market position and healthy financial risk profile of the HMA group. 
These strengths are partially offset by moderate scale of operations and low operating profitability.  

 
n. E-VOTING  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, 
members have been provided the facility to exercise their right to vote at General Meetings by electronic means, through e-Voting 

Services provided by NSDL. 
 
Schedule of events for the voting and declaration of voting results: 
 

Events Planned dates 

Dispatch of Annual Report 30 August 2023 

Advertisement regarding dispatch of Notice and public 
notice regarding e-voting in English and Hindi 

31 August 2023 

Cut-off date for remote e-voting 15 September 2023 

Commencement of remote e-voting 15 September 2023 09:00 AM 
Closing of the e-voting 21 September 2023 05:00 PM 

Voting at AGM 22 September 2023  
Declaration of results of voting 24 September 2023  

 
Voting Results  
 
The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company, www.hmagroup.co 
and on the website of NSDL (www.evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after the declaration of the results by the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the stock exchanges where the shares of the 
Company are listed. The results shall also be displayed on the notice board of the Company at the registered office and the 
corporate office. 
 

o. CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN) 
 
The CIN of the Company allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India is U74110UP2008PLC034977. 

 
p. Category of Shareholding pattern as on 31stMarch, 2023: 
 

Category 
Code 

Category 
Code 

Number of 
Shareholders 

Total number of 
shares 

As a percentage 
of(A+B+C) 

(A) Shareholding of 
Promoter 
and Promoter Group 

   

(1) Indian 7 47512875 100 

(2) Foreign - - - 

 Total Shareholding of 
Promoter and Promoter 
Group 

7 47512875 100 

(B) Public Shareholding    
(1) Institutions - - - 

(2) Non-institutions - - - 

 Total public shareholding - - - 
(C ) Shares held by 

Custodians 
and against which 
Depository 
Receipts have been 
issued 

- - - 

 Total A+B+C 7 47512875 100 

 

 
q. CORPORATE BENEFITS TO SHAREHOLDERS: 
 
DIVIDEND DECLARED FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS: 
 

Financial Year Dividend Declaration Date Dividend 

2021-2022 Declared 2.00 Rs per Equity Shares 

(Subject to deduction of taxes as 
applicable) 

2020-2021 Not Declared Not Declared 

2019-2020 Declared 0.70 Rs per Equity Shares 

(Subject to deduction of taxes as 
applicable) 

 
r. Investor Helpdesk: 
Shareholders/Investors can also send their queries through e-mail to the Company at cs@hmaagro.com. This designated e-mail 

has also been displayed on the Company’s website www.hmagroup.co under the section Investor contact. 
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s. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments and conversion date and likely impact on equity: 
 
There is no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 
 
OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of listed entity at large: During the Financial year 2022-2023, no materially significant related party 
transaction undertaken by the Company under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed 
thereunder, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 24) that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. The Company has entered into some transactions with related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, which were at arms’ length basis and the same were duly approved or reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions with related parties are given in the notes to the 
financial statements. Your Company has formulated a Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing 
with Related Party Transaction. It is available on the website of the Company, which can be accessed 
at www.hmagroup.co/investorrelation. 
 

b) Non-compliance by the Company, Penalties, Strictures: No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during 
the last three years. 

 

c) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism Policy: 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the 

Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the 
management about the unethical behaviour, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechan ism provides 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes 

provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the 
Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s 
website at www.hmagroup.co  

 
The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism also provides safeguards against victimization or unfair treatment of the 
employees who avail of the mechanism and no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 
d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements: 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations relating to Corporate 

Governance. A Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary to this effect has been included in this report.  
 

e) Details of utilization of funds: 
The company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement. 
 

f) NON- DISQUALIFICATION CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
Certificate from M/s R.C Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, confirming that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory 

Authority, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, is attached to this Report as Annexure-II. 
 

g) Confirmation by the Board of Directors regarding acceptance of recommendation of all Committees: 
In terms of amendments made to Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirm that during the year, it has 
accepted all recommendations received from all its committees to the extent possible. 
 

h) Details of Total Fees to Statutory Auditor: 
Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note No. 28 to the Standalone Financial Statements 
& Note No. 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 
i) DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
Status of the complaints in relation to Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, 
and Redressal) 

 Number of complaints filed during the financial year: 0 

 Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: 0 

 Number of complaints pending as on end of financial year: 0 
 

j) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount:  
No amount of Loans and advance has been advanced by the listed entity or subsidiaries to any firms/companies in 
which directors are interested. 

 
k) Details of Material Subsidiaries of the Listed entity including the date and place of incorporation and name and 

date of appointment of such subsidiaries: 
 

l) Non-Compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub paras (2) to (10) above shall be 
disclosed: N.A 
 

m) The disclosure of the compliance with corporategovernance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) ofregulation 46 of Listing Regulations: The Company has complied with 
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corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable, as the Company was listed on Stock 

Exchanges on July04, 2023. 
 

        n)      Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: The Company does not 

have any shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account. 
 

        o)   Disclosure of Accounting: 
In preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The significant accounting policies which are 
consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Accounts. 

 
     p)     Secretarial Audit 

M/s R.C Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries have conducted the Secretarial Audit  of the Company 

for the financial year 2022-23. Their Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, Listing Regulations, applicable SEBI 
Regulations and other laws applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of the Directors’ Report. 

 
The Company Secretary in practice carries out a quarterly Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit, to reconcile the total 
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)Ltd. (CDSL) 

and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the 
aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held 
with NSDL and CDSL). 

 
Certificate on Corporate Governance: 
The Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, issue by M/s. 

R.C Sharma & Associates., Practicing Company Secretary of the Company forms part of this Report as Annexure-III. 
 

Mandatory & Non-mandatory Requirements: 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements Securities and Exchange Board of  India (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013: 
During the year under review, there were no complaint i.e. incidences of sexual harassment were reported and there were no 

complaints pending as on end of the financial year. 
 
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 and other relevant provisions of the Act.  
 
Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures: 
The Company has complied with all requirements specified under the Listing Regulations as well as other regulations, circulars 
and guidelines issued by the SEBI. There were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchanges or MCA or 

any other regulatory/ statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the last three 
financial years. 
 

Compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015: 
The Company has fully complied with mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 
Confirmation by the Board of Directors regarding acceptance of recommendation of all Committees: 
In terms of amendments made to Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirm that during the year, it has accepted all 
recommendation received from all its committees to the extent possible. 

 
Disclosure of Loans and advances to firms/Companies in which directors are interested: 
Details relating to Loan and Advances given in Note 08 to the Standalone Financial Statements. 

 
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) certification: 
  
The Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with Part B of Schedule II to the 
Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO/CFO certification for Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 
 

The certificate required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, duly signed by the Managing Director and 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company was placed before the Board. The same is provided as Annexure-IV to this report. 
 

By the order of the Board of Directors 
FOR HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED   
 
Sd/- 
Gulzar Ahmad 
Whole time Director and Chairman 
DIN: 01312305  
Date: 29.08.2023 
Place: Agra 
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ANNEXURE-F 

DISCLOSURES ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the statistical analysis of the remuneration paid to 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median remuneration of employees of the company and with respect 

to the performance of the company (PAT) and other disclosures are given below:- 

(I) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company 
for the financial year 2022-23; 
 

Sr. NO. Designation Designation Ratio 

1.  Gulzar Ahmad Chairman Cum Whole Time Director 12:1 

2.  Wajid Ahmed Managing Director 12:1 

3.  Gulzeb Ahmed Whole Time Director Cum FCO 8:1 

 
(II) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2022-23; 
 

Sr. NO. Designation % increase in 
remuneration 

1. Gulzar Ahmad 20% 

2. Wajid Ahmed 20% 

3. Gulzeb Ahmed 17.65% 

 
(III) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-2023; 

 
Particulars Amount (in ₹) % increase in Salary 

FY 2021-22 12,53,364 - 

FY 2022-23 14,96,286 19.30 

Notes: 

1. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2023 is approx.. 956. 

2. Payment to Non-Executive Independent Directors is only Sitting Fees. 

 
 
 
 

For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
  
Sd/- 
Gulzar Ahmad  
Chairman 
(DIN: 01312305) 
Place: Agra  
Date: 29.08.2023  
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 A.  Economic Overview:

Global Economy

Global economic activity is experiencing a
broad-based and sharper-than-expected
slowdown, with inflation higher than seen in
several decades. The cost-of-living crisis,
tightening financial conditions in most regions,
Russia - Ukraine conflict, and the after effect of
COVID-19 pandemic all weigh heavily on the
outlook. Global growth is forecast to slow from
6.0 per cent in 2021 to 3.2 per cent in 2022 and
2.7 per cent in 2023. This is the weakest growth
profile since 2001 except for the global financial
crisis and the acute phase of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Russia-Ukraine conflict continues to
overshadow the world economy. Despite recent
signs of improvement, recovery over the next
two years is expected to be moderate. The
outlook remains fragile and downside risks
predominate. High uncertainty generated by the
war could take a heavy toll on activity. Trade
tensions are high and could worsen. Concerns
about financial vulnerabilities have risen,
including in financial institutions, housing
markets and low-income countries. While
headline inflation has started declining, it
remains elevated and could persist longer.
(Source – OECD)

     Indian Economy and Outlook

Credit growth to the micro, small, and medium
enterprises (MSME) sector has been
remarkably high, over 30.5 per cent, on
average during Jan-Nov 2022. 

ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

Capital expenditure (capex) of the
central government, which increased by
63.4 per cent in the first eight months of
FY 2022-23, was another growth driver
of the Indian economy in the current
year. Private consumption as a
percentage of GDP stood at 58.4 per
cent in Q2 of FY 2022-23, the highest
among the second quarters of all the
years since 2013-14, supported by a
rebound in contact-intensive services
such as trade, hotel and transport.
Return of migrant workers to
construction activities helped housing
market witnessing a significant decline in
inventory overhang to 33 months in Q3
of FY 2022-23 from 42 months last year.
Surge in growth of exports in FY 2021-
22 and the first half of FY 2022-23
induced a shift in the gears of the
production processes from mild
acceleration to cruise mode.

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

A
N

N
EX

U
R

E 
G

92



                   OPPORTUNITIES                                                                                          THREATS 

Significant shifts in consumption patterns due to COVID-19 impact

Environmental Impact of the industry

B.Industry Structure and Development:

The Global Frozen Meat Market size reached
US$ 80 billion in 2022 and is projected to
witness lucrative growth by reaching up to US$
165 billion by 2030. The market is growing at a
CAGR of 4.9% during the forecast period 2023-
2030.

The primary driver of the frozen meat market is
the increasing demand for convenience foods,
which are easy to prepare and require less time
in the kitchen.

The frozen meat market for frozen meat
products is seeing strong growth in urban
areas, where consumers have limited time and
space for cooking and storing fresh meat. The
increasing demand for convenience foods is a
significant driver of the global frozen meat
market and is expected to continue to support
its growth in the coming years.

Recent Status of Indian Meat Industry 
– An Overview

The meat production industry is a vital part of
the Indian agricultural setup. According to a
research, meat production in India is estimated
at 6.3 million tons annually and is ranked 5th in
the world in terms of production volume. India
is responsible for 3% of the total meat
production in the world. The nation has the
world’s largest population of livestock at about
515 million.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The company deals in buffalo meat and allied
products only. Unlike beef or pork, buffalo meat
is free from religious constraints and has the
added advantage of low fat and cholesterol.

I
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In 2022-23, buffalo meat exports reached
1,175,532 tonnes valued at Rs 25 640 Crore. A
slowdown in demand is likely to keep buffalo
meat exports from India subdued in the first half
of the current year after a marginal increase in
volumes in FY23.

According to data released by the Agricultural
and Processed Food Products Export
Development Authority (APEDA). Currency
volatility, slowdown in category growth rates
and unpredictable weather patterns are some
of the threats to the company’s prospects.

Global meat consumption is currently forecast to grow supported by population and income growth,
primarily in Asia. Low per capita consumption along with demographic changes provides tremendous
scope for future penetration. Major developing countries (SE Asian countries including India) with low
meat consumption currently will emerge as major growth centers for the global meat industry

Low per capita meat consumption among the developing countries

Household income growth within developing countries is expected to drive further demand for meat,
as increasing disposable incomes open a range of retail and dining choices for consumers. The
developing countries are forecast to account for 77% of additional world consumption growth over the
next five years, largely due to population growth, urbanization and increasing incomes.

Population growth is clearly the main driver of increased consumption, and the projected global
population increase of 11% will support an increase of 14% in global meat consumption by 2030. The
meat’s share in the global consumption is expected to be around 21%.

Population growth and demographics

High economic growth and increase in consumer purchasing power

DURABILITY OF OUR PRODUCTS

Our Products can be storage upto 2 years so that this is a Good option for countries which is
Concerned about their food security.

INCREASE RATE OF CONSUMMATION OF MEAT AS MEAL

Almost 60% of world population uses Meat & Meat Products as their meal. Our Products is Taken as
a Common Food for World Population.

QUALITY OF OUR PRODUCTS

Our product having a low fat cholesterol, Slaughter through Halal methods and Free from major
diseases.

The pandemic has witnessed significant shifts in consumer purchasing behavior. The foodservice
sector has been one of the most impacted industries, with wide-scale shutdowns and operating
restrictions across most markets. The main players in the foodservice sector that pivoted to takeaway
or delivery models were able to weather the pandemic restrictions more successfully. Retail meat
sales have performed well comparatively, in the next wave with consumers spending more time
cooking at home in line with the decline in food delivery service. There has been a growing consumer
interest and awareness about locally sourced, natural products, and preference for healthy, immunity
boosting, and ready to eat, convenient food products.

The meat industry poses numerous threats to the natural environment with high consumption of land
and water resources and increase in anthropogenic GHG emissions. Many meats producing
countries such Brazil, Australia and Argentina has also been criticized for causing deforestation,
clearing of forest for the soy and cattle industries, increase in soy plantations, increase in wildfires
incidents and significant bio-diversity loss. The Indian buffalo meat follows green cattle production
and processing methods, free of any growth hormones or artificial feeds

Various Government Approvals Requires

Meat Industry requires huge numbers of government approvals and licensing for smooth operation of
meat business and also requires timely renewal of these permissions and licensing. It a big threat for
meat industry.

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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C. SEGMENT-WISE/ PRODUCT-WISE 
PERFORMANCE

The company deals in buffalo meat and allied
products only. Unlike beef or pork, buffalo meat
is free from religious constraints and has the
added advantage of low fat and cholesterol.

There is a growing demand for Indian meat in
developing countries especially from the Middle
Eastern and South Asian markets. The
company is well positioned to take advantage
of such growing demands. The company
recently diversified its product portfolio by
adding Frozen Fish Products and Basmati Rice
as business verticals; this will enable the
company to capture new geographies and
increase revenue.

D.Outlook

In order to consolidate the presence of your
company across the major markets like UAE,
Iraq, Saudi Arabia, Oman, Bahrain, Jordan,
Algeria, Egypt, Angola, Vietnam, Indonesia,
Georgia, Malaysia, Combodia, and other
Middle East, CIS, and African Countries. The
company has plans to expand its reach.

E. RISKS AND CONCERNS

Outbreaks of livestock diseases in general can
significantly restrict company ability to conduct
operations. The company operates in a highly
regulated environment and religiously sensitive
business. Any significant change in the
government policies or any political instability in
India could adversely affect business.

The company faces foreign exchange risks, as
it derives around 90% of its revenue from
exports. Any significant fluctuation in the value
of the Indian rupee against such currencies
including as noticed recently in the case of the
US dollar may adversely affect results of
operations. Your Company increased its efforts
to improve productivity by deploying various
cost reduction and energy saving initiatives,
resulting in a reduction in manufacturing costs
to lower levels.

F. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL 
   PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT 

       TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the turnover of
the Company is ₹31,25,55,30,000/- in
comparison with the last year
₹29,21,98,90,000/-. The profit after tax of the
company is ₹1,37,32,10,000/-. Despite high
inflationary and cost pressures throughout the
year, company capitalized on every available
opportunity and undertook strategic initiatives
coupled with to exploit the full industry
potential, besides making efforts towards cost
reduction and improved efficiency which enable
the company to grow reasonably well. 

G. HUMAN RESOURCES

‘Humankind is the Greatest Resource’

The Company’s endeavor has always been to
build an organization where its people are
always engaged and empowered to do their
best. The Company’s culture is focused on
quality product preparation and collaborative
team work. 

Owing to the competitiveness and diversity of
Indian markets, the Company strives to ensure
adequate succession planning of its leadership
talent pool. In line with the Company’s focus on
employee empowerment, it has also designed
new ‘Ways of Working’ to deliver high
operational excellence and governance.

The Company recognizes and appreciates the
contribution of all its employees in its growth
path. Our Company strives to retain talent by
facilitating career growth through job
enrichment and empowerment, as it believes
that the pool of the human resource is the
biggest asset of the organization. Your
Company maintains a cordial relationship with
its employees through a constructive work
environment in support of productive gains. 

*Equity in Debt-Equity Ratio includes retained
earnings
* Equity in Return on Equity Ratio does not
include retained earnings
*Current ratio change due to decrease in
current assets
*Return on Equity, Return on capital employed
and Return on investment change due to
change in profitability on higher side
* Net profit ratio change due to profit from
business increased.

H. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and
Analysis describing the HMA Agro Industries
Limited objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations might be construed as ‘forward
looking statements’ within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations.

Actual results may differ substantially or
materially from those expressed or implied.
Important developments that could affect the
Company’s operations include a downward
trend in the industry, rise in input costs,
exchange rate fluctuations and significant
changes in political and economic environment,
environment standards, tax laws, litigation and
labour relations.

To ensure our Long term corporate success,
company implements risk management system
which includes recording, monitoring and
controlling internal enterprise business risks
and addressing them through informed and
objective strategies.

For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

 
Sd/-

Gulzar Ahmad 
Chairman

(DIN: 01312305)

Place: Agra 
Date: 29.08.2023
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ANNEXURE-H 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE 

COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS), RULES 2014. 

1. Conservation of Energy: 

Your Company’s focus on Energy Management, Operational Excellence, and Plant Reliability improvement continued during the year 

under report. Your Company continued its policy of giving priority to energy conservation measures including regular review of energy 

generation, distribution, consumption and effective control on utilization of energy in its Factory sites at Aligarh, Agra (UP) Mewat 

(Haryana) Dera Bassi (Punjab) 

2. Technology Absorption: 

The company recently setup new Machinery in all its plants which are newly technology equipped and which helps in absorption of 

technology for more efficiency in operation. Your Company is always do research and developments for adopt new technology for the 

business.   

3. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo during the financial year under review: 

 

Particulars Amount (In ₹ Millions) 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 372.80 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 3.36 

 

 

By Order of the Board 

For: HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

Sd/- 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman cum Whole Time Director 

DIN: 01312305 

Place: Agra 

Date:  29.08.2023 
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Annexure-I 
 
 

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN 
 

I, Wajid Ahmed, Managing Director (MD) of HMA Agro Industries Limited (“the Company”) confirm that the Company has adopted 
a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for its Board Members and senior management personnel and  the Code is available on the 

Company’s Website. 
 
I, further confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2023, received from its Board members 

as well as senior management personnel affirmation as to compliance with the Code of Conduct. 
 
This is to confirm that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 

Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
 

For HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 

 
Sd/- 
Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 
Place: Agra         
Date: August 29, 2023         
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Annexure-II 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI(Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015) 

 
 

To, 
The Members, 
HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Add: 18A/5/3, Tajview Crossing  
Fatehabad Road Agra Uttar Pradesh-282001 

 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of HMA AGRO 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN U74110UP2008PLC034977 and having registered office at 18A/5/3, Tajview Crossing 
Fatehabad Road, Agra, Uttar Pradesh-282001(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company 
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of 
the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, 
we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st 
March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority .  
 

Sr. No Name of Director DIN Initial Date of 
Appointment 

1 Gulzar Ahmad 01312305 09.04.2008 

2 Wajid Ahmed 01312261 01.04.2013 

3 Gulzeb Ahmed 06546660 03.06.2021 

4 Amit Goyal 05146923 03.06.2021 

5 Gaurav R. Luthra 08023492 03.06.2021 

6 Bhumika Parwani 09732792 26.09.2022 

 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

For R.C Sharma & Associates,           
Company Secretaries                                                         
COP No: 7957 
 

Sd/- 
R.C Sharma 

Prop 
Company Secretary 
M.No: 5524 
Date: 07.08.2023 
Place: Agra 
UDIN: F005524E000752886 
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Annexure-III 

 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 

The Member of 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the 
Company) for the year ended March 31, 2023, as per regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the company’s management. Our examinations 
were limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, I certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

For R.C Sharma & Associates,           
Company Secretaries                                                         
COP No: 7957 
 

Sd/- 
R.C Sharma 
Prop 
Company Secretary 
M.No: 5524 
Date: 07.08.2023 
Place: Agra 
UDIN: F005524E000752776 
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ANNEXURE-IV 
 
CERTIFICATION BY EXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THECOMPANY 
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
We, Wajid Ahmed, Managing Director (MD) and Gulzeb Ahmed, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), of HMA Agro Industries Limited 
(“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 

1. We have reviewed the financial statements for the Quarter & Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 along with its 
schedules and notes on accounts, as well as the cash flow statements; 

 
2. These statements do not contain any untrue statements of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, misleading with 

respect to the statements made; 
 

3. These financial statements, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 

flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report, and are in compliance with  the existing 
accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations; 

 

4. Based on our knowledge and information, no transactions entered into by the Company during the period, are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

5. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the 
Auditors and the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal controls and steps proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
6. We have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the Company’s Auditors and the Audit Committee of the 

Company’s Board of Directors: 
a. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the period, if any; 
b. significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and 

c. There are no instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement, therein, of the management 
or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.  

 

 
 
 

 
Sd/-      Sd/- 

Place: Agra    Wajid Ahmed    Gulzeb Ahmed 
Date: 07Aug, 2023     Managing Director    Chief Financial Officer 
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MAPSS AND COMPANY 

                                  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

                                  C-40, Second Floor, Ten Tower 

                                  Above Indian Bank, Sec-15, 

                                  Vasundhara, Ghaziabad-201012 

                                  Tel: 0120-4166486 

                                  Email: gpa001@gmail.com

 

   

   

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HMA Agro Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements” 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 

of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date.  

  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 

of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.  

 

Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

On the facts and circumstances of the company and the audit, we determine that there are no key audit matters to communicate.  

 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 

in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial 

statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Account ing 

Standards (AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting f rauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparat ion and presentation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout  the 

audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 

the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act 

subject to the matters specified in key audit matters and other matters. 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board 

of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements. 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the 

Act, as amended:   

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us: 

 

i.The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements. 

Refer Note no. 38 to the consolidated financial statements. 

 

ii.The Company has not made any provision against the pending litigation as the company believes that these claims are not 

tenable and hence no provisioning made by the company. 

 

iii.   There were no amounts as on 31st March 2023, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 

accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
 

funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 

accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultima te 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and  

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 

under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement. 

 

v.As stated in note 2.16 to the accompanying standalone financial statement, the Board of Directors of the company has recognizes 

a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorized, and the distribution is no longer at 

the discretion of the company. As per corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. 

A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. Company has declared and paid dividend during the period under 

review. 

 

vi.As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for books of account to have 

the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the  

Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable. 

 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 

143(11) of the Act, we have given “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order
. 

  

For MAPSS AND COMPANY                               

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 012796C 

 

Sd/- 

CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA 

Partner   

Membership No. 078183 
UDIN: 23078183BGVUVI5522 

Date : 31-07-2023  

Place: Ghaziabad 
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Annexure ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report to the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financials Statements under 
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of HMA Agro Industries Limited (the 

“Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to standa lone 

financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its  business, 

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 

the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 

to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone 

financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of  the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 

any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the 

risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with 

reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial 

control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

 

For MAPSS AND COMPANY                               

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 012796C 

 

Sd/- 

CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA 

Partner   

Membership No. 078183 

UDIN: 23078183BGVUVI5522 

Date : 31-07-2023 

Place : Ghaziabad 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report to the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records 

examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: We report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 

Plant and Equipment; 

(B) No Intangible assets during the period under review; 

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by 

which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with the 

programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 

verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name 

of the company except the following:- 

 

Description 

of Property 

Gross 

carrying 

value 

Held in 

name of 

Whether promoter, 

director or their 

relative or 

employee 

Period held - 

indicate range, 

where 

appropriate 

Reason for not 

being held in 

name of 

company 

NIL 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both 

during the year. 

(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 

under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) (a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. In our 

opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more 

in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared 

to book records.  

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate,
 

at any points of time during 

the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 

3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. Although company is using purchase credit facility of ₹365 crores.
  

 

            Amount in ₹Crores 

Stock Statement Details 

  As Per Books Stock Statement Submitted In Bank Diff (A-B) 

Month Debtors Creditors Inventory Total (A) Debtors Creditors Inventory Total (B) 
 

April   286.03        29.76         72.24     388.03    286.01        29.76         72.16      387.93           0.10  

May   266.06        29.08         76.01     371.15    266.04        29.08         75.98      371.10           0.05  

June   301.09        38.61         60.49     400.19    301.09        38.61         60.45      400.15           0.04  

July   299.52        31.16         69.61     400.29    299.52        31.16         69.58      400.26           0.03  

August   264.58        29.22         69.69     363.49    264.58        29.22         69.63      363.43           0.06  

September   245.85        25.79         58.66     330.30    245.85        25.79         58.64      330.28           0.02  

October   294.27        45.46       124.63     464.36    294.23        45.46       124.60      464.29           0.07  

November   264.51        49.77         87.84     402.12    264.51        49.77         87.72      402.00           0.12  

December   258.41        50.03         70.61     379.05    258.41        50.03         70.55      378.99           0.06  

January   241.83        51.28         70.38     363.49    241.79        51.28         70.12      363.19           0.30  

February   288.61        51.50         84.56     424.67    288.61        51.50         84.36      424.47           0.20  

March   299.52        12.94       109.51     421.97    299.52        12.94       109.42      421.88           0.09  
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(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 

loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties other than the details 

mentioned below. 

 

S. No. Company Nature As on 31st March, 2023 

Amount (in ₹ crores)  

Guarantee Given 

1 United Farm Products Private Ltd 

(subsidiary of HMA Agro Industries 

Private Ltd) 

Provided guarantee on behalf of its 

subsidiary company 

65 

Loan provided 

2 United Farm Products Private Ltd 

(subsidiary of HMA Agro Industries 

Private Ltd) 

Provided unsecured loan 231.59 

3 FNS Agro Foods Limited (subsidiary of 

HMA Agro Industries Private Ltd) 

Provided unsecured loan 0.10 

5 Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP Provided unsecured loan 1.41 

Advances to related Party 

6 Laal Agro Food Private Limited In the nature of Advances 7.62 

7 JFF Export Private Limited In the nature of Advances 40.95 

8 HMA Natural Foods Private Limited In the nature of Advances .055 

9 HMA Food Export Private Limited In the nature of Advances 13.60 

10 Reliable agro foods In the nature of Advances 0.96 

  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and 

the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prima 

facie prejudicial to the company’s interest; 
(c) There is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and therefore we are unable to comment 

on the regularity of repayment of principal & payment of interest. 

(d) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule we are unable to comment whether the amount is 

overdue or not. 

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or 

fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties except following:  

 

Name of Party Amount renewed or 

extended 

% of total 

loan 

Remark, if any 

 Nil   

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 

any terms or period of repayment. 

 

(iv) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 

been complied with except non-charging of interest on the loan. 

 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the records made available to us, company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods  

and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 

value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation 

given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have 

not been deposited on account of any dispute except following: (if applicable) : 

Name 

of the 

Statute 

Nature of 

the Dues 

Amount 

(Rs.) 

Period to 

which the 

amount relates 

Forum where 

Dispute is 

Pending 

Remarks, if 

Any 

   NIL   

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no transactions not recorded in the books of account 

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year, except the facility of packing credit availed 

from the financial institutions and there is no default has been noticed in the payment of this facility. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company is not declared willful defaulter by 

any bank or financial institution or other lender; 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has utilized the 

money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained, except for:  

Nature of 

the fund 

raised 

Name of 

the lender 

Amount 

diverted 

(Rs.) 

Purpose for 

which 

amount was 

sanctioned 

Purpose for 

which amount 

was utilized 

Remarks 

      Nil   

 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, funds raised on short term 

basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not taken any 

funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,  

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
 

company has not raised 

loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.  

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company has availed the facility of packing credited from the financial institution and there is no default has been noticed in 

the payment of this facility. 

 

(ix) (a)The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 

the year. 

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, part ially 

or optionally convertible) during the year. 

 

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company 

has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received 

by the company. 

 

(xi) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause xii is not applicable on the company.  

 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are in compliance 
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.  

 

(xiii) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.  

  
(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are not applicable to the Company.  

 

(xv) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 
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(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 

activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934, 

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does not have any
 

CIC as part of the 

Group. 

 

(xvi) Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

 

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.  
 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  
 

(xix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are 
not applicable. 

 
(xx)There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies 

included in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, clause3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

For MAPSS AND COMPANY                                

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 012796C 
 

 

Sd/- 

CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA 

Partner   

Membership No. 078183 
Date: 23078183BGVUVI5522 

Place: Ghaziabad
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

(A) Non-current assets 

Note 
As at 

March 31,2023 

As at 

March 31,2022 

(a) Property, plant and equipment (3) 350.19 347.21 

(b) Capital work in progress (4) 4.18 4.18 

(c) Financial assets    

(i) Investments (5) 728.80 728.80 

(ii) Loans (8) 1,533.57 444.50 

(iii) Other financials assets (11) 264.75 277.95 

(d) Income tax assets  77.44 46.11 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) (12) 70.70 11.80 

Total non-current assets  3,029.63 1,860.55 
    

(B) Current assets    

(a) Inventories (6) 1,127.20 1,318.21 

(b) Financial assets    

(i) Trade receivables (7) 2,992.07 2,881.87 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents (9) 651.13 164.97 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above (10) 18.51 225.26 

(iv) Other financial assets (11) 15.68 44.85 

(c) Other assets (13) 1,192.42 943.32 

Total current assets  5,997.01 5,578.48 

Total assets  9,026.64 7,439.03 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

(A) Equity    

(a) Share capital (14) 475.13 475.13 

(b) Other equity (15) 4,369.26 3,202.10 

Total equity  4,844.39 3,677.23 

(B) Liabilities    

(I) Non-current liabilities    

(a) Financial liabilities    

(i) Other financial liabilities (18) 8.43 4.70 

(b) Provisions (20) 15.89 7.86 

Total non-current liabilities  24.32 12.56 

(II) Current liabilities    

(a) Financial liabilities    

(i) Borrowings (16) 2,856.36 2,651.65 

(ii) Trade payables (17)   

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises  - - 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small  673.24 650.57 
enterprises    

(iii) Other financial liabilities (18) 201.79 23.20 

(b) Other liabilities (19) 349.26 423.02 

(c) Provisions (20) 1.87 0.80 

(d) Current tax liabilities  75.41 - 

Total current liabilities  4,157.93 3,749.24 
    

Total Equity and Liabilities  9,026.64 7,439.03 

 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements 

 

1 - 2 

  

As per our report of even date attached.    

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN :  U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 

Sd/-        Sd/-                   Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmed 
Whole Time Director 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 

 
               Sd/-                  Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 

Statement of Profit and Loss for period ended March 31 , 2023 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
Note 

 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

    

(1) Income    

(a) Revenue from operations (21) 31,255.53 29,219.88 

(b) Other income (22) 460.76 553.90 

Total Income  31,716.29 29,773.78 
    

(2) Expenses    

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed (23) 25,119.32 23,548.55 

(b) Changes in inventories (24) 191.01 (49.74) 

(c) Employee benefits expense (25) 218.79 730.02 

(d) Finance costs (26) 101.73 64.85 

(e) Depreciation expense (27) 43.75 43.54 

(f) Other expenses (28) 4,204.63 3,942.02 

Total Expenses  29,879.23 28,279.24 
    

(3) Profit before tax (1-2)  1,837.06 1,494.54 
    

(4) Tax expense (36)   

(a) Current tax  485.41 382.10 

(b) Tax expense relating to prior years  - 10.15 

(c) Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (21.56) (1.73) 

Total tax expense  463.85 390.52 
    

(5) Profit for the year  1,373.21 1,104.02 
    

(6) Other comprehensive income    

(1) Items that will be reclassified to Profit / (Loss)  - - 

(a) Net change in value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges  (140.10)  

(b) Deferred tax impact on above  35.26  

(2) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit  - - 

(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans*  (8.26) 0.83 

(b) Deferred tax impact on above  2.08 (0.21) 

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)  (111.02) 0.62 
    

(7) Total comprehensive income for the year  1,262.19 1,104.64 
    

Earnings per share (EPS) (Rupees per share) (35)   

(1) Basic EPS  28.90 23.24 

(2) Diluted EPS  28.90 23.24 

Significant accounting policies 1 - 2 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached. 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN : U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
    Sd/-               Sd/-                      Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmed 
Whole Time Director 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
 

           Sd/-                     Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

111



HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

   

(A) Cashflows from operating activities   

Profit before tax 1,837.06 1,494.54 

Adjustment for:   

Depreciation expense 43.75 43.54 

Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on forward contracts (net) 91.04 (29.14) 

Interest expense 100.77 63.45 

Gratuity expenses (7.42) 2.17 

Interest on bank deposits (62.20) (15.61) 

Guarantee commission income (0.79) 0.05 

Liabilities no longer required written back - (18.03) 

Foreign exchange gain, net (24.29) (441.90) 

Profit on sale of assets (net) (0.51) (0.05) 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,977.41 1,099.02 
   

Adjustment for changes in working capital:   

Decrease /(Increase) in inventories 191.02 (49.81) 

(Increase) in trade receivables (85.92) (754.19) 

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 13.22 (164.73) 

(Increase) in other assets (249.10) (7.24) 

Increase in trade payables 22.66 1.53 

(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (18.88) (45.35) 

Increase/(Decrease) in other provision 8.29 (6.17) 

(Decrease) in other current liabilities (73.76) (122.62) 

Cash generated from operations 1,784.95 (49.56) 

Taxes paid (net of refunds) (441.34) (432.28) 

Net cashflows from operating activities 1,343.61 (481.84) 

   

(B) Cashflows from investing activities   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (46.73) (11.81) 

Profit on sale of assets 0.51 0.05 

Movement in bank deposits with maturity greater than 3 months (net) 206.75 (225.26) 

Investment in subsidiary (0.00) (203.96) 

Interest received on fixed deposit 62.20 15.61 

Loan given to subsidiaries (1,089.08) (338.56) 

Net cashflows from investing activities (866.36) (763.93) 

   

(C) Cashflows from financing activities   

Borrowings taken, net 204.71 962.04 

Interest paid (100.77) (59.95) 

Dividend paid (95.03) - 

Net cashflows from financing activities 8.91 902.09 

   

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 486.16 (343.68) 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 164.97 508.65 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 651.13 164.97 
   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:   

Cash in hand 11.96 21.59 

Balance with banks:   

In current accounts 631.08 129.83 

Cheques in hand 8.09 13.55 

In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less - - 
   

Total cash and cash equivalents 651.13 164.97 

 

Notes : 

The cashflow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of cash flows' as specified under section 

133 of the Companies Act,2013. 

 
As per our report of even date attached. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN : U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 

 
 Sd/-                          Sd/-         Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmed 
Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
 

 
                Sd/-        Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2023 

 

(A) Equity share capital 
 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars Note Amount 

 

Balance as at April 01, 2021    37.27 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  437.86 

Balance as at March 31, 2022    475.13 

Changes in equity share capital during the period  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2023    475.13 

 
 

 

(B) Other equity 
 
 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
 

Particulars 

Reserve and Surplus  

Effective 

portion of Cash 

flow hedge 

 
 

Total equity 
 

General Reserve 

 
Capital Reserve 

 
Securities Premium 

 
Retained earnings 

Remeasurement 

of defined 

employee benefit 

plans 

Balance as at April 01, 2021 600.00 5.00 34.20 1,895.68 0.45 - 2,535.33 
Issue of bonus shares (Refer note 14(h)) (403.67) - (34.20) - - - (437.87) 
Profit for the year - - - 1,104.02 0.62 - 1,104.64 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 196.33 5.00 - 2,999.70 1.07 - 3,202.10 
Profit/(loss) for the current period - - - 1,373.21 (6.18) (104.84) 1,262.19 
Dividend paid - - - (95.03) - - (95.03) 
Balance as at March 31,2023 196.33 5.00 - 4,277.88 (5.11) (104.84) 4,369.26 

 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

(a) Securities Premium Reserve: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It can be used only in accordance 

with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for specified purposes. 

(b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date net of appropriations. It is available for distribution to shareholders. 

(c) Capital Reserves : Any short fall of consideration paid over net assets acquired is treated as capital reserve under equity. 

(d) General Reserves :Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance 

with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for 

that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily 

transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in 

accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013 
The accompanying notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements 

 
As per our report of even date attached. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited  

Chartered Accountants CIN : U74110UP2008PLC034977  

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C 

 
    Sd/-                                                     Sd/-                            Sd/-                   Sd/-        Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmed 
Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Gulzeb Ahmed 
Chief Financial Officer 

Nikhil Sundrani 
Company Secretary 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 DIN: 0654660 Membership number : 53307 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023 

 

 

 

1 Corporate information 

HMA Agro Industries Limited (''the Company'') is domiciled and incorporated in India and it is an unlisted Company. The registered office of the Company is situated 

at 2/220, 2nd Floor, Glory Plaza, Opp Soor Sadan, M G Road, Agra-282002. The Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo 

Frozen Meat and Meat Products operating in State of Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Haryana, Rajasthan, Bihar and Maharashtra. The financial statements of the company 

for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved and authorized for issue by board of directors in their meeting held on July 31, 2023. 
 

Significant accounting policies 

2 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, 

(Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting 

policy regarding financial instruments). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees "INR" which is also the Company's functional currency and all values 

are rounded to the nearest million (Rupees Million) upto two decimal, except when otherwise indicated. 
 

2.01 Property, plant and equipment 

 
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes 

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost includes its purchase price including non-refundable taxes and duties, directly 

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present location and condition.  

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or Recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement 

of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted in the line with 

revisions to accounting estimates. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, which is in line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if 

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

The estimated useful lives are as follows : 
 

Assets Useful life (years) 

Office equipment 10 

Plant and Machinery 15 

Building 30 

Vehicles 8 

Land - 

 

2.02 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying amount of the Company ’ each class 

of the property, plant and equipment or intangible assets. If any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized 

whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. 

 

2.03 Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

 
► Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

► Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

► Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

► Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023 

 

 

 
2.03 Current versus non-current classification (Continued) 

 
A liability is current when: 

► It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

► It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

► It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

► There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve 

months as its operating cycle. 

2.04 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions 

that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising 

the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 

follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

► Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities . 

► Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

 
► Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amount approximates 

fair value to due to short term maturity of these instruments. 

The Company recognises the transfer between the levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the changes has occurred. 

 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 

asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summaries accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

► Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 31)  
► Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 31) 

 

2.05 Revenue from contract with customers 

 

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to a customer. 

The Company identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and recognises revenue as and when the performance obligations are satisfied. 

Revenue from inter-company arrangement is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length based on transfer pricing arrangement. 

 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified 

in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

Sale of products : 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the control and ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, on delivery of the goods to the ultimate 

consumer. 

2.06 Other income 

Interest income: 

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 
Profit/ (Loss) on derivatives: 

Profit/ (Loss) on derivatives contracts on account of fair value changes are recognised as either income or expenses as the case may be through Profit and loss. 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023 

 

 

 
2.06 Other income (Continued) 

 
Duty drawback : 

Duty drawback income is recognised when right to receive such benefits is established. Further, in cases where there is uncertainty of such benefits, revenue is 

recognised when benefits are received. 
 

2.07 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows: 

 
► Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal 

operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. 

► Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined 

on weighted average basis. 

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 

 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 

the sale. 

 
2.08 Taxes 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income 

Tax Act 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in 

the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 

Deferred Tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet approach at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purpose at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits 

will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 

recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply in a year when asset is realised or the liability is expected to be settled 

based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax 

where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws. 
 

2.09 Current and deferred tax for the year 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 
 

2.10 Foreign Currency translation 

 
Functional and Presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates 

(‘the functional currency’). The Financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

Transaction and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised in the financial statements using exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date and foreign exchange 

gain or loss are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023 

 

 

 
2.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities  

 

Provisions: 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 

the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 

Contingent Liabilities: 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events 

where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. The Company does 

not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

2.12 Financial Instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

a. Non Derivative Financial Assets 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value 

through profit or loss. 

 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business 

model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company initially measures a financial 

asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 

of financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. 

Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.05 for Revenue from contracts with customers. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments 

of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 

Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. 

 
The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model 

determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at 

amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified 

and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

► Financial assets at amortised cost 

► Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

► Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses 

► Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition 

 

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is 

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 

in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost 
includes loans and other financial assets. 

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at FVOCI if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

 

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when 

they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-

by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind 

AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 

 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when 

the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which 

case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. 

 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss. This category includes investments in mutual funds. Dividends on such investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right 

of payment has been established. 
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2.11 Financial Instruments (Continued) 

 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from a 

Company’s balance sheet) when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
Impairment of financial assets 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be 

impaired, if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 

recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit 

loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

 
b. Non Derivative Financial Liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs 

 
Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) 

 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 

is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

c. Derivative financial instruments 

 

Instruments in hedging relationship 

The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward contracts as hedge instruments in respect of foreign exchange risks. These hedges are accounted for 

as cash flow hedges, net of taxes based on the forcasted highly probable transactions. 
 

The Company uses hedging instruments that are governed by the policies of the Company which are approved by the Board of Directors. The policies provide 

written principles on the use of such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the Company. 

 
The hedge instruments are designated and documented as hedges at the inception of the contract. The Company determines the existence of an economic 

relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and timing of their respective cash flows. The effectiveness of 

hedge instruments to reduce the risk associated with the exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis. The cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the statement of profit and loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted 

transaction. If the hedged forecasted transaction are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in other equity are immediately 

reclassified in net foreign exchange gains in the statement of profit and loss. The effective portion of change in the fair value of the designated hedging instrument 

is recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedging reserve. 

 
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss 

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity till that time remains and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the 

forecasted transaction ultimately affects profit and loss. 

 

Instruments not in hedging relationship 

The Company enters into contracts that are effective as hedges from an economic perspective, but they do not qualify for hedge accounting. The change in the 

fair value of such instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash balances at banks, on hand cash balances and demand deposits with an original maturity of 

three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cash at bank, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

 
2.14 Earnings Per Share 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have 

changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per 

share is the net profit for the year after deducting any attributable tax thereto for the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit 

for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. 
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2.15 Segment Reporting 

 

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance 

and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at market 

prices. Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment. 

 

Segment Policies 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements 

of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 
 

2.16 Dividend 

 

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the 

discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 

recognised directly in equity. 

 

2.17 Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions 

 

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 

in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances existing when the Standalone financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected. 

 
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements which have significant effect on the amounts 

Recognized in the Standalone financial statements: 

 

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and intangible assets 

and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be Capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life specified in Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and also as per management estimate for certain category of assets. Assumption also need to be made, when company assesses, whether as 

asset may be Capitalized and which components of the cost of the assets may be capitalized. 

b. Contingencies: Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigation 

against company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

 
c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes    : Some of the Companies assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting 

purposes. The Management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for the fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset 

or a liability, the Company used market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engaged third party 

qualified valuers to perform the valuations in order to determine the fair values based on the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to fair value 

measurements such as Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 

feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  
 

d. Estimation of defined benefit plans :The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 

assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields 

at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post- 

employment benefit obligation. 

e. Tax expense :Tax expense is calculated using applicable tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted. In arriving at taxable profit and 

all tax bases of assets and liabilities, the Group determines the taxability based on tax enactments, relevant judicial pronouncements and tax expert opinions, and 

makes appropriate provisions which includes an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments / litigations. Any difference is recognized on closure 

of assessment or in the period in which they are agreed. 

 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and unused tax credits could be utilised. 
 

2.18 Recent accounting pronouncements 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 

issued from time to time. 

On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below: 

 
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their 

significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated 

the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements 
 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ 
and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for 

adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its 

standalone financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give 

rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The 

Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statement. 
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(3) Property, plant and equipment (in ₹ Million) 

       
 

Gross carrying amount 

As at April 01, 2022 120.53 91.00 50.54 196.98 19.43 478.48 

Additions   40.27 4.45 5.56 50.28 
Disposals - - (4.06) - - (4.06) 

As at March 31, 2023 120.53 91.00 86.75 201.43 24.99 524.70 
 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April 01, 2022 - 14.96 32.44 77.67 6.20 131.27 
Charge for the year - 4.38 9.30 24.98 5.09 43.75 
On disposals - - (0.51) - - (0.51) 

As at March 31, 2023 - 19.34 41.23 102.65 11.29 174.51 

 

 
Gross carrying amount 

As at April 01, 2021 120.27 93.10 44.68 198.92 11.70 468.67 
Additions 0.26 - 5.86 2.32 7.73 16.17 
Disposals - (2.10) - (4.26) - (6.36) 

As at March 31, 2022 120.53 91.00 50.54 196.98 19.43 478.48 

 
Accumulated depreciation 

As at April 01, 2021 

Charge for the year 

 - 
- 

10.26 
4.70 

25.53 
6.91 

52.18 
27.55 

1.82 
4.38 

89.79 
43.54 

On disposals  - - - (2.06) - (2.06) 

As at March 31, 2022 -  14.96 32.44 77.67 6.20 131.27 

 

 
Note : The Company holds immovable properties in its own name. 

 
(4) Capital work in progress 

Particulars Total 

As at April 01, 2021 4.18 
Incurred during the year - 

Capitated - 

As at March 31, 2022 4.18 

Incurred during the year - 

Capitated - 

As at March 31, 2023 4.18 

*Amount included under CWIP are primarily related to Plant and Machinery which is under construction 
 

 
Less than 1 year 

Amount in CWIP 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

 

More than 3 

years 

  

Total 

March 31, 2023 - 4.18 - - 4.18 
March 31, 2022 -  4.18 - 4.18 

 

Note : There is no overrun of cost or delay in projects in process as per the Company's plan. 

Particulars Land (Freehold) Building Vehicles 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Office Equipment Total 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 120.53 71.66 45.52 98.78 13.70 350.19 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 120.53 76.04 18.10 119.31 13.23 347.21 
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(in ₹ Million) 

(5) Investments 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

   

Investments (Non-current)   

Investments in equity instruments in subsidiary (at cost)   

A. Unquoted equity shares   

   

Swastik Bones & Gelatines Private Limited 13.50 13.50 

March 31, 2023 - 100,000 equity shares of ₹100 fully paid up 
( March 31, 2022 - 100,000 equity shares of ₹100 fully paid up) 

  

   

FNS Agro Foods Limited 3.39 3.39 

March 31, 2023-895,600 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022-895,600 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up) 

  

   

HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 22.50 22.50 

March 31, 2023 - 2,250,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022 - 2,250,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up) 

  

   

HMA Food Export Private Limited 86.02 86.02 

March 31, 2023 - 1,686,600 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022 - 1,686,600 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up) 

  

   

United Farm Products Private Limited 158.15 158.15 

March 31, 2023 - 15,815,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022 - 15,815,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up ) 

  

   

Laal Agro Foods Private Limited 0.10 0.10 

March 31, 2023 - 9,999 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022 - 9,999 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up)  

  

   

JFF Exports Private Limited   

March 31, 2023 - 10,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
(March 31, 2022 - 10,000 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up) 

0.10 0.10 

   

Federal Agro Industries Limited 224.41 224.41 

March 31, 2023 :584,400 equity shares of ₹10 fully paid up 
( March 31, 2022 : 584,400 March 31, 2021 - Nil) 

  

   

   

B. Investment in partnership entity   

(at amortised cost)   

International Agro Food Exports 29.83 29.83 

Reliable Agro Foods 154.31 154.31 
   

C. Other investments   

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 30.24 30.24 
   

D. Deemed investments   

United Farm Products Private Limited 
(accounted against corporate guarantee given) 

6.25 6.25 

   

Total (Non-current) 728.80 728.80 
   

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 728.80 728.80 
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(6)  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
(10)  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Ageing of Trade receivable 
March 31, 2023 
 

Particulars 
Current but 

not due 
Less than 6 

Months 

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
6 months – 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
year 

 
More than 3 years 

Total 

Trade receivables 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 

 
2,991.26 

 
- 
  

- 
  

0.81 
 

- 
  

- 
 

2,992.07 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

 

- 

- 

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - -  -  - -  - - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

 

- 

- 
Total 2,991.26  -  - 0.81  - - 2,992.07 

 
March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
Current but 

Less than 6 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 

not due 
6 months – 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
Months year 

Trade receivables 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 

 
2,862.75 

 
- 
  

8.19 
 

0.59 
 

- 
  

10.34 
 

2,881.87 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired 

- 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

 - 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

- 

 
- 

 - 

 
- 

 
- 
- 

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - -  - - -  - - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

 

- 
- 

Total 2,862.75  - 8.19 0.59  - 10.34 2,881.87 

 
 

*Above deposits are provided as lien against borrowings taken from financial institutions. 

 
(11) 

 

 
 

*Pertains to advances given for purchase of immovable properties. 

**The Company has taken working capital demand loan against Fixed deposits as at March 31, 2023 : 228.40 million (March 31, 2022 : ₹240.97 million). 
 

Current financial assets  

 
(12) 

 
 

 
 
 

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

Particulars 
Property, plant 
& equipment 

Derivative 
liabilities Gratuity 

 
Others 

 
Total 

At April 01, 2021 10.28 - - - 10.28 
(Charged) / Credited 

- to profit or loss 6.87 (7.34) 2.39 (0.19) 1.73 
- to other comprehensive income - - (0.21) - (0.21) 
At March 31, 2022 17.15 (7.34) 2.18 (0.19) 11.80 
(Charged) / Credited 

- to profit or loss (1.56) 22.91 0.21 (0.00) 21.56 
- to other comprehensive income - 35.26 2.08 - 37.34 
At March 31, 2023 15.59 50.83 4.47 (0.19) 70.70 

 15.68 44.85 Total current financial assets 

29.14 
15.71 

 
 15.68 

Derivative asset - forward contract 
Security deposits 

Other bank balances 
Current 

Bank Deposit with maturity less than twelve months* 
Total current other bank balances 

18.51 225.26 
 18.51 225.26 

Other financial assets 

 
Non-current financial assets 
Capital advances* 

Security deposits 

30.05 30.75 

6.30 6.23 

Bank Deposit provided as lien against borrowings**  228.40 240.97 

Total non-current financial assets  264.75 277.95 

 
Particulars 

 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Inventories 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)   

Packing Materials 33.79 44.88 
Finished Goods 1,083.49 1,235.49 
Stores & Spares and Other Materials 9.92 37.84 

Total Inventories   1,127.20 1,318.21 

 
(7) Trade receivables  

  
Unsecured, considered good 
- Third Party 

 
 

2,938.16 

 
 

2,881.87 
 - Related parties (Refer note 30) 53.91 - 
 Total trade receivables   2,992.07 2,881.87 

 

(8)   Loans 

 
Non-current loans 
Unsecured, considered good 

 

Loan to related party (Refer note 30)* 1,533.57 444.50 

Total Non current Loan   1,533.57 444.50 

 *Loan to related parties are given at zero interest rate.   

(9) Cash and cash equivalents   

  
Cash in hand 

 
11.96 

 
21.59 

 Balance with banks   

 In current accounts 631.08 129.83 
 Cheques in hand 8.09 13.55 
 Total cash and cash equivalents   651.13 164.97 

 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Significant components of deferred tax assets (net) 
  

   

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)   

Difference between book and tax value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 15.59 17.15 

Gratuity 4.47 2.18 

Derivatives 50.83 (7.34) 
Others   (0.19) (0.19) 

Total Deferred tax assets   70.70 11.80 
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(13) 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
*Prepaid expense includes ₹26.23 million (March 31, 2022 : 16.68 million towards IPO expense which will be charged to other equity in subsequent period on completion of IPO 

 
 

 
 

(14) 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(a)  

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at As at

 
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

Number of shares 
Amount 

Number of shares 
Amount

 
(in Rupees Million) (in Rupees Million) 

   

Equity shares 
At the commencement of the year 47,512,875 475.13 3,726,500 37.27 
Issued during the year - - 43,786,375 437.86 

At the end of the year   47,512,875 475.13 47,512,875 475.13 

Note: 

(a) During the previous year the Board of Directors in meeting dated July 08, 2021 has approved the issue of bonus shares to all the shareholder in the ratio of 3.25:1 per equity shares. This was subsequently 

approved by all the share holders in extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on July 14, 2021. 

(b) During the previous year the Board of Directors in meeting dated October 04, 2021 has approved the issue of bonus shares to all the shareholder in the ratio of 2:1 per equity shares. This was subsequently 

approved by all the share holders in extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on October 15, 2021. 

 
(b)  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(c) Details of shares held by promoters 

 
As at March 31, 2023 

 

Promoter Name 

No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year 

Change during 

the year 

  
No. of shares at 

the end of the year 

 

% of Total Shares 
% change during 

the year 

Wajid Ahmed 15,204,120 -  15,204,120 32% -  

Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 7,602,060 -  7,602,060 16% -  

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 7,602,060 -  7,602,060 16% -  

Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 7,602,060 -  7,602,060 16% -  

Gulzar Ahmad 7,602,060 -  7,602,060 16% -  

Pravez Alam 1,899,240 -  1,899,240 4%   

Gulzeb Ahmad 1,275 -  1,275 0%   

Total 47,512,875  - 47,512,875 100%  - 

 
As at March 31, 2022 

 

Promoter Name 

No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year 

Change during 

the year 

No. of shares at 

the end of the year 

 

% of Total Shares 
% change during 

the year 

Wajid Ahmed 1,192,480 14,011,640.00 15,204,120 32% -  

Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820.00 7,602,060 16% -  

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820.00 7,602,060 16% -  

Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820.00 7,602,060 16% -  

Gulzar Ahmad 596,240 7,005,820.00 7,602,060 16% -  

Pravez Alam 148,960 1,750,280.00 1,899,240 4%   

Gulzeb Ahmad 100 1,175 1,275 0%   

Total 3,726,500 43,786,375 47,512,875 100%  - 

 
 

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 

of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

 
(e) There were no shares allotted pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash. During the year Company has issued bonus shares out of free reserved. Refer note a (i) and (ii) above. 

 
(f) There are no unpaid calls from any director or officer. 

 
(g) The Company has paid dividend of ₹2 per share fully paid up equity share of ₹10 during the year ended March 31, 2023 pertaining to financial year ended March 31, 2022 (₹ Nil in March 2022) 

 
(h) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: 

 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018  

Bonus shares issued (number of shares) 43,786,375 -  -  -  - 

Amount capitalised (₹ in Millions) 437.87 -  -  -  - 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 
Other assets 

   

Current assets 

Prepaid expenses* 26.93 19.41 
Advances to suppliers 112.39 58.04 
Advances to related parties (Refer note 30) 632.49 638.64 

Balance with government authorities 405.70 212.17 
Duty drawback receivable 14.91 15.06 

Total current assets   1,192.42 943.32 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

   

Equity share capital 
   

Authorised 

70,000,000 equity shares of face value ₹10 each 
(March 31, 2022 : 70,000,000 equity shares of face value ₹10 each) 

700.00 700.00 

 700.00 700.00 
   

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 

47,512,875 equity share of face value ₹10 each fully paid up 

(March 31, 2022 : 47,512,875 equity share of face value ₹10 each fully paid up) 

475.13 475.13 

   475.13 475.13 

 

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares 

Particulars 
As at As at

 
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

 

% of total % of total 

Number of shares shares in Number of shares shares in 

the class the class 

Equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up held by 
Wajid Ahmed 15,204,120 32.00% 15,204,120 32.00% 
Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 
Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 

Gulzar Ahmad 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 
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(15) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

(16) 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
*Working capital demand loans are secured against raw materials, book debts and finished goods and various other collateral properties. 

**Pertains to bill discounting with banks. 
Refer note 33 on details of security nature of payment and indicative interest rate against respective loans.  

 
 

(17) 

 
 

 
 

The Company has the process of identification of 'suppliers' registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') Act, 2006, by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. The 

Company has not received intimation from any of the 'suppliers' regarding their status under MSMED Act, 2006 and hence disclosures if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest 

paid/payable as required have not been furnished. 

 

Ageing of trade payable 

As at March 31, 2023 

 
Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not due 
  

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 
 

More than 3 years Total 
 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 -  
- - 

 
- - 

 - 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 -  672.32 0.92  - -  673.24 

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 - 
 
- 

 - 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 
- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

Total   - 672.32 0.92  - -  673.24 

 
As at March 31, 2022 

 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not due 
 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 
 

More than 3 years Total 
 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 - 
- - 

 
- - 

 - 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 - 641.25 2.57  3.80 2.95  650.57 

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 - 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 

- 
 

- 

- 
 

- 

 - 
 

- 

Total  - 641.25 2.57  3.80 2.95  650.57 

 
(18) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
   

Other equity 

General Reserve 
Capital Reserve 

196.33 
5.00 

196.33 
5.00 

Retained earnings 4,277.88 2,999.70 

Other comprehensive income 
Effective portion of cash flow hedge 

(5.11) 
(104.84) 

1.07 
- 

Total other equity   4,369.26 3,202.10 
 

General Reserve 

At the commencement of the year 
Less: Issue of bonus shares 

196.33 600.00 
(403.67) 

At the end of the year 196.33 196.33 
   

Capital Reserve 

At the commencement of the year 5.00 5.00 

At the end of the year 5.00 5.00 
   

Securities Premium 

At the commencement of the year - 34.20 
(34.20) 

At the end of the year - - 
   

Retained earnings 

At the commencement of the year 

Profit for the year 
Less: Dividend paid 

2,999.70 

1,373.21 
(95.03) 

1,895.68 

1,104.02 

At the end of the year 4,277.88 2,999.70 
   

Other Comprehensive income 

At the commencement of the year 
Profit for the year 

1.07 
(6.18) 

0.45 
0.62 

At the end of the year   (5.11) 1.07 

 

Trade payables 

 
Current trade payables 
 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Related parties (Refer note 30) 

Total current trade payables 

- 

632.37 

- 

445.46 
 40.87 205.11 

 673.24 650.57 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
   

Borrowings 

 
Current 
Loans payable on demand from : 

Secured:   

- Banks - Working capital demand loans* 2,843.58 2,272.15 
- Banks - Bill Purchase** 12.78 379.50 

   2,856.36 2,651.65 

 

Other financial liabilities 

 
Non current financial liabilities 

Credit liabilities from financial Guarantees 
Derivative liability - forward contract (Measured at fair value through profit and loss) 

3.04 
5.39 

4.70 

Total Non current financial liabilities 8.43 4.70 
   

Current financial liabilities 

Derivative liability - forward contract (Measured at fair value through profit and loss) 196.61 - 
Credit liabilities from financial Guarantees 0.87 0.79 
Employee related obligations (Refer note 30 for related party balances) 4.31 18.90 
Interest due and not paid - 3.51 

Total current financial liabilities   201.79 23.20 
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(in ₹ Million) 

 

 

             
(19) 

 

 
 

*Includes liability towards Tax deducted at source, provident fund contribution and Professional tax 
 
 

(20) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This space is intentionally left blank)  

Other liabilities 

 
Current liabilities 
Advances from Customer 
Advances from Related party (Refer note 30) 
Statutory dues payable* 

Total current liabilities 

313.90 
- 

35.36 

371.84 
14.74 
36.43 

 349.26 423.02 

Provisions 
 
Non-current provisions 
Gratuity (Refer note 29) 15.89 7.86 
Total non-current provisions 15.89 7.86 

   

Current provisions 
Gratuity (Refer note 29) 1.87 0.80 

Total current provisions   1.87 0.80 
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(in ₹ Million) 

 
 

(21) Revenue from operations 
 
Sale of products 

 

 - Domestic sales 1,491.89 2,483.63 
 - Export sales 29,792.89 26,749.25 
 Total 31,284.78 29,232.88 
 Discount   (29.25) (13.00) 

Total Revenue from operations   31,255.53 29,219.88 

 

(22) Other income  

 Interest on : 
- Bank deposits 

 
62.20 

 
15.61 

 Foreign exchange gain, net 308.89 441.90 
 Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 0.51 0.05 
 Duty drawback 59.87 40.51 
 Gain on derivative forwards measured through profit and loss - 29.14 
 Guarantee commission income  0.79   0.77 
 Liabilities no longer required written back - 18.03 
 Miscellaneous income   28.50 7.89 

Total other income   460.76 553.90 

 

(23)  

 

 
(24) 

 
 

 

 
(25) Employee benefits expenses  

    

 Salaries, wages and bonus 211.90 718.75 
 Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 29) 3.66 6.43 
 Gratuity expense (Refer note 29) 

Staff welfare expense 
Total employee benefits expenses 

0.84 
  2.39 
  218.79 

2.17 
2.67 

730.02 

 

(26) 

 

 
 

 

(27) Depreciation expense  
 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 

 
  43.75 

 
43.54 

Total depreciation expense   43.75 43.54 

 
 

(28) Other expenses  

    

 Freight charges 1,946.64 2,067.87 
 Cooling and freezing charges 1,028.18 120.24 
 Sales commission 423.90 389.68 
 Packaging expenses 190.29 214.18 
 Export charges 186.33 182.91 
 Repairs and Maintenance :   

 Plant & Machinery 76.15 123.37 
 Building 5.87 3.98 
 Power and fuel 53.92 355.06 
 Legal and professional charges 39.20 42.52 
 Travelling and conveyance 34.99 5.36 
 Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note 40) 23.74 16.36 
 Rates and taxes 21.27 58.79 
 Bank charges 21.00 36.80 
 Consumable expenses 16.14 59.95 
 Loss on Derivative forwards measured through profit and loss 91.04 - 
 Insurance charges 8.79 9.76 
 Security charges 5.46 16.25 
 Vehicle expenses 4.09 3.00 
 Communication expenses 3.28 4.26 
 Cleaning expenses 1.63 7.55 
 Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 28.1 below) 1.83 0.64 
 Facility utilisation charges and Rent 0.76 189.58 
 Printing & stationery - 6.85 
 Software charges - 3.85 
 Miscellaneous expenses   20.13 23.21 

Total other expenses   4,204.63 3,942.02 

 
(28.1) Payment to auditors :  

For statutory audit   1.83 0.64 

 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Total payment to auditors   1.83 0.64 

Cost of raw material consumed 
Inventory at the beginning of the year  
Add : Purchased 

- -  
25,119.32 23,548.55 

Less : Raw material at the end of the year  - -  
Cost of raw material consumed  25,119.32 23,548.55 

 
 
 

- 

0.96 
 -  

 101.73 64.85 Total finance cost 

- 
 

-  

term loan on vehicles 

statutory dues 

Other finance cost 

63.45 100.77 
Interest on : 
- Working capital demand loan (net) 

Finance costs 

Changes in inventories 

At the beginning of the year 
Finished Goods, Packing material and Consumables 

 
 

1,318.21 

 
 

1,268.47 

 
At the end of the year 

  

Finished Goods, Packing material and Consumables (1,127.20) (1,318.21) 
   

Change   191.01 (49.74) 
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(29) Employee benefits 

 
(a) Defined contribution plan 

 
The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees as per regulations. The 

contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it 

has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

   

Employer's contribution to provident fund 3.66 6.43 
   

Included in 'Contribution to provident fund under employee benefits expense (Refer Note 25) 

 
(b) Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity: 

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are 

eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days 

salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a non funded plan and the Company makes provision in the books of accounts based on the 

actuarial report. 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Particulars 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 

Discount rate 7% 7% 

Future salary increases 5% 5% 

Attrition rate 10% 10% 

Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 (Ult.) IALM 2012-14 (Ult.) 

Weighted average duration of the obligation 7.5 Years 8 Years 
 

 

 

Notes: 

1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities for the estimated term of the obligations. 
2. Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

3. Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. 

(a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) over the year are as follows : 
(in ₹ Million) 

Change in the present value of obligation 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 
   

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 8.66 13.64 

Interest cost 0.60 0.48 

Liability transfer out on account of slump sale - - 

Current service cost 2.67 1.69 

Past service cost (2.43) - 

Benefits paid - - 

Remeasurement due to - - 

Actuarial loss arising from change in financial assumptions (0.39) (0.27) 

Actuarial loss arising on account of experience changes 8.65 (0.56) 

Actuarial loss arising on account of demographical assumptions - - 

Transfer in/(out)* - (6.32) 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 17.76 8.66 
   

*During the previous year the Company has transferred employed to one of its subsidiary and hence liability pertaining to same has been transferred out. 

(in ₹ Million) 

(b) 

 

 

 
 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 

Current service cost 2.67 1.69 

Past service cost (2.43) - 

Interest cost 0.60 0.48 

Total expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 0.84 2.17 

 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 

Remeasurements during the year due to   

Changes in financial assumptions (0.39) (0.27) 

Changes in demographic assumptions - - 

Experience adjustments 8.65 (0.56) 

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets   

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the year 8.26 (0.83) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 

Present value of funded obligation at the end of the year 17.76 8.66 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period - - 

Deficit of funded plan 17.76 8.66 
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(c) Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in weighted principal assumptions is: 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year ended March 

31, 2022 
   

Discount rate (Increases 1%) (1.19) (0.61) 

Discount rate (Decreases 1%) 1.36 0.69 

Salary increase rate (Increases 1%) 1.37 0.70 

Salary increase rate (Decreases 1%) (1.22) (0.62) 

Withdrawal Rate (Increases 1%) 0.15 0.03 

Withdrawal Rate (Decreases 1%) (0.17) (0.04) 

Mortality Rate (increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) (0.01) (0.00) 

Mortality Rate (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) (0.00) (0.01) 
 

 
The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice it is unlikely to occur, and changes in 

some of the assumptions may be correlated. The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to previous period. 

 

 
(30)  

 

(a) 
 

Sr. No Name of the party Nature of relationship 

 
1 

 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 

 
Subsidiary 

2 FNS Agro Foods Limited Subsidiary 

3 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited Subsidiary 
4 Laal Agro Food Private Limited Subsidiary 

5 United Farm Products Private Limited Subsidiary 

6 International Agro Food Exports Joint operations 

7 Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP Subsidiary 
8 JFF Export Private Limited (w.e.f. July 23, 2020) Subsidiary 

9 HMA Natural Foods Private Limited Subsidiary 

10 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited (w.e.f April 01, 2022) Subsidiary 
11 Reliable agro foods (w.e.f. November 09, 2021) Subsidiary 

12 Agro Better Homes LLP Relative of KMP is Director 

13 HMA Cattle Farming Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 
14 Gausia Cold Storage Relative of KMP is Director 

15 HMA Export Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 

16 HMA Hygienic Foods Industries Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 
17 HMA Leather Export Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 

18 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 

19 Taj View Construction Private Limited Relative of KMP is Director 

20 Black Gold Tanners Enterprise where KMP is partner 
21 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi Relative of KMP 

22 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi Relative of KMP 

23 Parvez Alam Relative of KMP 
24 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi Relative of KMP 

25 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi Relative of KMP 

26 Gulzair Ahmed Relative of KMP 

27 Zainul Ahmad Relative of KMP 
28 Gulam Habib Relative of KMP 

29 Zakiya Qureshi Relative of KMP 

30 Nafees Begaum Relative of KMP 

 
(b) Key managerial personnel 

 
Sr. No Particulars Nature of relationship 

   

1 Wajid Ahmed (upto June 02, 2021) Director 

 
2 

(w.e.f June 03, 2021) 
Gulzar Ahmad (upto June 02, 2021) 

Managing Director 

Director 
 (w.e.f June 03, 2021) Chairman 

3 Gulzeb Ahmed (upto June 03, 2021) Director 
 (w.e.f June 03, 2021) Chief financial officer 

4 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi (upto. April 01, 2021) Director 

5 Nikhil Sundrani (upto Feburary 28, 2023) Company secretary 

Related party transactions 

 
Related parties 
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(30) Related party transactions (continued) 

 

(c) Details of transactions with related parties 

(in ₹ Million) 

Sr. 

No 

 
Nature of Transaction 

 
March 31, 2023 

 
March 31, 2022 

A Transactions   

    

1 Facility utilisation charges   

 HMA Food Export Private Limited - 30.00 
 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited - 60.00 
 Reliable Agro foods - 20.00 
 Gausia Cold Storage - 0.06 

  -  

2 Cooling charges -  

 Reliable agro foods 208.35 - 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 390.63 - 
  -  

3 Commission on sales   -  

 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 12.81 36.69 
  -  

4 Revenue from Operations -  

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 42.61 2.27 
 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 1.73 8,735.95 
 United Farm Products Private Limited 5.37 - 
 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited 0.15 - 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 0.05 - 
 Black Gold Tanners 10.57 - 
  - - 

5 Purchase of finished goods and other consumables - - 
  - - 
 Laal Agro Food Private Limited 1.51 0.42 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited - 41.38 
 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 12,193.78 24.23 
 United Farm Products Private Limited 1,186.43 - 
  - - 

6 Remuneration - - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 18.00 16.50 
 Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi - 1.00 
 Wajid Ahmed 18.00 16.50 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 18.00 16.50 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 12.01 11.10 
 Parvez Alam 18.00 16.50 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 18.00 16.50 
 Gulzair Ahmed 5.30 1.20 
 Zainul Ahmad - 1.20 
 Gulam Habib - 1.20 
 Nikhil Sundrani 0.42 - 
 Bhumika Parwani 0.02 - 
  -  

7 Reimbursement of expense incurred on behalf of subsidiary -  

 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited - 3.77 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited - 0.36 
 Gausia Cold Storage Pvt Ltd - 4.16 
  - - 

8 Advance given to related parties - - 
 JFF Export Private Limited 9.22 40.0 
 Laal Agro Food Private Limited 1.88 1.14 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 904.87 - 
 United Farm Products Private Limited 10.61 - 
 Reliable Agro foods 495.65 - 
 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited - 5.00 
 HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 0.03 - 
  - - 

10 Advances received back from related parties - - 
 HMA Hygienic Foods Industries Private Limited - 0.75 
 Laal Agro Food Private Limited 3.57 1.88 
 United Farm Products Private Limited 1252.47 - 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited - 43.01 
 Reliable Agro foods 488.50 - 
 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited - 1.23 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 914.01 - 
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Sr. 
No Nature of Transaction  

March 31, 2023 

 
March 31, 2022 

 
11 

 
Loan given 

  

 United Farm Products Private Limited 2,315.88 328.61 
 FNS Agro Foods Limited 1.00 0.09 
 Reliable agro foods - 17.62 
 Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 14.05 4.90 
  - - 

12 Loan received back 
United Farm Products Private Limited 

- 

0.00 

- 
13.46 

  - - 

13 Borrowings taken from related parties 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

- 
- 

- 
16.17 

 Wajid Ahmed - 1.00 

 
14 

 
Borrowings repaid to related parties 
Wajid Ahmed 

- 

- 
- 

- 

- 

4.39 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi - 2.89 
 Gulzeb Ahmed - 1.80 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi - 68.95 

 
15 

 
Dividend Paid 
Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 

- 

 
15.21 

- 

 
- 

 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 

Wajid Ahmed 

15.21 

15.21 
30.39 

- 

- 
- 

 Gulzar Ahmad 15.21 - 

 Parvez Alam 

Gulzeb Ahmed* 

3.80 

0.00 

- 

- 
- 

16 Guarantee given for subsidiary company  - 

 United Farm Products Private Limited - 
- 

650.00 
- 

17 Guarantee given on behalf of the Company - - 

 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited 
Taj View Construction Private Limited 

2,400.00 
2,400.00 

2,400.00 
2,400.00 

 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 

 Agra Better Homes LLP 
HMA Food Export Private Limited 

1,250.00 
2,400.00 

1,250.00 
2,400.00 

 Gulzar Ahmad 3,650.00 3,650.00 

 Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi 
Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

3,650.00 
2,400.00 

3,650.00 
2,400.00 

 Wajid Ahmed 3,650.00 3,650.00 

 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 

Gulzeb Ahmed 
Zakiya Qureshi 

2,400.00 

3,650.00 
3,650.00 

2,400.00 

3,650.00 
3,650.00 

 Parvez Alam 2,400.00 2,400.00 

 Nafees Begaum 

Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 

2,400.00 

2,400.00 
- 

2,400.00 

2,400.00 
- 

18 Guarantee commission - - 

 United Farm Products Private Limited 0.79 
- 

0.77 
- 

*Amount less than Rupee one million. 
 

Sr no. Balances March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

B Balances   

18 Trade Receivables -  

 Black Gold Tanners 6.47 - 
 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited 23.02 - 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 24.42 - 
  -  

19 Loans receivables -  

 United Farm Products Private Limited 1,466.31 392.28 
 FNS Agro Foods Limited 30.69 29.69 
 Reliable agro foods 17.62 17.62 
 Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 18.95 4.91 
  -  

20 Advance to related Parties -  

 Laal Agro Food Private Limited 76.72 78.40 
 JFF Export Private Limited 409.53 400.31 
 HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 0.55 0.52 
 Swastik Bone and Geatines Private Limited - 11.72 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 136.07 145.21 
 Reliable agro foods 9.62 2.47 
  -  

21 Employee related obligations -  

 Gulzair Ahmad 0.13 - 
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(30) Related party transactions (continued) 
 

Sr no. Commitments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

22 Trade Payables   

 Laal Agro Food Private Limited - 0.53 
 Mohd Ashraf Qurashi - 3.26 
 Gausia Cold Storage 23.01 16.58 
 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 17.86 185.28 
    

23 Advance from related Parties   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited - 14.74 

  - 
- 

 

 

Sr no. Commitments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

C Commitments   

    

24 Guarantee given for subsidiary company   

 United Farm Products Private Limited 650.00 650.00 
  -  

  -  

25 Guarantee given on behalf of the Company   

 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Taj View Construction Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 HMA Food Export Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Agra Better Homes LLP 1,250.00 1,250.00 
 Gulzar Ahmad 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Wajid Ahmed 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Zakiya Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Parvez Alam 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Nafees Begaum 2,400.00 2,400.00 
    

 

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Parent Company are entitled to post employment benefits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefits' 

in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above. Gratuity has been computed 

for the entity as a whole and hence excluded. 

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured 

and settlement occurs in cash. 

Directors of the Company and entities where they have significant influence have given personal and corporate guarantee towards the loans availed from financial 

institutions by the Company, details of the same are disclosed under note 33. 

 
(31) Fair value measurement 

 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value 

those include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and trade payables. 

                (in ₹ Million) 
At fair value through profit and loss Level March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Assets    

Derivative asset - Forward contract receivable 2 - 29.14 

Total assets  - 29.14 
    

Liabilities    

Derivative liabilities - Forward contract payables 2 61.90 - 

Total liabilities  61.90 - 

     (in ₹ Million) 
At fair value through other comprehensive income Level March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Liabilities    

Derivative liabilities - Forward contract payables 2 140.10 - 

Total liabilities  140.10 - 

        (in ₹ Million) 
At amortised cost March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Assets 

Trade receivables 2,992.07 2,881.87 

Cash and cash equivalents 651.13 164.97 

Other bank balances 18.51 225.26 

Investment 728.80 728.80 

Loan 1,533.57 444.50 

Other financials assets 280.43 293.66 

Total assets 6,204.51 4,739.05 

 

Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

2,856.36 

673.24 
8.23 

2,651.65 

650.57 
27.90 

Total liabilities 3,537.83 3,330.12 

 
Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, borrowings, other financial 

liabilities and trade payables as at year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature. 

Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other financial assets and other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 

is not significant in each of the periods presented. 
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(32) Financial risk management framework 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible 

for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Board holds regular meetings on its activities. 

 

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor 

risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, 

through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles 

and obligations. 

 
The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk 

management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

a). Credit risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally 

from the Company's receivables from customers. 

Trade and other receivables 

 
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may 

influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate. 

 

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is determined by considering the 

business environment in which Company operates and other macro-economic factors. 

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, market intelligence and goodwill. Outstanding customer 

receivables are regularly monitored. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables and other 

receivables. 

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 

 
The Company held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of ₹898.04 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : ₹631.20 million). The credit worthiness 

of banks and financial institutions is evaluated by management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good. 

Loans 

Loan is given to related parties for which credit risk is managed by monitoring the recoveries of such amounts on regular basis. The Company does not perceive any credit 

risk related to such loans given to group companies since these will have an additional financial support from promoters as and when necessary. 

Other financial assets 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes deposits and capital advances for immovable properties etc. Credit risk related to these financial assets are 

managed by monitoring the recoveries of such amounts on regular basis and the Company does not perceive any credit risk related to these financial assets. 

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired. 

 
b). Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 

another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

they are due. The Company has access to unused credit facility at the period ended March 31, 2023 amounting to ₹793.64 million (March 31, 2022 : ₹998.00 million) 

towards working capital needs as and when required. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

 
The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual 

undiscounted cash flows. 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars Carrying amount 
Undiscounted amount 

<12months >12months 
    

 
March 31, 2023 
Non Derivative financial instruments 

   

Borrowings 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

2,856.36 

673.24 

13.61 

2,856.36 

673.24 
5.19 

- 

- 

8.43 

Derivative financial instruments    

Other financial liabilities 196.61 196.61 - 

    

March 31, 2022 
Non Derivative financial instruments 

   

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

2,651.65 
650.57 

2,651.65 
641.25 

- 
9.32 

Other financial liabilities 27.90 23.20 4.70 
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(32)   Financial risk management framework (continued) 

 

 

 

(c). Market risk 

 
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates – that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is 

exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of derivative used to cover forcasted sales and outstanding foreign debtors. 

Thus, the exposure to market risk is a function of borrowing activities and revenue generating, operating activities in foreign currency. 

(d). Currency risk 

 
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of foreign currency transactions including recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional 

currency (₹), primarily in respect of United States Dollar, EURO and GBP. The Company ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. 

Exposure to currency risk 

 
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows: 

 
As at March 31, 2023 

(in ₹ Million) 
Particulars USD converted to INR EURO converted to INR GBP converted to INR 

Financial assets    

Trade receivables 2,881.72 103.73 - 

Net exposure to foreign currency (assets) 2,881.72 103.73 - 
    

Financial liabilities    

Advances received from customer 349.09 7.72 - 

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities) 349.09 7.72 - 
    

Net exposure to foreign currency 2,532.63 96.01 - 

 

As at March 31, 2022 

(in ₹ Million) 
Particulars USD converted to INR EURO converted to INR GBP converted to INR 

Financial assets    

Trade receivables 1,853.65 - - 

Net exposure to foreign currency (assets) 1,853.65 - - 
    

Financial liabilities    

Advances received from customer 356.63 - - 

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities) 356.63 - - 
    

Net exposure to foreign currency 1,497.02 - - 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

 
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against all other currencies would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a 

foreign currency profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of 

forecast sales and purchases. 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars Impact on profit after tax 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

USD   

- Increase by 5% 94.76 56.01 

- Decrease by 5% 

 
EURO 

(94.76) (56.01) 

- Increase by 5% 3.59 - 

- Decrease by 5% 

 
GBP 

(3.59) - 

- Increase by 5% - - 

- Decrease by 5% - - 
   

 

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 

The Company’s revenue is denominated in various foreign currencies. Given the nature of the business, a large portion of the costs are denominated in Indian Rupee. This exposes the Company 

to currency fluctuations. 

The Board of Directors frames, implement and monitor the risk management plan of the Company which inter-alia covers risks arising out of exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. 

Under the guidance and framework provided by the board, the Company uses derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward in which the counter party is generally a bank 

 
The foreign exchange forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges mature over a maximum period of eighteen months. The group manages its exposures normally for a period of up 

to two years based on the estimated exposure over that period. 

 

The Board of Directors frames, implement and monitor the risk management plan of the Company which inter-alia covers risks arising out of exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. 

Under the guidance and framework provided by the board, the Company uses derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward in which the counter party is generally a bank 

 
The foreign exchange forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges mature over a maximum period of eighteen months. The company manages its exposures normally for a period 

of up to two years based on the estimated exposure over that period. 
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(33) Details of the outstanding principal, interest rate, security and repayment terms(Continued) :  
 

 
The reconciliation for the cash flow hedge reserve for the period ended March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

Changes in fair value of forward contract designated as hedging (358.04) 

instruments  

Amount reclassified to profit and loss during the year 217.95 

Net charge to other comprehensive income before tax adjustments (140.10) 

Tax Impact on the above 35.26 

Net outstanding cash flow hedge reserve (104.84) 

 
The following table gives details in respect of outstanding derivative contracts: 

 

Particulars 

 

Notional amount 

of contracts 

(in million) 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
 

Fair 

(in ₹ 

 

value 

million) 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Notional amount 

of contracts 

(in million) 

 

Fair 

(in ₹ 

 

value 

million) 

Forward contracts not in hedging relationship    

(fair valuation through profit and loss)   

USD 35.14 2,831.68 20.09 2.86 

EURO 5.00 451.78 - - 

GBP - - - - 

    

Contracts in hedging relationship    

(fair valuation through other comprehensive income)   

USD 35.51 2,876.98 - - 

EURO 5.00 451.78 - - 

GBP 35.00 3,357.18 - - 

 

Following table summarises approximate gain / (loss) on the Company’s other comprehensive income on account of appreciation / depreciation of the underlying currencies: 

 
(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars Impact on profit after tax 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

USD   

- Increase by 5% 
- Decrease by 5% 

213.60 
(213.60) 

58.06 
(58.06) 

   

EURO   

- Increase by 5% 
- Decrease by 5% 

33.81 
(33.81) 

- 
- 

   

GBP   

- Increase by 5% 
- Decrease by 5% 

125.61 
(125.61) 

- 
- 

   

 

As at March 31, 2023 ₹(61.90) million (March 31, 2022 ₹29.14 million) have been recognised in the financial information for exchange gain/(loss) on foreign exchange forward that do not 

qualify for hedge accounting. 

 
(ii). Interest rate risk 

 
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing 

investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because 

of fluctuations in the interest rates. 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

 
The Companies exposure to interest rate risks relates primarily to the Companies interest obligations on its borrowings. Borrowings taken at variable rates are exposed to fair value interest 

rate risk. Company carries excellent credit ratings, due to which it has assessed that there are no material interest rate risk and any exposure thereof. 

(iii). Capital risk management 

 
The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders. The capital structure of the 

Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable 

and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. 

 
The Company monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes borrowings net of cash and bank balances and total equity comprises 

of equity share capital, general reserve, securities premium, other comprehensive income and retained earnings. 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Borrowings 2,856.36 2,651.65 

Less : Cash and cash equivalents (651.13) (164.97) 

Less : Other bank balances (246.91) (466.23) 

Net Debt 1,958.32 2,020.45 
   

Equity 475.13 475.13 

Total Capital 475.13 475.13 
   

Total Capital and Net Debt 2,433.45 2,495.58 

Capital gearing ratio 0.80 0.81 
   

 

Loan covenants 

The Company is required to comply with all the loan covenants as set out in the loan agreement/facility letter. The Company has complied with these covenants during the reporting 

period. 
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(33) Details of the outstanding principal, interest rate, security and repayment terms: 

articulars 
March 31, 

2023 
March 31, 

2022 
Interest 

rate 
Repayment 

Period Secured against 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

L-1 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1,606.42 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1,947.23 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

3.50% 

On 

Completion of 

tenure of the 

WCDL facility 

1. Hypothecation of Raw materials, Book debts, Finished goods, Fixed deposits and personal guarantee of 

Directors and its related parties including other Group Companies where promotors are directors. 

2. Collateral Properties : 

I. Property in the name of Company : 

i. Property -1 (Non-agriculture land)an area of 1.1720 Hectare out of 2.3440 Khasra no. 65, situated at Mauza 

Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra 

 

ii. Property -2 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land1/2 

share of khasra no. 67 an area of 1.6595 Hectare out of 3.3190 Hectare, situated at Mauza Sawai Tehsil 

Etmadpur District Agra in the name of Taj view Builder and Promoters P Limited 

 

iii. Property - 3 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land an area of 3.5090 Hectare of Khasra no. 78, situated at 

Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra in the name of Taj view Construction Pvt Ltd 

 

iv. Property - 4 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land an area of 1.7660 Hectare of Khasra no. 84/2, 

situated at Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra in the name of Taj view Construction Pvt Ltd 

 

v. Property - 5 (Residential flat) - All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing Flat No. 04, area measuring 

75.71 Sq. mtrs, on third floor, in Plot No. 1, built on property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi 

Bima Nagar, M.G. Road, Ward- Hari Parvat, 

Agra, U.P 

 

vi. Property - 6 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing land area measuring 

0.461 hectare out of total land admeasuring 0.6910 hectare in Khasra/Gata No. 287Min, situated at Village 
Kuberpur, Tehsil- Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. (Owned by Mr. Mohmmad Mehmood Qureshi and Mr. Mohmmad Kamil 

Qureshi)                                                                                

Property - 7 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing land area\ measuring 

0.7830 hectare in Khasra/ Gata No. 287Min, situated at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil -Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. 

 

viii. Property - 8 (Industrial land & building) All that piece and parcel of Property bearing total land area measuring 

0.5747 hectare (land area measuring 0.387 hectare out of land area 0.4686 hectare earlier owned by Shri Deepak 
Bansal & Shri Vikas Bansal AND land area measuring 0.1877 hectare out of land area 0.423 hectare earlier owned by 

Smt. Poonam Agarwal) in Khasra/Gata No. 293Min, situated at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil-Etmadpur, Agra, Owned by 
M/s H.M.A Food Export Pvt Ltd 

 

ix. Property - 9 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing total land area measuring 

2.029 hectare in Khasra/Gata No. 293Min (0.703 hectare), 295Min (0.933 hectare), 297Min (0.392 hectare) situated 
at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil-Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. 

 

x. Property - 10 (Commercial/Shop) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing Shop No. 02, area measuring 68.39 

Sq. mtrs, on second floor, in Plot No. 1, built on property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi Bima Nagar, 
M.G. Road, Ward- Hari Parvat, Agra, U.P. 

 

xi. Property - 11 (Commercial/Shop) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing Shop No. 03, area measuring 63.17 

Sq. mtrs, on first floor, in Plot No. 1, built on property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi Bima Nagar, 
M.G. Road, Ward- Hari Parvat, Agra, U.P. 

 

xii. Property - 12 (Industrial land & building) Exclusive charge of Land and Building situated at Village Behra , Barwala 

Road, dera Bassi, Distt Pataila Punjab measuring 72 Bighas 17 Biswas I.E 18.30 acres owned By Federal Agro 
Industries Ltd 

xiii. Property - 13 (Industrial land & building) Exclusive charge of Land and Boundary wall situated at Village Behra , 

Barwala Road, dera Bassi, Distt Mohali Punjab measuring 7 bigha 18 biswa owned by Federal Agro Industries Ltd 

 

xiv. Property - 14 (Residential/Commercial/Industrial Land & Building) Exclusive charge on additional property of 

₹150 Mn to be provided for enhancement above the existing exposure of Rs 1700 Mn. Same may be replaced with 

FD of ₹150 Mn till the time security is not provided. 

 

2. Personal Guarantee of : Gulzar Ahmed, Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi, Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi, Wajid Ahmed, 

Mohammad Kamil Qureshi, Gulzeeb Ahmed, Zakiya Qureshi, Qureshi, Parvez Alam, Nafees Begaum, Mohammad 
Mehmood Qureshi  

 

3. Corporate Guarantees of - 

 Taj view Builder and Promoters Private Limited 

 Taj view Construction Private Limited 

 HMA Food Export Private Limited 

 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 

 

4. Lien on Fixed Deposits(FD) of ₹50 Million only 

 
      

L-2 1249.94 704.42 3.25% On Completion 

of tenure of the 
WCDL facility 
i.e. October 
30, 2022 and 

subject to 
renewal 

1.First Pari passu charge on the Current assets (Raw materials, Book debts, Finished goods) of the borrower both 

present and future. 
                                                                                                                                                                            
2. Exclusive charge over residential and commercial property being part of property no.95 and old no. 51 and present 
Nagar Nigam no. 2/200 situated at Surya Nagar (civil line), Hari Parwat ward Tehsil & Dist. Agra  in the name of Agra 

better home LLP 
         
3. Unconditional and Irrevocable personal guarantee of Gulzar Ahmed, Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi, Wajid Ahmed, 

Gulzeb Ahmed and Zakiya Qureshi to remain valid during entire tenor of facility. 
4.                                                                                                                      

4. Unconditional and Irrevocable personal/corporate guarantee of collateral owner to remain valid during entire tenor 

of facility. 
      

 
L-3 

 
- 

 
- 

 
NA 

Payable on 
demand 

Unsecured Loans given by directors are repayable with no interest rate. 

Total 2,856.36 2,651.65 

 

Note : All the loans are classified as current as they are repayable on demand. 

 
The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts, inventory and other time deposits. The quarterly statements of 

current assets filed by the Company with banks are in primarily in agreement with the books of accounts and there are not material differences. 
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(34) Ratio Analysis and its elements 

 

Ratio Numerator Denominat
or 

March 31, 
2023 

March 31, 
2022 

% change Remarks 

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.44 1.49 -3%  

Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s 
Equity 

0.59 0.72 -18%  

Debt Service 

Coverage ratio 

Earnings for debt 

service = Net profit 

after taxes + Non- 

cash operating 

expenses 

Debt service 

= Interest 

payable to 

bank 

14.06 18.09 -22%  

Return on net 
worth* 

Net Profits after 
taxes 

Shareholder’s 
Equity 

0.28 0.30 -6%  

Inventory Turnover 
ratio 

Cost of goods sold Average 

Inventory 

20.70 18.17 14%  

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio 

Net credit sales = 

Gross 
credit sales - sales 
return 

Average Trade 
Receivable 

10.57 12.79 -17%  

Trade Payable 

Turnover Ratio 

Net credit 

purchases = 

Gross credit 

purchases - 
purchase return 

Average 

Trade 

Payables 

37.95 35.74 6%  

Net Capital 

Turnover Ratio 

Net sales = 

Total sales - 

sales return 

Working capital 
= 

Current 

assets – 

Current 

liabilities 

16.88 15.97 6%  

Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total 
sales - sales 
return 

0.04 0.04 17%  

Return on Capital 

Employed 

Earnings before 

interest and taxes 

Capital 

Employed = 

Tangible Net 

Worth 

+ Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax 
Liability 

0.25 0.25 2%  

Return on 
Investment 

Interest (Finance 

Income) 

Investment 0.25 0.03 653% Refer note 

1 

 
Note : 

1 The return on investment is not comparable due to difference in duration of the deposits kept with the bank. 
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(35) Earnings per share 

 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (in ₹ Millions) 1,373 

47,512,875 

- 

47,512,875 

 

28.90 

28.90 

10.00 

1,104 

Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS (in nos) 47,512,875 

Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS (in nos) - 

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in nos) 47,512,875 
Earnings per share 

- Basic 23.24 

- Diluted 23.24 

Face value per equity share (₹) 10.00 

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares 

outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the bonus issue are adjusted for the proportionate change 

in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented i.e from April 01, 2021. 

(36) Income tax expense 

This note provides analysis of Company's income tax expense, amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and 

non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates in relation to the Company's tax position. 

 
(a) Income tax expense is as follows: 

 
 

(in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

 
(a) Profit and loss 

 

485.41 

- 

(21.56) 

 

Current tax 382.10 

Tax expense relating to prior years 10.15 

Deferred tax (1.73) 

Income tax expense 463.85 390.52 

 
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit computed by applying income tax rate: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Profit before tax 1,837.06 
25.17% 

462.35 
5.97 

- 
(4.47) 

1,494.54 

Tax rate 25.17% 

Computed tax expense 376.14 

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 

Tax expense relating to prior years 
Others 

4.39 

10.15 
- 

Income tax expense 463.85 390.68 

 

(37) Segment reporting 

The Company publishes this financial statement along with the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating 

Segments, the Company has disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial statements. 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by 

the chief operating decision maker for assessing the Company’s performance and allocating the resources based on an analysis of various 

performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. 

The Company is engaged into business of Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products which is single reportable 

business segment. Hence the Company's financial statements reflect the position for a reportable segment and no separate disclosure is required. 

The company has its manufacturing operations in India and sales products across various geographies in the world. 

The information relating to revenue from external customers of its single reportable segment has been disclosed as below: 

 

Revenue from operations (in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Vietnam 6,612.87 

9,593.49 

1,337.60 

2,111.93 

2,667.92 
8,713.79 

5,750.09 

Malaysia 
Hong kong 

4,064.45 
1,469.87 

Indonesia 1,598.60 

Egypt 
Rest of the world 

9,167.38 
7,169.49 

Total 31,037.59 29,219.88 

 

All the non-current operating assets are located in India. 

 

List of top customers from which revenue from sale of product from is generated : 

(in ₹ Million) 

Customer 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Customer A 0.84% 8.95% 

Customer B 5.20% 6.91% 

Customer C 6.79% 5.48% 
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HMA Agro Industries Limited 
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2023 

 

(38) Commitments and contingent liabilities 

  (in ₹ Million) 

Particular 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

(a) Other commitments  

650.00 

 

 
5.55 

 

Guarantee given to financial institutions on behalf of subsidiary (Refer note 30) 650.00 

(b) Contingent liabilities  

For claims against Company not acknowledged as debt  

Service tax matters under appeal* 5.55 
   

 

*The Company believes that these claims are not tenable and hence no provision has been made in this regards. 

A search was carried out on November 5, 2022 by the Income-tax authorities at various locations of the Company and its Subsidiaries and Directors 

(Executive directors) under Section 132 of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Panchama's in respect of the above searches were prepared recording the 

search proceedings conducted by the various Income-tax officers at these locations of the Company, its Subsidiaries and Directors. Thereafter, 

proceedings have been initiated by the Revenue authorities under various provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and no demand has been raised till the 

date of approval of these financial statements against the Company or Group Companies. The Company is not able to estimate the liabilities under 

this search and hence no amount is provided for in the books on account as of year ended March 31, 2023. 

(39) Corporate social responsibility 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particular 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 
 

 

23.74 

 
- 

23.74 

- 

23.74 

- 

 

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
16.36 

Amount spent during the year on: 
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset 

 
- 

(ii) Purposes other than (i) above 16.36 

(iii) nature of CSR activities 
- Contribution to Charitable trusts 

- 

16.36 

- Contribution to Government funds - 

 
(40) Disclosure of Loans or advances to specified persons made to related parties which are repayable on demand : 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 % 
 

March 31, 2022 % 

Loans to related parties 1,533.57 71% 444.50 41% 

Advances to related parties 632.49 29% 638.64 59% 

Total 2,166.06 100% 1,083.14 100% 

 
(41) Subsequent event : 

A search was carried out on July 07, 2023 by the through the Intelligence Officer (IO), Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax Intelligence , Headquarters, New Delhi 

at the premises of the Company situated at /1, 15 and 16, Tala spur Khurd, Gulzar Factory, Near Mathura Bypass, Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh 20200 under sub- section (2) 

of Section 67 of the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017, post the order of search the Company received Summons to remain present and submit documents as 

may be requested by DGGI. Since due to unavoidable circumstances, the representatives of the Company were not able to remain present, the Company has requested for 

extension of time to remain present. Thereafter, there is no communication from DGGI. The Company is not able to estimate the liability under this search. 

 
(42) The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of directors on July 31, 2023.  

 
(43) Pursuant to year ending March 31, 2023 the Company has completed the Initial public offering of 8,205,128 equity shares of face value Rs 10 each at an issue price of 

Rs 585 per equity share, consisting of a fresh issue of 2,564,103 equity shares aggregating to Rs 1,500 million and an offer for sale of equity shares aggregating to Rs 

3,300 million. The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited w.e.f July 04, 2023. The net proceeds from 

the fresh issue of the IPO would be utilized towards the following : 

a. Funding working capital requirements of the Company 

b. General corporate purpose 

(45) Other Statutory Information 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

 

(46) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to current year presentation. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 

 
 Sd/-        Sd/-              Sd/-             Sd/-                          Sd/- 
CA Gyan Chandra Misra 

Partner 

Gulzar Ahmed 

Chaiman 

Wajid Ahmed 

Managing Director 

Gulzeb Ahmed Nikhil Sundrani 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 DIN: 0654660 Membership number : 53307 

Place : Ghaziabad 
Date : July 31, 2023 

Place : Agra 
Date : July 31, 2023 

Place : Agra Place : Agra Place : Agra 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of HMA Agro Industries Limited (“the Group Companies”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31,  2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated financial statements”). 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stat e 

of affairs of the group as at March 31, 2023 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date.  

  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group Companies in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We bel ieve that 

the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial 

statements. 

 

 

Key Audit Matters 
 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 

financial statements of the current period.  

On the facts and circumstances of the Group and the audit, we determine that there are no key audit matters to communicate. 

 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

 

The Group Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibi lity 

and Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial  
statements, Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Group Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,  financial 

performance and cash flows of the group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Accounting Standards (AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the group and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
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that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wer e 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.  

 

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the group ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the group financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may  

cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 

the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

1 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the group so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 

Act subject to the matters specified in key audit matters and other matters. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board 

of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements of the 

group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the group’s internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated financial statements. 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the 

Act, as amended:   

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the group to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us: 

 

i.The group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements. 

Refer Note no. 38 to the consolidated financial statements. 

 

ii.The group has not made any provision against the pending litigation as the group believes that these claims are not tenable 

and hence no provisioning made by the group. 

 

iii.There were no amounts as on 31st March 2023, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the group. 

 

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 
the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 

the accounts, no funds have been received by the group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and  

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement. 

 

v.As stated in note 2.16 to the accompanying standalone financial statement, the Board of Directors of the company has 

recognizes a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorized, and the distribut ion 

is no longer at the discretion of the company. As per corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved 

by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. Company has declared and paid dividend 

during the period under review. 

 

vi.Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the group with effect from April 1, 2023, and 

accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

 

For MAPSS AND COMPANY                               

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 012796C 

 

Sd/- 

CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA 

Partner   

Membership No. 078183 
UDIN: 23078183BGVUVJ2049 

Date: 31-07-2023  

Place: Ghaziabad 

1 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

141



HMA AGRO GROUP 

Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
Note 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

ASSETS    

(A) Non-current assets   

(a) Property, plant and equipment (3) 2,598.68 1,401.32 

(b) Capital work in progress (3.1) 581.84 916.39 

(c) Goodwill (4) 6.23 6.23 

(d) Financial assets    

(i) Other financials assets (9) 339.70 330.31 

(e) Income tax assets  123.10 75.83 

(f) Deferred tax assets (net) (10) 81.79 24.19 

(g) Other non current assets (11) 431.75 422.70 

Total non-current assets  4,163.09 3,176.97 

(B) Current assets   

(a) Inventories (5) 1,285.45 1,367.53 

(b) Financial assets    

(i) Trade receivables (6) 2,984.82 2,897.46 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents (8) 689.04 185.28 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above (7) 49.68 254.94 

(iv) Other financial assets (9) 33.90 44.85 

(c) Other current assets (11) 783.62 632.10 

Total current assets  5,826.51 

9,989.60 

5,382.16 

Total assets  8,559.13 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

(A) Equity   

(a) Share capital (12) 475.13 475.13 

(b) Other equity (13) 4,267.42 3,269.52 

(c) Non Controlling Interest  202.32 171.90 

Total equity  4,944.87 3,916.55 

(B) Liabilities   

(a) Financial liabilities    

      (i) Borrowings (14) 422.50 521.60 

(ii) Other financial liabilities (16)  5.39 - 

(b) Provisions (18) 35.32 16.05 

Total non-current liabilities  463.21 537.65 

(II) Current liabilities   

(a) Financial liabilities    

(i) Borrowings (14) 3,010.69 2,778.57 

(ii) Trade payables (15)   

1. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 - - 

2. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 870.10 794.55 

(iii) Other financial liabilities (16) 220.30 40.71 

(b) Other liabilities (17) 387.09 476.21 

(c) Provisions (18) 3.66 1.50 

(d) Current tax liabilities  89.68 13.39 

Total current liabilities  4,581.52 4,104.93 
    

Total Equity and Liabilities  9,989.60 8,559.13 

Significant accounting policies 1 - 2 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 
   Sd/-        Sd/-         Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 

Partner 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman 
Wajid Ahmed 

Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
        Sd/-        Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

 

 

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended ended March 31, 2023 

(in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 

 

Note 

 

Year ended 

March 31,2023 

 

Year ended 

March 31,2022 

    

    
(a) Revenue from operations (19) 32,092.19 30,831.91 

(b) Other income (20) 468.72 557.85 

Total Income  32,560.91 31,389.76 
    

(2) Expenses    

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed (21) 24,603.20 24,214.49 

(b) Changes in inventories (22) 82.07 (99.06) 

(c) Employee benefits expense (23) 965.27 1,056.65 

(d) Finance costs (24) 111.68 65.65 

(e) Depreciation and amortization expense (25) 176.42 106.67 

(f) Other expenses (26) 4,886.74 4,459.24 

Total Expenses  30,825.38 29,803.64 
    

(3) Profit before tax (1-2)  1,735.53 1,586.12 
    

(4) Tax expense (36)   

(a) Current tax  521.13 411.87 

(b) Tax expense relating to prior years  - 10.15 

(b) Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (20.26) (0.73) 

Total tax expense  500.87 421.29 

(5) Profit for the year  1,234.66 1,164.83 
    

(6) Other comprehensive income    

(1) Items that will be reclassified to Profit / (Loss)    

- Net change in value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges  (140.10) - 

- Deferred tax impact on above  35.26 - 

(2) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit    

- Remeasurements of defined benefit liability  (8.55) 1.21 

- Tax impact on above  2.08 (0.30) 

Total other comprehensive income  (111.31) 0.91 
    

(7) Total comprehensive income for the year  1,123.35 1,165.74 
    

Profit for the year attributable to:    

Equity holders of the parent 
Non-controlling Interest 

 1,204.12 
30.54 

1,147.53 
17.30 

Total profit for the year  1,234.66 1,164.83 
    

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to    

Equity holders of the parent  (111.19) 0.76 

Non-Controlling Interest  (0.12) 0.15 

Total other comprehensive income  (111.31) 0.91 
    

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to :    

Equity holders of the parent  1,092.93 1,148.28 

Non-Controlling Interest  30.42 17.46 

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable  1,123.35 1,165.74 
    

Total    

    

Earnings per share (EPS) (Rupee per share) (35)   

(1) Basic EPS  25.34 24.39 

(2) Diluted EPS  25.34 24.39 

Significant accounting policies 1 - 2 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 
            Sd/-         Sd/-      Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmad 
Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
 
        Sd/-    Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

 

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 
(in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
Year ended March 

31,2023 

Year ended March 

31,2022 

   

(A) Cashflows from operating activities   

Profit before tax 1,735.53 1,586.12 

Adjustment for:   

Depreciation and amortization 176.42 106.67 

Liabilities no longer required written back - (18.19) 

Unrealised Fair value (gain)/loss on forward contracts (net) 91.04 (29.14) 

Interest expenses 110.63 63.45 

Interest on bank deposits (64.14) (19.96) 

Profit on sale of assets (net) (0.51) (0.05) 

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net) (24.29) (441.90) 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,024.68 1,247.00 

   

Adjustment for changes in working capital:   

(Increase) in trade receivables (63.06) (888.91) 

Decrease /(Increase) in inventories 82.08 (99.32) 

(Increase) in other financial assets (24.12) (2.88) 

(Increase) in other assets (151.52) (42.91) 

Increase in trade payables 75.55 32.37 

(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (14.06) (30.58) 

Increase in current and non-current provisions 12.89 4.81 

(Decrease) in other current liabilities (89.12) (72.73) 

Cash generated from operations 1,853.32 146.85 

Taxes paid (net of refunds) (492.11) (466.49) 

Net cashflows from operating activities 1,361.21 (319.64) 
   

(B) Cashflows from investing activities   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (1,088.72) (819.66) 

Capital advances paid (9.05) 134.85 

Payment towards acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (Refer note 34) - (362.37) 

Movement in bank deposits with maturity greater than 3 months (net) 201.80 (408.45) 

Interest received on fixed deposit 64.14 20.46 

Net cashflows from investing activities (831.83) (1,435.17) 
   

(C) Cashflows from financing activities   

Borrowings (net) 133.01 1,479.22 

Government grants received 50.00 - 

Interest paid 
Dividend paid 

(113.60) 
(95.03) 

(55.98) 
                                - 

Net cashflows from financing activities (25.62) 1,423.24 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 503.76 (331.57) 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 185.28 516.85 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 689.04 185.28 
   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:   

Cash in hand 28.46 24.32 

Balance with banks:   

- In current accounts 651.85 147.31 

- Cheque in hand 8.48 13.55 

- In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less 0.25 0.10 
   

Total cash and cash equivalents 689.04 185.28 

 
Notes : 

The cashflow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of cash flows' 

as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013. 

 
As per our report of even date attached. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 
    Sd/-                        Sd/-     Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 
Partner 

Gulzar Ahmad 
Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

UDIN :   

 
                      Sd/-       Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial officer 

Membership number : 5330 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 
(A) Equity share capital 

 
 
 

(in ₹ Million) 
 

Particulars Amount 

Balance as at April 1, 2021  37.27 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  437.86 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 

475.13 

475.13 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  475.13 

(B) Other equity 

 

 
(in ₹ Million) 

 

 
 

Particulars 

Reserve and Surplus 
 

 
Effective portion of 

Cash flow hedges 

 

 
Attributable to 

Parent 

 

Attributable to Non 

controlling interest 

share holders 

 
 

Total equity  
General Reserve 

 
Capital Reserve 

Securities 

Premium 

Retained 

earnings 

Remeasurement of 

defined employee 

benefit plans 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 600.00 25.32 34.20 1,899.13 0.45 - 2,559.10 4.85 2,563.94 

On account of business combination (Refer note 34) - - - - - - - 149.59 149.59 

Bonus shares issued to shareholder (Refer note 12) (403.67) - (34.20) - - - (437.87) - (437.87) 

Profit for the year - - - 1,147.53 0.76 - 1,148.29 17.46 1,165.74 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 196.33 25.32 - 3,046.66 1.21 - 3,269.52 171.90 3,441.42 
      

Balance as at April 1, 2022 196.33 25.32 - 3,046.66 1.21 - 3,269.52 171.90 3,441.42 

Profit for the year - - - 1,204.12 (6.36) (104.84) 1,092.93 30.42 1,123.35 

Dividend paid (Refer note 12(g)) - - - (95.03) - - (95.03) - (95.03) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 196.33 25.32 - 4,155.75 (5.15) (104.84) 4,267.42 202.32 4,469.74 

 

Nature and purpose of reserves 
(a) Securities Premium Reserve: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. It can be used only in accordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for specified purposes. 

(b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date net of appropriations. It is available for distribution to shareholders. 

(c) Capital Reserves : Any short fall of consideration paid over net assets acquired is treated as capital reserve under equity. 

(d) General Reserves :Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these 

transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. 

Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general 

reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Significant accounting policies 1 - 2 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY   HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C   CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 
 

Sd/-               Sd/-        Sd/- 
CA Gyan Chandra Misra                                            Gulzar Ahmad                                              Wajid Ahmed 

Partner                                            Chairman                                                                 Managing Director 

Membership Number: 103145                                            DIN : 01312305        DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad                                             Place : Agra                                               Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023                                            Date : July 31, 2023                                               Date : July 31, 2023 

UDIN : 

    
      
                                  Sd/-                             Sd/- 

                  Nikhil Sundrani                                                     Gulzeb Ahmed 

                                                                                                                      Company Secretary                                               Chief financial officer 

                                                                                                                      Membership number : 53307                              DIN : 06546660 

 Place : Agra          Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

 Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 

1 Corporate information 

 

HMA Agro Industries Limited (''the Group'') is domiciled and incorporated in India and it is an unlisted Group. The registered office of the Group is situated at 18A-

5-3 Taj view Crossing, Fatehabad Road, Agra – 282 001, Uttar Pradesh. The Group is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo Frozen 

Meat and Meat Products operating in State of Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Haryana, Rajasthan, Bihar and Maharashtra. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the 

Group for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved and authorized for issue by board of directors in their meeting held on July 31, 2023. 

 
Significant accounting policies followed by Group 
 

2 Basis of preparation 

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 

2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting 

policy regarding financial instruments). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees "INR" which is also the Company's functional currency and all 

values are rounded to the nearest million (Rupees Million) upto two decimal, except when otherwise indicated. 

Basis of Consolidation 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The group 

combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised 

losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

 

2.01 Business Combination 

The Group accounts for each business combination by applying the acquisition method. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the 

acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one party to another. 

Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 

through power over the entity. 

The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the consideration transferred less the net recognized amount of the 

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities in case such a liability represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and 

its fair value can be measured reliably) assumed. When the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration 

transferred, a bargain purchase gain is recognized as capital reserve. 

Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity 

interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Consideration transferred does not include 

amounts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. 

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a 

financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise subsequent changes in the fair 

value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional 

and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred. 

 
Any goodwill that arises on account of such business combination is tested annually for impairment. 

 
2.02 Property, plant and equipment 

 
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost 

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost includes its purchase price including non-refundable taxes and Subsequent 

costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or Recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future The carrying amount 

of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit 

or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 

amount. 

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted in the line with 

revisions to accounting estimates. 

Capital work in progress includes cost of PPE under development as at the Balance Sheet date and is carried at cost, comprising of direct cost and directly 

attributable cost. 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

 Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method, which is in line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit and loss. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows : 
 

Assets Useful life (years) 

Office equipment 10 

Plant and Machinery 15 

Building 30 

Vehicles 8 

Land - 

 
2.03 Impairment of property, plant and equipment 

 
Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying amount of the Groups’ each class of the 

property, plant and equipment . If any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 

cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. 

2.03 Accounting for Joint Operations 

The Group has an interest in joint operation. It recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation its: 

► Assets, including its share of any assets held jointly 

► Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

► Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

► Share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation 

► Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly 

2.04 Current versus non-current classification 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

► Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

► Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

► Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

► Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period All other assets are 

classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

► It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

► It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

► It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

► There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-

current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.05 Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions 

that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 

best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 

follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

► Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

► Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

► Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amount approximates fair 

value to due to short term maturity of these instruments. 

The Group recognises the transfer between the levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the changes has occurred. 

 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 

or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summaries accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

► Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 30) 

► Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 30) 
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HMA AGRO GROUP 

 Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 

 
2.06 Revenue from contract with customers 

 

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to a 

customer. The Group identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and recognises revenue as and when the performance obligations 

are satisfied. 
Revenue from inter-Group arrangement is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length based on transfer pricing arrangement. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as 

specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

 

Sale of products : 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the control and ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, on delivery of the goods to the 

ultimate consumer. 

2.07 Other income : 

Interest income: 

Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Profit/ (Loss) on derivatives : 

Profit/ (Loss) on derivatives contracts on account of fair value changes are recognised as either income or expenses as the case may be through Profit  and loss. 

Duty drawback 

Duty drawback income is recognised when right to receive such benefits is established. Further, in cases where there is uncertainty of such benefits, revenue 

is recognised when benefits are received. 
 

2.08 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows: 

 
► Finished goods : cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating  

capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. 

► Packing material and stores & spares : cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to 

make the sale. 

 
2.09 Taxes 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the 

Income Tax Act 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the 

tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 

 
Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet approach at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purpose at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits 

will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 

recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply in a year when asset is realised or the liability is expected to be 

settled based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax 

where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws. 

2.10 Borrowing Cost : 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is necessary 

to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in 

finance costs. 

 
2.11 Employee Benefits : 

A. Non funded Gratuity Obligations : The Company accounts for employee benefit expense based on the independent Actuarial professional on every 

reporting date. The gratuity plan is a non funded plan and the Company makes provision in books of account based on the actuarial report. 

 
B. Defined Contribution Plans : The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India 

for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the 

Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

148



HMA AGRO GROUP 

 Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 

2.12 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions: 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 

to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent Liabilities: 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past 

events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. The 

Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

 

2.13 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 
Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), 

and fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business 

model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a 

financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 

acquisition of financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price determined 

under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.06 for Revenue from contracts with customers. 
 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 

instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the 

business model. 

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model 

determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and 

measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while 

financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual 

cash flows and selling. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 
Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

► F inancial assets at amortised cost 

► Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

► Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses 

► Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition 

 
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) T he asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised 

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 

is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at 

amortised cost includes other financial assets. 

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at FVOCI if both the following conditions are met: 

a) T he objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b) T he asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

 
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when 

they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business 

combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 

 
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss 

when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial 

asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement 

of profit and loss. This category includes derivative forwards which the Group has taken to hedge its foreign exchange reserves. Gain/loss on such 

transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on every reporting period. 
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2.13 Financial Instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed 

from a Group’s balance sheet) when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 

asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered 

to be impaired, if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating estimated credit loss. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit 

risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based 

on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

 
Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced 

by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

c. Derivative Financial Instruments 

 
Instruments in hedging relationship 

The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward contracts as hedge instruments in respect of foreign exchange risks. These hedges are 

accounted for as cash flow hedges, net of taxes based on the forcasted highly probable transactions. 

 

The Company uses hedging instruments that are governed by the policies of the Company which are approved by the Board of Directors. The policies 

provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the Company. 

 
The hedge instruments are designated and documented as hedges at the inception of the contract. The Company determines the existence of an economic 

relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and timing of their respective cash flows. The effectiveness 

of hedge instruments to reduce the risk associated with the exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.The 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the statement of profit and loss upon the occurrence of the 

related forecasted transaction. If the hedged forecasted transaction are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in other 

equity are immediately reclassified in net foreign exchange gains in the statement of profit and loss. The effective portion of change in the fair value of the 

designated hedging instrument is recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedging reserve. 

 
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss 

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity till that time remains and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the 

forecasted transaction ultimately affects profit and loss. 

Instruments not in hedging relationship 

The Company enters into contracts that are effective as hedges from an economic perspective, but they do not qualify for hedge accounting. The change 

in the fair value of such instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
2.14 Government Grants 

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. 

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 

to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related 

asset. The Group reduces the carrying amount of the asset to the extent of grant received. The grant is then recognised in profit or loss over the useful life 

of the depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge. 
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2.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash balances at banks, on hand cash balances and demand deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cash at bank, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

 

2.16 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus 

issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. Earnings considered in ascertaining 

the Group’s earnings per share is the net profit for the year after deducting any attributable tax thereto for the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted 

earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 

is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
2.17 Segment Reporting 

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group’s performance 

and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected 

at market prices. Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment. 

 
Segment Policies 

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the Consolidated financial 

statements of the Group as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 

 
2.18 Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions 

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent 

liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 

or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any 

future year affected. 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements which have significant effect on the amounts 

Recognized in the consolidated financial statements: 

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and intangible 

assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be Capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life specified in Schedule 

II of the Companies Act, 2013 and also as per management estimate for certain category of assets. Assumption also need to be made, when Group 

assesses, whether as asset may be Capitalized and which components of the cost of the assets may be capitalized. 

 
b. Contingencies: Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ 

litigation against Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

 
c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes :  Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting 

purposes. The Management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for the fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of 

an asset or a liability, the Group used market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged third 

party qualified valuers to perform the valuations in order to determine the fair values based on the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to fair value 

measurements such as Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is 

not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and 

volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

 
d. Estimation of defined benefit plans :The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial 

assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the 

post-employment benefit obligation. 

 
e. Tax expense :Tax expense is calculated using applicable tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted. In arriving at taxable profit 

and all tax bases of assets and liabilities, the Group determines the taxability based on tax enactments, relevant judicial pronouncements and tax expert 

opinions, and makes appropriate provisions which includes an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments / litigations. Any difference is 

recognized on closure of assessment or in the period in which they are agreed. 

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible 

temporary differences, unused tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and unused tax credits could be utilised. 

HMA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT  2022-23

151



 

HMA AGRO GROUP 

Notes to Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

 
(3) Property, plant and equipment (in ₹ Million) 

Particulars Land (Freehold) Building Vehicles Plant and Machinery Office Equipment Total 

       

Gross carrying amount       

As at April 01, 2022 667.36 450.39 64.02 569.57 27.41 1,778.75 

Additions 0.66 353.64 52.89 822.78 151.31 1,381.28 

Disposals - - (4.06) (3.47) - (7.53) 

As at March 31, 2023 668.02 804.03 112.85 1,388.88 178.72 3,152.50 
       

Accumulated depreciation       

As at April 01, 2022 - 70.75 42.22 252.63 11.80 377.40 

Charge for the year - 52.80 11.80 96.82 15.00 176.42 

On disposals - - - - - - 

As at March 31, 2023 - 123.55 54.02 349.45 26.80 553.82 
       

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 668.02 680.48 58.83 1,039.43 151.92 2,598.68 

       

Gross carrying amount       

As at April 01, 2021 425.62 214.83 54.04 479.53 17.96 1,191.98 

On account of business combination 
(Refer note 34) 

241.48 213.58 2.37 87.02 1.32 545.77 

Additions 0.26 24.08 7.61 7.28 8.13 47.36 

Disposals - (2.10) - (4.26) - (6.36) 

As at March 31, 2022 667.36 450.39 64.02 569.57 27.41 1,778.75 
       

Accumulated depreciation       

As at April 01, 2021 - 42.32 34.75 188.91 6.81 272.79 

Charge for the year - 28.43 7.47 65.78 4.99 106.67 

On disposals - - - (2.06) - (2.06) 

As at March 31, 2022 - 70.75 42.22 252.63 11.80 377.40 
       

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 667.36 379.64 21.80 316.94 15.61 1,401.35 

Note : Immovable properties are held in the name of the Group. 

 
(3.1) Capital work in progress 

(in ₹ Million) 
Particulars Total 

As at April 01, 2021 136.39 

On account of business combination 
(Refer note 34) 

3.47 

Incurred during the year 780.00 

Capitalised during the year (3.47) 

As at March 31, 2022 916.39 

Incurred during the year 967.26 

Capitalised during the year (1,301.81) 

As at March 31, 2023 581.84 

During the previous period the Group has received government grants to the tune of ₹50 million against Capital work in progress. These Grants are reduced from the cost of assets and 

disclosed as net. The Company has complied with all the underlying conditions relating to the Government grants. 

 
Capital work-in-progress includes : 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 

Plant & Machinery 581.84 684.88 

Building - 231.51 

Total 581.84 916.39 
 

Ageing of projects in progress 

March 31, 2023 

 
(in ₹ Million) 

 
 

March 31, 2022 

 Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in progress 780.00 136.39 - - 916.39 

Total 780.00 136.39 - - 916.39 

 

Note : The Group has assessed that there are no Projects which are temporarily suspended or delayed. 

 
 
 

 

 Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in progress 581.84 581.84 

Total 581.84 0 0 0 581.84 
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(4) Goodwill on consolidation 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Goodwill at the beginning of the year 6.23 6.23 

Add: Recognised during the year - - 

Goodwill at the end of the year 6.23 6.23 

 

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units 

The subsidiary is identified as a separate cash generating unit. Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the cash-generating 

units. 

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to major cash-generating units as follows: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
As at March 31, 2023 As at 

March 31, 2021 

HMA Food Export Private Limited 6.23 6.23 

Total 6.23 6.23 

 
Cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually at each reporting date, or more frequently when there is an indication that 

the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to 

reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit. The Company has evaluated that there is no impairment of goodwill is required in respect of above 

entity. 

 

An analysis of the sensitivity of the Computation to a change in key parameters (Operating margin, discount rate and long term growth rate) based on reasonable 

assumptions did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would decrease below its carrying amount. 
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                      (in ₹ Million) 
 
 

(5)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
(6)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
*There are no dues from Directors or other officers of the group either severely or jointly with any other person or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director, or a member. 

** There are no trade receivables which are secured in nature. Also the Company has assessed that there is are no trade receivables having significant increase in credit risk. 

 
March 31 , 2023                     (in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Current but not 

due 

 

Less than 6 

Months 

  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

6 months – 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

 

More than 3 years 

  
Total 

Trade receivables        - 

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 2,954.51 -  - 29.50 0.81 - 2,984.82 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

- 
 

- - - - - 
 

- 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -  - - - - - - 

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -  - - - - - - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

- 
 

- - - - - 
 

- 

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired -  - - - - - - 
 2,954.51  - - 29.50 0.81 - 2,984.82 

 
March 31, 2022                     (in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Current but not 

due 

 

Less than 6 

Months 

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

6 months – 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

 

More than 3 years 

  
Total 

Trade receivables 
Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 

 
2,862.94 

 
- 

 
23.58 

 
0.59 

 
10.35 

 
- 

- 
2,897.46 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

- - - - - - 
 

- 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - 

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

- - - - - - 
 

- 

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - 
 2,862.94 - 23.58 0.59 10.35 - 2,897.46 

 
                     (in ₹ Million) 

(7)  

 
 
 

 
*Above deposits are provided as lien against working capital demand loan taken from financial institutions. 
 

                              (in ₹ Million) 
(8)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                            (in ₹ Million) 

(9)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
*Pertains to advances given for purchase of immovable properties. 

**Balance amounts are used as collateral for issuing bank guarantees which are given to various Government authorities. 

                     (in ₹ Million) 
Current financial assets  

- 

18.22 
15.68 

 

Derivative asset - forward contract (Measured at fair value through profit and loss) 29.14 

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits - 

Security deposit 15.71 
Total current financial assets 33.90 44.85 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Inventories   

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)    

Packing Materials 33.81 44.88 

Finished Goods 1,177.70 1,284.81 

Stores & Spares and Other Materials 74 37.84 
Total Inventories 1,285.45 1,367.53 

   

Trade receivables :   

   

Considered good - Unsecured   

- Third Party 2,942.80 2,897.46 

- Related parties (Refer note 28)  42.02 - 
Total trade receivables 2,984.82 2,897.46 

 

Other bank balances  
 
 

49.68 

 

 
Current 
Bank Deposit with maturity less than twelve months* 

 
 

254.94 
 49.68 254.94 

 

Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash on hand 28.46 24.32 

Balance with banks   

In current accounts 651.85 147.31 

Cheque in hand 8.48 13.55 

In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less 0.25 0.10 
Total cash and cash equivalents 689.04 185.28 

 

Other financial assets   

   

Non-current financial assets   

Capital advances* 30.05 30.75 

Security deposit 46.77 40.15 

Bank deposit provided as lien against borrowings** 262.88 259.41 
Total non-current financial assets 339.70 330.31 
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             (in ₹ Million) 

(10)  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

 
 

Particulars 

 
Property, plant & 

equipment and 

intangible assets 

 
 

Gratuity 

 
 

Derivative Instruments 

 
 

Total 

 
At April 1, 2021 

 
17.18 

 
- 

 
- 

 
17.18 

On account of business combination (Refer note 34) 6.58 - - 6.58 

(Charged) / Credited 
- to profit or loss 

 
4.62 

 
3.45 

 
(7.34) 

 
0.73 

- to other comprehensive income - (0.30) - (0.30) 

At March 31, 2022 28.38 3.15 (7.34) 24.19 

 
At April 1, 2022 

(Charged) / Credited 
- to profit or loss 

 
28.38 

 
(6.55) 

 
3.15 

 
3.90 

 
(7.34) 

 
22.91 

 
24.19 

 
20.26 

- to other comprehensive income - 2.08 35.26 37.34 

At March 31, 2023 21.83 9.13 50.83 81.79 

 
*Pertains to losses of the current period of subsidiary Company. 

                               (in ₹ Million) 
 
 
 

(11)  

 
 
 

 
*The Company has provided advances against the purchase of immovable property and awaiting clearance from authorities. There are no other commitments payable in respect of these capital advances. 

 
Current assets   

Prepaid expenses* 41.32 25.64 

Advance to employees 1.38 - 

Advances to supplier 228.46 305.52 

Advances to related parties (Refer note 28) 0.01 - 

Balance with government authorities 496.99 285.88 
Duty drawback receivable 15.46 15.06 

Total current assets 783.62 632.10 

*Prepaid expense includes  ₹ 26.23 million (March 31, 2022 : 16.68 million towards IPO expense which will be charged to other equity in subsequent period on completion of IPO. 

 

                     (in ₹ Million) 
 
 
 

(12)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

                                 (in ₹ Million) 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount 

    

Equity shares    

At the commencement of the year 47,512,875 475.13 3,726,500 37.27 

Issued during the year (Refer note below) - - 43,786,375 437.86 

At the end of the year 47,512,875 475.13 47,512,875 475.13 

 
Note : 

(a) During the previous year the Board of Directors in meeting dated July 08, 2021 has approved the issue of Bonus shares to all the shareholder in the ratio of 3.25:1 per equity shares. This was subsequently approved by all the 

share holders in extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on July 14, 2021. 

(b) During the previous year the Board of Directors in meeting dated October 04, 2021 has approved the issue of Bonus shares to all the shareholder in the ratio of 2:1 per equity shares. This was subsequently approved by all the 

share holders in extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on October 15, 2021. 

 
(b) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares 

 

 
 

Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

% of total 
shares in Number of shares 

the class 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

% of total 
shares in Number of shares 

the class 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by    

Wajid Ahmed 32.00% 15,204,120 32.00% 15,204,120 

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 

Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 

Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 

Gulzar Ahmad 16.00% 7,602,060 16.00% 7,602,060 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

Significant components of deferred tax assets (net)   

   

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)   

Difference between  book  and  tax  value  of  property,  plant  and 21.83 28.38 

Derivative asset 50.83 (7.34) 

Gratuity expenses 9.13 3.15 

Others* - - 
Total Deferred tax assets 81.79 24.19 

 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

 
Other assets 

 
 
 
 

431.75 

 

  

Non-Current assets  

Capital advances* 422.70 
Total non-current assets 431.75 422.70 

 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 

700.00 

 

Equity share capital  

  

Authorised  

70,000,000 equity shares of face value  ₹ 10 each 
(March 31, 2022 : 20,000,000 equity shares of face value  ₹10 each 

700.00 

 700.00 700.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 

47,512,875 equity share of face value Rs.10 each fully paid up 

(March 31, 2022 :47,512,875 equity share of face value Rs.10 each fully paid up) 

 
475.13 

 
475.13 

 475.13 475.13 
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(c) Details of shares held by promoters 

 
As at March 31, 2023 

 

Promoter Name 

No. of shares at 

the beginning of 

the year 

 
Change during the 

year 

  
No. of shares at 

the end of the year 

 

% of Total Shares 

 
% change during the 

year 

Wajid Ahmed 15,204,120 - 15,204,120 32% - 

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 7,602,060 - 7,602,060 16% - 

Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 7,602,060 - 7,602,060 16% - 

Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 7,602,060 - 7,602,060 16% - 

Gulzar Ahmad 7,602,060 - 7,602,060 16% - 

Pravez Alam 1,899,240 - 1,899,240 4% - 
Gulzeb Ahmad 1,275 - 1,275 0% - 

Total 47,512,875 - 47,512,875 100% - 

 
 
As at March 31, 2022 

 
Promoter 

Name 

No. of shares at 

the beginning of 

the year 

 

Change during the 

year 

 

No. of shares at 

the end of the year 

 
% of Total Shares 

 

% change during 

the year 

Wajid Ahmed 1,192,480 14,011,640 15,204,120 32.00% - 

Mohd Ashraf Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820 7,602,060 16.00% - 

Mohd Mehmood Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820 7,602,060 16.00% - 

Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 596,240 7,005,820 7,602,060 16.00% - 

Gulzar Ahmad 596,240 7,005,820 7,602,060 16.00% - 

Pravez Alam 148,960 1,750,280 1,899,240 4.00% - 

Gulzeb Ahmad 100 1,175 1,275 0.00% - 

Total 3,726,500 43,786,375 47,512,875 100% - 

 

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all 

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

 

(e) There were no shares allotted pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or any shares bought back. 

 
(f) There are no unpaid calls from any director or officer. 

 
(g) No dividend is declared by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022. 

 
(h) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

As at 

March 31, 2021 

Bonus shares issued (number of shares) 43,786,375 - 

Amount capitalised (Rs in Millions) 437.86 - 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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(in ₹ Million) 

 
 

 
(13)  

 
 

 
Movement of other equity 
General Reserve 

 

 
196.33 

- 

 

At the commencement of the year 

Less: Bonus shares issued to shareholder 

600.00 

(403.67) 

At the end of the year 196.33 196.33 

 
Capital Reserve  

25.32 

 

At the commencement of the year 25.32 

At the end of the year 25.32 25.32 

 
Securities Premium  

                                   - 
- 

 

At the commencement of the year 

Less: Bonus shares issued to shareholder 

34.20 

(34.20) 

At the end of the year - - 

 
Retained earnings  

3,047.37 

1,204.12 
(95.03) 

 

At the commencement of the year 

Profit for the year 
Less: Dividend adjusted for previous year 

1,899.84 

1,147.53 

       - 
At the end of the year 4,156.46 3,047.37 

 
Other comprehensive income  

1.20 
(111.19) 

 

Opening balance 
Movement 

0.45 
0.76 

Closing balance (109.99) 1.20 

                      
    (in ₹ Million) 

 
 
 

(14)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Working capital demand loans are secured against raw materials, deposits with bank, book debts and finished goods 

**Pertains to bill discounting with banks 

Refer note 31 on details of security nature of payment and indicative interest rate against respective loans. 

 

                     (in ₹ Million) 
(15)  

 
Current trade payables     

- 

840.78 
29.32 

    

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below) - 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 770.88 

- Related parties (Refer note 28) 23.67 
Total current trade payables 870.10 794.55 

 
The Group has the process of identification of 'suppliers' registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') Act, 2006, by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. The Group has not received 

intimation from any of the 'suppliers' regarding their status under MSMED Act, 2006 and hence disclosures if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as required have not been furnished. 

 
Ageing of Trade payables 

March 31, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
 

Not due 
   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
 

Total 
 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
 

- - - - - 
 - 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

 
- 

785.23 2.57 3.80 2.95  794.55 

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  - - - - -  - 

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 
- - - - - 

 - 

Total  - 785.23 2.57 3.80 2.95  794.55 

 
  

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
   

Other equity   

General Reserve 196.33 196.33 

Capital Reserve 25.32 25.32 

Securities Premium - - 

Retained earnings 4,156.46 3,047.38 

Other comprehensive income (109.99) 1.21 
Total other equity 4,268.12 3,270.24 

 

Trade payables 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 

422.50 

 

Borrowings  

  

Non Current  

Term loan from bank (Refer note 31) 521.60 
 422.50 521.60 
Current   

Secured:   

- Banks - working capital demand loans* 2,843.58 2,272.15 

- Banks - current maturities of long term debts 130.00 97.50 

- Banks - bill purchase** 12.78 379.50 

Unsecured:   

- Others 19.91 26.00 

- Intercorporate loan - - 

- Related parties (Refer note 28) 4.42 3.42 
 3,010.69 2,778.57 

 

Particulars 
 

Not due 

 
  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
 

Total 

 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
 

- - - - - 
 - 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

 

- 
859.67 8.01 2.28 0.14  870.10 

(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  - - - - -  - 

(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 

- - - - - 
 - 

Total  - 859.67 8.01 2.28 0.14  870.10 
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                      (in ₹ Million) 

(16)  

 
Non-Current financial liabilities As at March 31, 2023 

5 
As at March 31, 2022 

Derivative liability - forward contract (Measured at fair value through profit and loss) - 

Total non-current financial liabilities 5 - 

 
Current financial liabilities                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   As at March 31, 2023                As at March 31, 2022 

 
Derivative liability - forward contract (Measured at fair value through profit and loss) 

Employee related obligations 
Interest accrued and not due 

 
196.61 

19.19 
4.50 

 
- 

33.24 
7.47 

Total current financial liabilities 220.30 40.71 

 

          (in ₹ Million) 
(17)  

 
Current liabilities          As at March 31, 2023   As at March 31, 2022 

Advances from customer* 327.63 406.78 

Advances from related parties (Refer note 28) 0.78 - 

Statutory dues payable** 41.64 67.37 

Other liabilities 17.04 2.06 
Total current liabilities 387.09 476.21 

*pertains to advances received against order in hand, which will be adjusted as and when goods are billed to the customer. 

**includes liability towards Tax deducted at source, provident fund contribution and Professional tax 

 

            (in ₹ Million) 
(18)  

 
Non Current provisions  

35.32 

 

Gratuity (Refer note 27) 16.05 
Total non current provisions 35.32 16.05 

 
Current provisions  

3.66 

 

Gratuity (Refer note 27) 1.50 

Total current provisions 3.66 1.50 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 (This space has been intentionally left blank) 

Provisions                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               As at March 31, 2023           As at March 31, 2022 

Other liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 
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(in ₹ Million)  
 
 

 
(19)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(20)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(21)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
(22)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(23)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
(24) Finance costs  

  

 
110.63 

1.05 

 

Interest on :  

- working capital demand loan and term loans 63.45 

- statutory dues 2.20 
Total finance cost 111.68 65.65 

 

 
(25)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

 

Particulars 

 
Year ended 

March 31,2023 

 
Year ended 

March 31,2022 

   

Revenue from operations   

   

Sale of products   

- Domestic sales 2,328.55 4,095.75 

- Export sales 29,792.89 26,749.25 
Less : Discount (29.25) (13.09) 
Total Revenue from operations 32,092.19 30,831.91 

 

Other income  
 

 
64.14 

1.22 

308.89 

0.51 

- 

59.87 

- 
34.09 

 

Interest on :  

- Bank deposits 19.96 

- Others 0.00 

Foreign exchange gain, net 441.90 

Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 0.05 

Profit on derivative forwards measured through profit and loss 29.14 

Duty drawback 40.51 

Liabilities no longer required written back 18.19 

Miscellaneous income 8.10 
Total other income 468.72 557.85 

 

Cost of raw material consumed  
- 

24,603.20 
- 

 

Inventory at the beginning of the year - 

Add : Purchased 24,214.49 

Less : raw material at the end of the year - 
Cost of raw material consumed 24,603.20 24,214.49 

 

Changes in inventories  

 
1,367.52 

 

 
(1,285.45) 

 

At the beginning of the year  

Finished Goods 1,268.47 

 
At the end of the year 

 

Finished Goods 

 
Change 

(1,367.53) 

82.07 (99.06) 

 

Employee benefits expenses  
936.47 

12.88 

9.41 
6.51 

 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Gratuity expense (Refer note 27) 

1,038.64 
5.12 

Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 27) 8.66 

Staff welfare expense 4.23 
Total employee benefits expenses 965.27 1,056.65 

 

Depreciation expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 176.42 106.67 

Total depreciation expense  176.42   106.67 
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Particulars 

 
Year ended 

March 31,2023 

 
Year ended 

March 31,2022 

   

 
(26)  

 
 

Freight charges 1,954.89 

596.09 

535.43 

523.34 

423.99 

91.04 

 
185.38 

26.24 

186.33 

74.11 

62.45 

43.95 

26.78 

25.65 

21.22 

36.59 

18.44 

10.07 

5.46 

4.51 

2.50 

1.82 

0.01 

0.89 
29.56 

2,072.33 

Power and fuel 599.56 

Cooling and freezing charges 121.13 

Packaging expenses 405.17 

Sales commission 389.68 

Loss on derivative forwards measured through profit and loss - 

Repairs and maintenance :  

- Plant & machinery 210.34 

- Building 16.95 

Export charges 182.91 

Consumable expenses 89.30 

Rates and taxes 59.71 

Legal and professional charges 46.15 

Security charges 22.88 

Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 39) 16.36 

Bank charges 36.88 

Travelling and conveyance 5.94 

Cleaning expenses 15.60 

Insurance charges 10.71 

Vehicle expenses 3.27 

Communication expenses 4.43 

Printing & Stationery 8.63 

Facility utilisation charges and rent 105.84 

Sundry balances write off 4.27 

Auditors remuneration (Refer note 26.1) 0.89 

Miscellaneous expenses 30.31 
Total other expenses 4,886.74 4,459.24 

 
(26.1)     Payment to auditors : 

For statutory audit  

Total payment to auditors 

 
 

 
 
 
 
(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

Other expenses 

0.89   0.89 

0.89 0.89 
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(27) Employee benefits 

 
(a) Defined contribution plan  

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees as per 

regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the Company is limited 

to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

   

Employer's contribution to provident fund 9.41 8.66 
   

Included in 'Contribution to provident fund under employee benefits expense (Refer Note 23)  

 
(b) Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity: 

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a 

period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month 

computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a non funded plan and the Company 

makes provision in books of account based on the actuarial report. 

 

Actuarial Assumptions 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 
   

Discount rate 7.20% 6.30% 

Future salary increases 5.00% 5.00% 

Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00% 

Mortality rate Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 

Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) 

Ultimate 

Weighted average duration of the obligation 7.5 Years 8 Years 

 
Notes: 

1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market 

 
2. Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases 

 

3. Assumption regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. 

 
(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) over the year are as 

follows : 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Change in the present value of obligation 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

   

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 17.56 13.65 

Interest cost 1.21 0.89 

Current service cost 1.76 4.23 

Past service coast 9.91 - 

Remeasurement due to  - 

Actuarial loss /(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.16) (0.56) 

Actuarial loss /(gain) arising on account of experience changes 0.07 (0.65) 

Actuarial loss /(gain) arising on account of demographical assumption 8.65 - 
   

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 39.00 17.56 
   

 
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 

and the fair value of assets 

 
As at March 31, 2023 

 
As at March 31, 2022 

   

Present value of funded obligation at the end of the year 39.00 17.56 
   

Deficit of funded plan 39.00 17.56 
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    (in ₹ Million) 

(ii) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(iii) Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in weighted principal assumptions is: 

 

 
Particulars 

 
Year ended March 31, 2023 

 
Year ended March 31, 2022 

   

Discount rate (Increases 1%) (2.72) (1.28) 

Discount rate (Decreases 1%) 3.11 1.47 

Salary increase rate (Increases 1%) 3.15 0.08 

Salary increase rate (Decreases 1%) (2.80) (0.09) 

Withdrawal Rate (Increases 1%) 0.21 (0.03) 

Withdrawal Rate (Decreases 1%) (0.06) 0.03 

Mortality Rate (increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) (0.01) (0.00) 

Mortality Rate (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) (0.02) (0.01) 
   

 
The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice it is unlikely to 

occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity 

analysis did not change compared to previous period. 

 
(28) Related party transactions 

 
(a) Related parties 

 
(i) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel 

 

Sr No Name of the party 

1 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited (upto to March 31, 2021) 

2 HMA Cattle Farming Private Limited 

3 Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited 

4 HMA Consumer Private Limited 

5 HMA Hygienic Foods Industries Private Limited 

6 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 

7 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited 

8 Taj View Construction Private Limited 

9 Agra Better Homes LLP 

10 Black Gold Tanners 

 

 
(ii) Key managerial personnel 

 
Sr. No Particulars Nature of relationship 

   

1 Wajid Ahmed (upto June 02, 2021) 
(w.e.f June 03, 2021) 

Director 
Managing Director 

 (w.e.f June 03, 2021) Chairman 
 (w.e.f June 03, 2021) Chief financial officer 

4 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi (upto. April 01, 2021) Director 

5 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi (upto. August 01, 2019) Director 

6 Nikhil Sundrani (w.e.f. October 04, 2021) Company secretary 

 
(iii) Relatives of Key management personal 

 
Sr No Name of the party 

1 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 

2 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 

3 Parvez Alam 

4 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 

5 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 

6 Nafees Begum 

7 Gulzair Ahmed 

8 Zainul Ahmad 

9 Gulam Habib 

 

 
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 
   

Current service cost 1.76 4.23 

Past service cost 9.91 - 

Interest cost 1.21 0.89 

Total expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 12.88 5.12 

   

 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 

 
Year ended March 31, 2023 

 
Year ended March 31, 2022 

   

Remeasurements during the year due to   

Changes in financial assumptions (0.16) (0.56) 

Changes in demographic assumptions 8.65 - 

Experience adjustments 0.07 (0.65) 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the y 8.56 (1.21) 
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(28)     Related party transactions (continued) 

(b) Transaction and balances 

(in ₹ Million) 

Sr. 

No 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

A Transactions   

    

1 Facility utilisation charges   

 Federal Agro Industries Private Limited - - 
    

2 Rent   

 HMA Cattle Farming Private Limited - - 
 Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited - - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 0.04 0.04 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
 Wajid Ahmed 0.07 0.07 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
 Parvez Alam 0.04 0.04 
 Nafees Begum 0.04 0.04 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
    

3 Cooling charges   

 Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited - 8.31 
    

4 Commission on sales   

 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi - 36.69 
    

5 Sale of Products   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 42.61 30.82 
 Black Gold Tanners    19.26 - 
    

6 Purchase of raw material   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 4.67 41.38 
    

7 Remuneration   

 Gulzar Ahmad 18.00 16.50 
 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 6.00 1.00 
 Wajid Ahmed 18.00 16.50 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 18.00 16.50 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 12.00 11.10 
 Parvez Alam 18.00 16.50 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 18.00 16.50 
 Gulzair Ahmed 5.30 1.20 
 Zainul Ahmad - 1.20 
 Gulam Habib - 1.20 
 Nikhil Sundrani 0.42 - 
    

8 Reimbursement of expense incurred on behalf of subsidiary   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited - 0.36 
 Gausia Cold Storage Pvt Ltd - 4.16 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 1.05 - 
    

9 Advance given to related parties   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 0.05 - 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 0.01 - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 10.98 - 
 Zulfiqar Ahmad Qurashi - - 
    

10 Advances received back from related parties   

 HMA Hygienic Foods Industries Private Limited - 0.75 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 0.05 - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 11.68 - 
    

11 Borrowings taken from related parties   

 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 1.42 - 
 Wajid Ahmed 1.00 - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 2.00 - 
    

12 Borrowings repaid to related parties   

 Gulzeb Ahmed - 1.80 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi - 2.89 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi - 54.46 
 Wajid Ahmed - 8.54 
 Gulzar Ahmad - 0.91 
 Parvez Alam - 1.10 
 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi - 13.25 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi - 17.58 
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(28) Related party transactions (continued) 

     (in ₹ Million) 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

    

13 Dividend Paid   

 Gulzar Ahmad 15.21 - 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 15.21 - 
 Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi 15.21 - 
 Wajid Ahmed 30.39 - 
 Parvez Alam 3.80 - 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 15.21 - 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 0.00  

    

14 Guarantee given on behalf of the Company   

 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Taj View Construction Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Gulzar Ahmad 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Wajid Ahmed 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Zakiya Begaum 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Parvez Alam 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Nafees Begaum 2,400.00 2,400.00 

 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

    

B Balances   

    

15 Trade Receivables   

 Black Gold Tanners 17.60 - 
 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 24.42 - 
    

16 Advance to related Parties   

 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 0.01 - 
    

17 Advance from related parties   

 HMA Leather Export Private Limited 0.08 - 
 Gulzar Ahmad 0.70 - 
    

18 Employee related obligations   

 Gulzair Ahmed 0.13 - 
    

19 Trade payable   

 Gausia Cold Storage Private Limited 23.00 16.58 
 HMA Consumer Private Limited - 3.56 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi - 3.26 
 Ashraf Qureshi 0.08 0.04 
 Gulzar Ahmed 0.04 0.04 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 0.18 - 
 Parvez Alam 0.37 0.04 
 Wajid Ahmed 0.07 0.07 
 Zulfiqar Ahmed Qureshi 0.04 0.04 
    

20 Borrowings   

 Gulzar Ahmed 2.00 2.00 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 1.42 1.42 
 Wajid Ahmed 1.00 - 

c)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note : 

1 Directors of the Company and entities where they have significant influence have given personal and corporate guarantee towards the loans availed from 

financial institutions by the Company, details of the same are disclosed under note 31. 

2 Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Parent Company are entitled to post employment benefits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - 

'Employee Benefits' in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included 

above. Gratuity has been computed for the entity as a whole and hence excluded. 

 
3 The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end 

are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

    

 Commitments   

21 Guarantee given on behalf of the Company   

 Taj View Builder and Promoters Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Taj View Construction Private Limited 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Agra Better Homes LLP 1,250.00 1,250.00 
 Gulzar Ahmad 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Zulfiquar Ahmad Qureshi 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Mohammad Ashraf Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Mohammad Mehmood Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Wajid Ahmed 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Mohammad Kamil Qureshi 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Gulzeb Ahmed 3,650.00 3,650.00 
 Zakiya Qureshi 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Parvez Alam 2,400.00 2,400.00 
 Nafees Begaum 2,400.00 2,400.00 
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(29) Financial risk management framework 

 
The Group’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and 

monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The Board holds regular meetings on its activities 

 

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 

to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and 

management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 

framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. 

 

a). Credit risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's 

receivables from customers. 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
The Group held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of ₹1002.47 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: ₹699.63 millions). The credit worthiness of banks 

and financial institutions is evaluated by management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good. 

 
Trade and other receivables 

 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the 

credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate. 

 
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is determined by 

 

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Group, market intelligence and goodwill. Outstanding customer receivables are 

regularly monitored. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables and other receivables. 
 

Other financial assets 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes deposits and capital advances for immovable properties etc. Credit risk related to these financial assets are managed by 

monitoring the recoveries of such amounts on regular basis and the Group does not perceive any credit risk related to these financial assets. 

 
b). Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 

asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. The Group has access 

to unused credit facility for the year ended March 31, 2023 amounting to ₹773.48 million (March 31, 2022 : ₹998.60 million) towards working capital needs. 

 
Maturities of financial liabilities 

 
The below table analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted 

cash flows. 

            (in ₹ Million) 

 

Particulars 
Carrying amount 

<12months 

 
 

>12months 

March 31, 2023 
Non Derivative financial instruments 

Borrowings 3,010.69 422.50 

Trade payables 870.10 - 

Other financial liabilities 23.69 - 

Derivative financial instruments 

Other financial liabilities 196.61 - 

March 31, 2022 
Non Derivative financial instruments 

Borrowings 2,778.57 521.60 

Trade payables 794.55 - 

Other financial liabilities 40.71 - 

 
(c). Market risk 

 
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates – that will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of 

financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Group 

is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exposure to market risk is a function of 

investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. 

 
(i). Currency risk 

 
The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of foreign currency transactions including recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional 

currency (₹), primarily in respect of United States Dollar(USD) and EURO. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. 

 
Exposure to currency risk 

 
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows: 

 
USD converted to INR (in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
March 31, 2023 

 
March 31, 2022 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 

 
2,881.72 

 
1,853.65 

Net exposure to foreign currency (assets) 2,881.72 1,853.65 

 
Financial liabilities 
Advances received from customer 

 
 

349.09 

 
 

356.63 

Net exposure to foreign currency 

(liabilities) 

349.09 356.63 

 
 

2,532.63 

 

Net exposure to foreign currency 1,497.02 
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EURO converted to INR (in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
March 31, 2023 

 
March 31, 2022 

  
 

103.73 

 

Financial assets  

Trade receivables - 

Net exposure to foreign currency (assets) 103.73 - 

  
 

7.72 

 

Financial liabilities  

Advances received from customer - 

Net exposure to foreign currency 
(liabilities) 

7.72 - 

 
Net exposure to foreign currency 

 
96.01 

 
- 

 
Sensitivity analysis 

 
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against all other currencies would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in 

a foreign currency profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of 

forecast sales and purchases. 

     (in ₹ Million) 

Particulars   Impact on profit after tax  

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

USD 

- Increase by 5% 

- Decrease by 5% 

94.76 

(94.76) 

56.01 

(56.01) 

EURO 

- Increase by 5% 
- Decrease by 5% 

3.59 
(3.59) 

- 
- 

 

 
Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 

The Company’s revenue is denominated in various foreign currencies. Given the nature of the business, a large portion of the costs are denominated in Indian Rupee. This exposes 

the Company to currency fluctuations. 

The Board of Directors frames, implement and monitor the risk management plan of the Company which inter-alia covers risks arising out of exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. 

Under the guidance and framework provided by the board, the Company uses derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward in which the counter party is generally a bank. 

 
The foreign exchange forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges mature over a maximum period of eighteen months. The group manages its exposures normally for a period 

of up to two years based on the estimated exposure over that period. 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the group has designated certain foreign exchange forward as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on 

highly probable forecasted cash transactions. The related hedge transactions which form a part of hedge reserve as at March 31, 2023 which will occur and be reclassified to the 

statement of profit and loss over as and when the forecasted transactions occur. 

 
The reconciliation for the cash flow hedge reserve for the years ended March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

                                            (in ₹ Million) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

Changes in fair value of forward contract designated as hedging instruments 

Amount reclassified to profit and loss during 

(358.04) 
217.95 

Net charge to other comprehensive income before tax adjustments (140.09) 

Tax Impact on the above 35.26 

Net outstanding cash flow hedge reserve (104.83) 

 
The following table gives details in respect of outstanding derivative contracts: 

 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Notional amount 

of contracts 

(in ₹ million) 

 

 
Fair 

(in ₹ 

 

 
value 

million) 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Notional amount Fair 

of contracts ( in ₹  

(in ₹ million) 

 

 
value 

million) 

Forward contracts not in hedging   

USD 35.14 2,831.68 20.09 2.86 

EURO 5.00 451.78 - - 

GBP - - - - 

Contracts in hedging relationship 

(fair valuation through other comprehensive 

income) 

  

USD 35.51 2,876.98 - - 

EURO 5.00 451.78 - - 

GBP 35.00 3,357.18 - - 

 
Following table summarises approximate gain / (loss) on the Company’s other comprehensive income on account of appreciation / depreciation of the underlying currencies: 

         (in ₹ Million) 

 

 
Sensitivity analysis 

Impact on profit after tax 

 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

USD 
- Increase by 5% 

 
213.60 

 
58.06 

- Decrease by 5% (213.60) (58.06) 

GBP 

- Increase by 5% 
- Decrease by 5% 

33.81 
(33.81) 

- 
- 

EURO 

- Increase by 5% 125.61 - 

- Decrease by 5% (125.61) - 

 
As at March 31, 2023 ₹(91.04) Millions, (March 31, 2022 ₹29.14 Millions) have been recognised in the restated consolidated financial information for exchange gain/(loss) on 

foreign exchange forward that do not qualify for hedge accounting. 
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(ii). Interest rate risk 

 
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing 

investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate 

because of fluctuations in the interest rates. 

 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

 
The Group's exposure to interest rate risks relates primarily to the Group's interest obligations on its borrowings. Borrowings taken at variable rates are exposed to fair value interest 

rate risk. Group carries excellent credit ratings, due to which it has assessed that there are no material interest rate risk and any exposure thereof. 

 
(iii). Capital risk management 

 
The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders. The capital structure of 

the Group is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Group's policy is to maintain 

a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its 

business. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is 

net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes borrowings net of cash and bank balances and total equity comprises of equity share capital, general reserve, securities premium, 

other comprehensive income and retained earnings. 

         (in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Borrowings 3,433.18 3,300.17 

Less : Cash and cash equivalents (689.04) (185.28) 

Less : Other bank balances (312.55) (514.36) 

Net Debt 2,431.59 2,600.53 
 

Equity 4,944.87 3,916.55 

Total Capital 4,944.87 3,916.55 
 

Total Capital and Net Debt 7,376.46 6,517.07 

Capital gearing ratio 0.33 0.40 

 
Loan covenants 

The Group is required to comply with all the loan covenants as set out in the loan agreement/facility letter. The Group has complied with 

these covenants during the reporting period. 

 
(30) Fair value measurement 

 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value 
information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value those include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 
trade receivables and trade payables. 

(in ₹ Million) 
At fair value through profit and loss Level March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Assets    

Derivative asset - Forward contract receivable - - - 

Total assets  - - 
    

Liabilities    

Derivative liabilities - Forward contract payables 2 61.90 - 

Total liabilities  61.90 - 
    

   (in ₹ Million) 

At fair value through other comprehensive income Level March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Liabilities    

Derivative liabilities - Forward contract payables 2 140.10 - 

Total liabilities  140.10 - 

 
(in ₹ Million) 

At amortised cost March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Assets   

Trade receivables 2,984.82 2,897.46 

Cash and cash equivalents 689.04 185.28 

Other bank balances 49.68 254.94 

Other financials assets 373.60 375.15 

Total assets 4,097.14 3,712.84 

 
Liabilities 

  

Borrowings 3,433.18 3,300.17 

Trade payables 870.10 794.55 

Other financial liabilities 18.30 40.71 

Total liabilities 4,321.58 4,135.43 

 
Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, borrowings, other financial liabilities and trade 

payables as at year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 approximate their fair value due to their short- term nature. Difference between carrying amounts 

and fair values of other financial assets and other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the periods presented. 
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(31) Details of the outstanding borrowings, interest rate, security and repayment terms: 

 

 
 

 (in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Non Current 422.50 521.60 

Current 3,010.69 2,778.57 

Total 3,433.19 3,300.17 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Interest rate Repayment 
Period 

Secured 
against 

L-1 1606.42 1,947.23 7.56% On Completion of 

tenure of the WCDL 

facility 

1. Hypothication of Raw materials, Book debts, Finished goods, Fixed deposits 
and personal guarantee of Directors and its related parties including other Group 
Companies where promotors are directors. 
 
2. Collateral Properties :  
I. Property in the name of Company : 
 
i. Property -1 (Non-agriculture land)an area of 1.1720 Hectare out of 2.3440 
Khasra no. 65, situated at Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra 
 
ii. Property -2 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land1/2 
share of khasra no. 67 an area of 1.6595 Hectare out of 3.3190 Hectare, situated 
at Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra in the name of Taj view Builder 
and Promoters P ltd                                                                                              
 
iii. Property - 3 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land an area of 3.5090 
Hectare of Khasra no. 78, situated at Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District Agra 
in the name of Taj view Construction Pvt Ltd 
 
iv. Property - 4 (Non agricultural land) Non agricultural land an area of 1.7660 
Hectare of Khasra no. 84/2, situated at Mauza Sawai Tehsil Etmadpur District 
Agra in the name of Taj view Construction Pvt Ltd                                          
 
v. Property - 5 (Residential flat) - All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing 
Flat No. 04, area measuring 75.71 Sq. mtrs, on third floor, in Plot No. 1, built on 
property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi Bima Nagar, M.G. Road, 
Ward- Hari Parvat, Agra, U.P 
 
vi. Property - 6 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property 
bearing land area measuring 0.461 hectare out of total land admeasuring 0.6910 
hectare in Khasra/Gata No. 287Min, situated at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil- 
Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. (Owned by Mr. Mohmmad Mehmood Qureshi and Mr. 
Mohmmad Kamil Qureshi)                                                                                
 
vii. Property - 7 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property 
bearing land area\ measuring 0.7830 hectare in Khasra/ Gata No. 287Min, 
situated at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil-Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. 
 
viii. Property - 8 (Industrial land & building) All that piece and parcel of Property 
bearing total land area measuring 0.5747 hectare (land area measuring 0.387 
hectare out of land area 0.4686 hectare earlier owned by Shri Deepak Bansal & 
Shri Vikas Bansal AND land area measuring 0.1877 hectare out of land area 
0.423 hectare earlier owned by Smt. Poonam Agarwal) in Khasra/Gata No. 
293Min, situated at Village Kuberpur, Tehsil-Etmadpur, Agra, Owned by M/s 
H.M.A Food Export Pvt Ltd 
 
ix. Property - 9 (Industrial land & building) All that Piece and Parcel of Property 
bearing total land area measuring 2.029 hectare in Khasra/Gata No. 293Min 
(0.703 hectare), 295Min (0.933 hectare), 297Min (0.392 hectare) situated at 
Village Kuberpur, Tehsil-Etmadpur, Agra, U.P. 
 
x. Property - 10 (Commercial/Shop) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing 
Shop No. 02, area measuring 68.39 Sq. mtrs, on second floor, in Plot No. 1, built 
on property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi Bima Nagar, M.G. 
Road, Ward- Hari Parvat, Agra, U.P. 
 
xi. Property - 11 (Commercial/Shop) All that Piece and Parcel of Property bearing 
Shop No. 03, area measuring 63.17 Sq. mtrs, on first floor, in Plot No. 1, built on 
property no. 2/220 (Kothi No. 31), situated at Swadeshi Bima Nagar, M.G. Road, 
Ward- Hari Parvat, Agra, U.P. 
 
xii. Property - 12 (Industrial land & building) Exclusive charge of Land and 
Building situated at Village Behra , Barwala Road, dera Bassi, Distt Pataila 
Punjab measuring 72 Bighas 17 Biswas I.E 18.30 acres owned By Federal Agro 
Industries Ltd 
 
xiii. Property - 13 (Industrial land & building) Exclusive charge of Land and 
Boundary wall situated at Village Behra , Barwala Road, dera Bassi, Distt Mohali 
Punjab measuring 7 bigha 18 biswa owned by Federal Agro Industries Ltd2. 
Personal Guarantee of : Gulzar Ahmed, Mohd Ashraf Qureshi, Zulfiquar Ahmed 
Qureshi, Wajid Ahmed, Mohd Kamil Qureshi, Gulzeeb Ahmed, Zakiya Begaum, 
Qureshi, Parvez Alam, Nafees Begaum. 
 
xiv. Property - 14 (Residential/Commercial/Industrial Land & Building) Exclusive 
charge on additional property of ₹150 Mn to be provided for enhancement above 
the existing exposure of ₹1700 Mn. Same may be replaced with FD of ₹150 Mn 
till the time security is not provided.       
 
3) Corporate Guarantees of - 

Taj view Builder and Promoters Private Limited 
Taj view Construction Private Limited 
H.M.A Food Export Private Limited 
Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 

                                                                                                                                   
4) Lien on Fixed Deposits(FD) of ₹50 Million only 
 
5) Personal Guarantees of Parvez Alam. Mohd Mehmood Qureshi, Wajid 
Ahmed, Mohd Kamil Qureshi, Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi,,Gulzar Ahmed Qureshi 
, Mohd Ashraf Qureshi , Ms. Nafees Begum                                                             
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(31)  Details of the outstanding borrowings, interest rate, security and repayment terms : (Continued) 

 

 

(in ₹ Million) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Interest rate Repayment Period Secured 
against 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L-2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1249.94 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

704.42 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.15% 

On Completion of 

tenure of the WCDL 

facility 

1. First Pari passu charge on the Current assets (Raw 

materials, Book debts, Finished goods) of the borrower both 

present and future. 

 
2. Exclusive charge over residential and 

commercial property being Part of property no.95 and old 

no. 51 and present Nagar Nigam no. 2/200 situated at 

Surya Nagar (civil line), Hari parwat ward Tehsil & Distt. 

Agra in the name of Agra better home LLP . 

 
3. Unconditional and Irrevocable personal guarantee of 

Gulzar Ahmed, Zulfiquar Ahmed Qureshi, Wajid Ahmed, 

Gulzeeb Ahmed and Zawiya Qureshi to remain valid during 

entire tenor of facility. 

4. Unconditional and Irrevocable personal/corporate 

guarantee of collateral owner to remain valid during entire 

tenor of facility. 
      

 
L-3 

 
4.42 

 
3.42 

 
Not applicable 

Payable on demand Unsecured Loans given by directors are repayable with no 
interest rate. 

      

L-4 552.50 619.10 8.35% 7 years 

(20 quarterly 

repayment after two 

years of moratorium) 

1. Secured against fixed deposits amounting to ₹176 Million. 

 
2. Collateral Properties 
I. In name of the Company : 

1. Exclusive charge on industrial property being Factory 

land and building (Under construction) situated at Plot no. 

17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 125, 126, 127, 129, 378, 379 

at village Ghatta Shamshabad, Tehsil - Firozpur Jhirka, 

District Nuh, Mewat, Haryana. 

 
3. Personal guarantee of Gulzar Ahmad, Zulfiqar Ahmad 

Qureshi, Wajid Ahmad, Gulzeb Ahmed. 

 

4. Corporate Guarantee of HMA Agro Industries Limited 

L-5* 19.91 26.00 NA Payable on demand Unsecured loan from other parties. No interest is payable on the 
same. 

Total 3,433.19 3,300.17    

 
*Pertains to loans in Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP where the Company is partner and controls the operations 

The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts, inventory and other time deposits. The quarterly statements of 

current assets filed by the Company with banks are in primarily in agreement with the books of accounts and there are not material differences. 

Loan covenants : 

Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on indebtedness, debt-equity ratio, net Borrowings to EBITDA ratio and debt service coverage ratio. 

The limitation on indebtedness covenant gets suspended if the Group meets certain prescribed criteria. The debt covenant related to limitation on indebtedness 

remained suspended as of the date of the authorisation of the financial statements. 

 
The Group has also satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan. The other loans do not carry any debt covenant. 

The Group has not defaulted on any loans payable. 
 

 
 
 
 

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(32) Particulars of subsidiaries and associates considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements: 

 

Subsidiaries 
Country of 

incorporation 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

(a) Subsidiaries directly held    

Federal Agro Industries Private Limited (w.e.f April 01, 2021)  60.00% 60.00% 

HMA Food Export Private Limited  100.00% 100.00% 

FNS Agro Foods Limited  100.00% 100.00% 

HMA Natural Foods Private Limited  90.36% 90.36% 

Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private Limited 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited (w.e.f. January 20, 2020) 
India 

100.00% 

99.99% 

100.00% 

99.99% 

United Farm Products Private Limited  100.00% 100.00% 

JFF Export Private Limited (w.e.f. July 23, 2020)  100.00% 100.00% 

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP  50.00% 50.00% 

Reliable Agro Foods (w.e.f November 09, 2021)  95.00% 95.00% 

    

*International Agro Food Exports is a joint operation and hence is not part of above list 

 
(33)   Additional information pursuant to paragraph 2 of Division II - Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 - " Part II - General instructions for the preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements" 

             (in ₹ Million) 

Name of the entities in the Group 
Net Assets , i.e. Total 

Assets minus total 

liabilities 

Column1 Share in Profit or 
loss 

Column2 
Share in Other 

comprehensive 

income 

Column3 
Share in Total 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Column4 

  
As % of Consolidated 

Net Assets 

 

Amount 

 
As % of 

Consolidated Profit 

or Loss 

 

Amount 

As % of 

Consolidated 

Other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Amount 

 
As % of Total 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Amount 

March 31, 2023         

         

Parent         

HMA Agro Industries Limited 81.84% 4,046.76 108.44% 1,338.81 100.00% (111.19) 109.28% 1,227.58 

         

Subsidiary         

HMA Food Export Private Limited 2.92% 144.27 0.95% 11.72 - - 1.04% 11.72 

FNS Agro Foods Limited 0.20% 9.79 -0.38% (4.70) - - -0.42% (4.70) 

Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private 
Limited 

-0.17% (8.22) -0.09% (1.16) - - -0.10% (1.16) 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited -0.12% (6.08) -0.02% (0.24) - - -0.02% (0.24) 

United Farm Products Private Limited -0.91% (45.07) -16.65% (205.61) - - -18.30% (205.61) 

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 0.66% 32.81 -0.03% (0.42) - - -0.04% (0.42) 

JFF Export Private Limited 0.00% (0.15) 0.00% (0.05) - - 0.00% (0.05) 

HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 0.48% 23.84 0.00% (0.04) - - 0.00% (0.04) 

Federal Agro Industries Limited 7.33% 362.68 6.27% 77.44 - - 6.89% 77.44 

Reliable Agro Foods 3.09% 152.57 -0.94% (11.56) - - -1.03% (11.56) 

         

Joint Operation         

International Agro Food Exports 0.59% 29.35 0.00% (0.05) - - 0.00% (0.05) 
         

Non Controlling Interest 4.09% 202.32 2.47% 30.54 - -0.12 2.71% 30.42 

         

Total 100% 4,944.87 100% 1,234.66 100% (111.31) 100% 1,123.35 

 

Name of the entities in the Group 
Net Assets , i.e. Total 

Assets minus total 

liabilities 

Column1 Share in Profit or 
loss 

Column2 
Share in Other 

comprehensive 

income 

Column3 
Share in Total 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Column4 

  
As % of Consolidated 

Net Assets 

 

Amount 

 
As % of 

Consolidated 

Profit or Loss 

 

Amount 

As % of 

Consolidated 

Other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Amount 

 
As % of Total 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Amount 

March 31, 2022         

         

Parent         

HMA Agro Industries Limited 75.27% 2,948.06 98.51% 1,147.53 39.91% 0.36 98.47% 1,147.89 

Subsidiary         

HMA Food Export Private Limited 2.55% 99.97 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

FNS Agro Foods Limited 0.31% 12.29 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

Swastik Bone and Gelatines Private 
Limited 

-0.16% (6.36) 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

Laal Agro Food Private Limited -0.15% (5.78) 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

United Farm Products Private Limited 3.61% 141.37 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

Indus Farmers Food Co. LLP 0.85% 33.23 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

JFF Export Private Limited 0.00% (0.10) 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

HMA Natural Foods Private Limited 0.61% 23.88 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

Federal Agro Industries Limited 8.24% 322.75 0.00% - 43.23% 0.39 0.03% 0.39 

Reliable Agro Foods 3.73% 145.94 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

         

Joint Operation         

International Agro Food Exports 0.75% 29.39 0.00% - - - 0.00% - 

         

Non Controlling Interest 4.39% 171.90 1.49% 17.30 16.85% 0.15 1.50% 17.46 

         

Total 100% 3,916.55 100% 1,164.83 100% 0.91 100% 1,165.74 
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(34) Business combinations 

 
a. Acquisition of Federal Agro Industries Private Limited 

 
On April 01, 2021, the Group acquired 60% of the voting shares of Federal Agro Industries Private Limited, a non-listed company based in India and specialising in 

the Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products, in exchange for the cash consideration. The Group acquired Federal Agro Industries 

Private Limited because it significantly enlarges the range of products in the exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products that can be offered to its clients. 

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at proportion of net assets acquired. 

The Group has acquired 5,84,400 number of equity shares of Federal Agro Industries Private Limited for a cash consideration of ₹224.44 million (₹384 per shares). 

The Company has not incurred any major acquisition related cost. Since the Company has obtained control form April 01, 2021 bifurcation of profits for cut- off period 

are not required to be carried out. 

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Federal Agro Industries Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were: 

 
  (in ₹ Million) 

 
 

Particulars 

 
 

Book Value 

 
 

Fair value adjustment 

 
 

Fair value 

Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 274.60 130.77 405.37 

Cash and cash equivalents 3.22 - 3.22 

Trade receivables - - - 

Other financial assets 4.79 - 4.79 

Other current assets 4.53  4.53 

Deferred tax assets (Refer note 10) 6.58 - 6.58 

Total assets 293.72 130.77 424.49 
    

Trade payables 42.82  42.82 

Borrowings 7.61 - 7.61 

Total liabilities 50.43 - 50.43 
    

Total identifiable assets at fair value 243.29 130.77 374.06 

Non Controlling Interests - 40% 97.32 52.31 149.62 

Purchase consideration paid - 60% 145.97 78.46 224.44 

 
Fair value adjustment is done on the basis of independent valuation report as at the acquisition date. 

 
b. Acquisition of Reliable Agro Foods 

 
On November 09, 2021, the Group has acquired controlling share of Reliable Agro foods ("Reliable"), a partnership entity based in India and specialising in the 

Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products, in exchange for the cash consideration. The Group acquired Reliable because it significantly 

enlarges the range of products in the exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products that can be offered to its clients. The Group has elected to measure the 

non-controlling interests in the acquiree at proportion of net assets acquired. The Company has not incurred any major acquisition related cost. 

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Reliable Agro Foods as at the date of acquisition were: 
  (in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

 
Book Value 

 
Fair value adjustment 

 
Fair value 

Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 140.26 - 140.26 

Capital work in progress 3.47 - 3.47 

Cash and cash equivalents 13.17 - 13.17 

Other financial assets 2.44 - 2.44 

Other current assets 53.96 - 53.96 

Total assets 213.30 - 213.30 

Trade payables 58.98 - 58.98 
    

Total identifiable assets at fair value 154.32 - 154.32 

Purchase consideration paid 154.32 - 154.32 

 
The revenue and profit after tax included in the consolidated financial statement of profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2022 since the date of acquisition contributed 

by Reliable is ₹20.00 million and ₹9.75 million. 

Had Reliable been consolidated from April 01, 2021 the consolidated statement of profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2022 would have included revenue of 
₹76.00 million and profit after tax of ₹18.62 million. 
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(35) Earnings per share 

 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31,2023 

Year ended 

March 31,2022 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (in ₹ Millions) 1,204.12 1,147.53 

Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS (in no's)* 47,512,875.00 47,512,875.00 

Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS (in no's)  -   -  

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in no's) 47,512,875.00 47,512,875.00 

Earnings per share   

- Basic 25.34 24.15 

- Diluted 25.34 24.15 

Face value per equity share (₹.)  10.00   10.00 

*The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of 

equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the bonus issue are adjusted for the 

proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented i.e. from April 

01, 2021. 

(36) Income tax expense 

 

This note provides analysis of Company's income tax expense, amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by non- 

assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates in relation to the Company's tax position. 

a. Income tax expense is as follows: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
 

(a) Profit and loss 

Current tax 521.13 411.87 

Tax expense relating to prior years - 10.15 

Deferred tax   (20.26) (0.73) 

Total tax expense   500.87 421.29 
 

 

b. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit computed by applying income tax rate: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31,2023 

Year ended 

March 31,2022 

Profit before tax 1,735.53 1,586.12 

Tax rate  25.17% 25.17% 

Computed tax expense 436.80 399.20 

Expense not deductible for tax purposes 
Tax expense relating to prior years 

5.97 
- 

6.65 
10.15 

Others 1.90 1.44 

Impact of difference in tax rate (1.23) 3.02 

Deferred tax not created on losses of subsidiaries 57.43 0.84 

Amounts paid under settlement schemes with revenue authorities - - 

Income tax expense 500.87 421.29 

 
The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect of carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation amounting to ₹224.23 million 

(March 31, 2022: ₹ 26.53 million). The aforesaid tax losses will lapse in subsequent years as follows: 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31,2023 

 
Year ended 

March 31,2022 

Within 0 - 5 years - 0.51 

From 5 - 8 years 214.94 10.24 

Unabsorbed depreciation 9.29 15.78 

 

(37) Segment reporting 
 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief 

operating decision maker for assessing the Company’s performance and allocating the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by 

business segments and geographic segments. 

 
The Company is engaged into business of Manufacturing and exporting of Buffalo Frozen Meat and Meat Products which is single reportable business segment. 

Hence the Company's financial statements reflect the position for a reportable segment and no separate disclosure is required. The company has its 

manufacturing operations in India and sales products across various geographies in the world. 
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(37) Segment reporting (continued) 

The information relating to revenue from external customers of its single reportable segment has been disclosed as below: 

 

Revenue from operations 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31,2023 

Year ended 

March 31,2022 

Vietnam 6,612.87 5,750.09 

Malaysia 9,593.49 4,064.45 

Hongkong 1,337.60 1,469.87 

Indonesia 2,111.93 1,598.60 

Egypt 2,667.92 9,167.38 

India 2,328.54 4,095.75 

Rest of the world  7,439.85   4,685.77 

Total 32,092.19 30,831.91 

 
All the non-current operating assets are located in India. 

 
List of top customer from which revenue from sale of product is generated: 

(in Percentage) 

 
Customer 

Year ended March 31, 

2023 

Year ended March 31, 

2022 

Customer A 0.84% 8.95% 

Customer B 5.20% 6.91% 

Customer C 6.79% 5.48% 

(38) Commitments and contingent liabilities 

(in ₹ Million) 

As at As at 

Particular March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(a) Export obligation 

The Group has imported plant and machinery for their project under EPCG scheme for which 

- Export obligation pending against duty saved against which export has to be made in six years 
 

705.58 

 
705.58 

(b) Other commitments 

Guarantee given to financial institutions for loans availed by Group 5,450.00 5,450.00 
   

(c) Contingent liabilities* 

Claims against Group not acknowledged as debt 

for matters under appeal against below revenue authorities 

- Service tax 

- Value added tax 

125.67 

199.30 

78.19 

199.30 
 

*The Company believes that these claims are not tenable and hence no provision has been made in this regards. 

 
A search was carried out on November 5, 2022 by the Income-tax authorities at various locations of the Group and Directors (Executive directors) under Section 

132 of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Panchama's in respect of the above searches were prepared recording the search proceedings conducted by the various 

Income-tax officers at these locations of the Group and Directors. Thereafter, proceedings have been initiated by the Revenue authorities under various provisions 

of Income Tax Act, 1961 and no demand has been raised till the date of approval of these financial statements against the Group Companies. The Group is not 

able to estimate the liabilities under this search and hence no amount is provided for in the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

(39) Corporate social responsibility 

(in ₹ Million) 

 
Particular 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 

2022 

 
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 

  

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013* 

Amount spent during the year on: 

25.65 16.36 

(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - - 

(ii) Purposes other than (i) above 25.65 16.36 

(iii) nature of CSR activities 

- Contribution to Charitable trusts 
 

25.65 
 

16.36 

- Contribution to Government funds - - 

 

(40) Pursuant to year ending March 31, 2023 the Parent Company has completed the Initial public offering of 8,205,128 equity shares of face value ₹10 each at 

an issue price of ₹585 per equity share, consisting of a fresh issue of 2,564,103 equity shares aggregating to ₹1,500 million and an offer for sale of equity 

shares aggregating to ₹3,300 million. The equity shares of the Parent Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited  

w.e.f July 04, 2023. The net proceeds from the fresh issue of the IPO would be utilized towards the following : 

a. Funding working capital requirements of the Company 

b. General corporate purpose 
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(41) Other Statutory Information 
 

(i) The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami 
property. 

 
(ii) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

(iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

(v) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vi) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: 

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(42) Subsequent event : 

 

A search was carried out on July 07, 2023 by the through the Intelligence Officer (IO), Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax Intelligence , 

Headquarters, New Delhi at the premises of the Company situated at /1, 15 and 16, Tala spur Khurd, Gulzar Factory, Near Mathura Bypass, Aligarh, 

Uttar Pradesh 20200 under sub-section (2) of Section 67 of the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017, post the order of search the Parent Company 

received Summons to remain present and submit documents as may be requested by DGGI. Since due to unavoidable circumstances, the representatives 

of the Parent company were not able to remain present, the Parent Company has requested for extension of time to remain present. Thereafter, there 

is no communication from DGGI. The Parent company is not able to estimate the liability under this search. 

 

(43) The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of directors on July 31, 2023. 

 
(44) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to current year presentation. 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FOR MAPSS AND COMPANY HMA Agro Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration Number: 012796C CIN: U74110UP2008PLC034977 

 
 
    Sd/-                    Sd/-          Sd/- 

CA Gyan Chandra Misra 

Partner 

Gulzar Ahmad 

Chairman 

Wajid Ahmed 

Managing Director 

Membership Number: 078183 DIN : 01312305 DIN : 01312261 

Place : Ghaziabad Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 2023 

 
 
 
 
          
                   Sd/-         Sd/- 

Nikhil Sundrani Gulzeb Ahmed 

Company Secretary Chief financial 
officer 

Membership number : 53307 DIN : 06546660 

Place : Agra Place : Agra 

Date : July 31, 2023 Date : July 31, 
2023 
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	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	To the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited
	Opinion
	We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HMA Agro Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statem...
	In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a tr...
	Basis for Opinion
	We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibi...
	Key Audit Matters
	Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial stat...
	On the facts and circumstances of the company and the audit, we determine that there are no key audit matters to communicate.
	Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
	The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibilit...
	Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
	In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or ou...
	If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
	Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
	The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, fin...
	STANDALONE AUDIT REPORT
	STANDALONE AUDIT REPORT (1)
	1
	In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting...
	Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
	Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
	Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is...
	As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
	• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate...
	• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion o...
	• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
	• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Comp...
	• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fa...
	Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be inf...
	We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
	We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on ...
	From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe ...
	Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
	1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
	a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
	b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
	c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
	d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act subject to the matters specified in key audit matters and other matters.
	1 (1)
	e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Se...
	f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an...
	g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
	In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the A...
	h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations g...
	i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements. Refer Note no. 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
	ii. The Company has not made any provision against the pending litigation as the company believes that these claims are not tenable and hence no provisioning made by the company.
	iii.   There were no amounts as on 31st March 2023, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
	iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other so...
	(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding...
	(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provide...
	v. As stated in note 2.16 to the accompanying standalone financial statement, the Board of Directors of the company has recognizes a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorized, and the distribution is...
	vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the...
	2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we have given “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
	For MAPSS AND COMPANY
	Chartered Accountants
	Firm Regn No. 012796C
	Sd/-
	CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA
	Partner
	Membership No. 078183
	Date : 31-07-2023
	Place: Ghaziabad
	1 (2)
	Annexure ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited of even date)
	Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financials Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
	We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of HMA Agro Industries Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company f...
	Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
	The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consideri...
	Auditor’s Responsibility
	Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial C...
	Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with ...
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
	Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
	A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external pu...
	Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
	Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected...
	1 (3)
	ANNEURE A TO AUDITOR’S REPORT
	Opinion (1)
	In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financ...
	For MAPSS AND COMPANY (1)
	Chartered Accountants (1)
	Firm Regn No. 012796C (1)
	Sd/- (1)
	CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA (1)
	Partner (1)
	Membership No. 078183 (1)
	Date : 31-07-2023 (1)
	Place : Ghaziabad
	1 (4)
	(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of HMA Agro Industries Limited of even date)
	To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: We report that:
	(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
	(B) No Intangible assets during the period under review;
	(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with the p...
	(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agr...
	(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
	(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
	(ii) (a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or mo...
	(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹5 crores, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under claus...
	Amount in ₹Crores
	1 (5)
	ANNEURE B TO AUDITOR’S REPORT
	(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nat...
	(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prima f...
	(c) There is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and therefore we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal & payment of interest.
	(d) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule we are unable to comment whether the amount is overdue or not.
	(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties except following:
	(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
	(iv) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with except non-charging of interest on the loan.
	(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.
	(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Ord...
	(vii) (a) According to the records made available to us, company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty...
	1 (6)
	(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute except following: (if applicable) :
	(viii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
	(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year, except the facility of packing credit av...
	(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;
	(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained, except for:
	(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.
	(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,
	(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
	(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has availed the facility of packing credited from the financial institution and there is no default has been n...
	(ix) (a)The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
	(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
	(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year;
	(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;
	(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company.
	(xi) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause xii is not applicable on the company.
	(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.
	(xv) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).
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	We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabi...
	For MAPSS AND COMPANY (2)
	Chartered Accountants (2)
	Firm Regn No. 012796C (2)
	Sd/- (2)
	CA GYAN CHANDRA MISRA (2)
	Partner (2)
	Membership No. 078183 (2)
	Place: Ghaziabad (1)
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	In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements o...
	If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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	• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion o...
	• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
	• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Grou...
	• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieve...
	Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be...
	We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
	We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on ...
	From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describ...
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	1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
	a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
	b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the group so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
	c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
	d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act subject to the matters specified in key audit matters and other matters.
	e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Se...
	f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements of the group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an...
	g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
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	ii. The group has not made any provision against the pending litigation as the group believes that these claims are not tenable and hence no provisioning made by the group.
	iii. There were no amounts as on 31st March 2023, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the group.
	iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other so...
	(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding P...
	(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provide...
	v. As stated in note 2.16 to the accompanying standalone financial statement, the Board of Directors of the company has recognizes a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorized, and the distribution is...
	vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the group with effect from April 1, 2023, and...
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